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Honorable President and 
Members of the Board of Education 
Neptune City School District 
Monmouth County. New Jersey 

Dear Board Members: 

·PAX 732 -775-4335 

·D.:L;,.,1 ·M,r,,'r,1, £.{ 'D. 

( liitf ~LJi .. ,L1( •.=lit1:iil iStfdti..1 t· 

~=lnrl!L1 11_y Sll5inL, 

\'i"·l· -·Frt·s idi11 r 
1\n·i,( C.1/ii,,1111 

o::t11rl1nil, £L,JY: 
·~tidit·lf .Ct-~\ is 
[i5..1 ·H:1 ulli°tT 
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The Comprehensive Annual Financ ial Report (CAFR) of the Neptune City School Distri ct (Distri ct) 
fo r the fi scal year ended June 30, 20 16. is hereby submitted. Responsibili ty fo r both the accuracy of 
the data and completeness and fairness of the presentation. includi ng all di sclosures , rests with the 
management of the Board of Education (Board) . To the best of our knowledge and belief, the data 
presented in thi s report is accurate in all materi al respects and is reported in a manner designed to 
present fairly the financial position and results of operations of the vari ous funds and account groups of 
the District. All disclosures necessary to enable the reader to gain an understand ing of the Distri ct' s 
financial acti vities have been included. 

The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report is presented in fo ur sections: introductory , fi nancial. 
stati sti cal and single audit. The introductory section includes thi s transmittal letter, the District' s 
organizational chart and a li st of principal official s. The fin anc ial section begins with the Independe nt 
Auditors' Report and includes the ivlanagement' s Discussion and Analysis, the Basic Financial 
Statements and Notes providing an overview of the School District's financial position and operating 
resul ts. and other schedules providing detailed budgetary information. The stati stical section includes 
se lected financial and demographic information. generally presented on a multi-year basis . The 
District is required to undergo an annual single aud it in conformity with the provisions of the Single 
Audit Act of 1984 and the US Offi ce of rvtanagement and Budget Circular Uniform Guidance. Audits 
of States , Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organi:ations, and New Jersey 0MB Circular 15-08. 
Single Audit Policy f or Recipients of Federal Grants, State Grants and State Aid. Informati on related 
to thi s single audit , including the auditor' s report on the internal control structure and compliance with 
applicable laws and regulations and fi ndings and questioned costs are included in the single audi t 
secti on of thi s report . 
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1) REPORTING ENTITY AND ITS SERVICES: 

Ne ptune City School Distri ct is an independent reporting entity within the criteria adopted by the 
GASB as establi shed by NCGA Statement No. 14. All fund s and account groups of the District are 
included in thi s report. The Neptune City Board of Education and its school constitute the District' s 
reporting entity. 

The District provides a full range of educational services appropriate to grade levels K through 8. 
These include regular as well as special education for hand icapped youngsters. The District has a 
sending-receiving relationship with Neptune Township School Di strict for grades 9-12 that includes 
regular , vocational and special education for handicapped youngsters. Other opportunities available to 
high school students are Red Bank Regional High School for Performing Arts, Marine Academy of 
Science and Technology (MAST), High Technology High School, Academy of Allied Health and 
Science , Communications High School and Bio-technology High School. 

The District completed the 2015-2016 fi scal year with an average daily enrollment of 363 students, 
which is sixteen students less than the previous year 's average daily enrollment. The foll owing detail s 
the changes in the student enrollment of the District over the last fi ve years. 

Average Daily Enrollment (K-8) 

Fiscal Year 

2016 
2015 
2014 
2013 
2012 

Average Daily Enrollment 

363 
379 
396 
406 
395 

2) ECONOMIC CONDITION AND OUTLOOK: 

Percent Change 

4.2% 
4.3% 
2.5 % 
2.8% 
1.5% 

The Borough of Neptune City is located in the southeastern quadrant of Monmouth County and is 
comprised of 576 acres or approximately .9 square miles. The community is considered fully 
developed and is predominantly residential. 

3) MAJOR INITIATIVES: 

Free and appropriate public education for all children is a cornerstone of a democratic society that 
values the worth and dignity of each individual. The primary goal of the Neptune City School District 
is to offer educational opportunities to each young person that will enable him/her to function 
politically , economically and socially in a fast changing complex world. To achieve thi s goal, the 
District provides a planned program of learning that incorporates lessons and experiences, both in and 
out of the classroom, into the curriculum. The District appreciates the need for continuous 
improvement of the instructional program and will strive relentlessly to provide an educational system 
that assists every pupil to reach his/her potential . 

Through the utilization of modern technology and scientific advancements in today' s world , the 
students have been afforded many opportunities. The integration of technology into the curriculum is 
being emphasized and achieved. In addition , the District has recognized the advantage of offering a 
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structured education to chi ldren at an early age and has therefore establ ished a tuiti on based pre-school 
program for fou r year olds. 

The District has begun a program to educate its students with special needs in the least restri ctive 
env ironment, their res ident di strict. Jn keeping with that phi losophy, the District has establ ished an 
integrated Pre-school class. 

4) INTERNAL ACCOUNTING CONTROLS: 

Management of the Distri ct is re sponsible fo r establi shing and mai ntaining an internal control structure 
des igned to ensure that the assets of the Di strict are protected from loss, theft or misuse and to ensure 
that adequate accounting data are compiled to allow for the preparation of fi nancial statements in 
conformity with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP). The internal control structure is 
designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute , assurance that these objectives are met. The concept 
of reasonable ass urance recogni zes that: ( 1) the cost of a control should not exceed the benefi ts likely 
to be deri ved; and (2) the valuation of costs and benefits requires estimates and judgme nts by 
management. 

As a recipient of federa l and state fin ancial assistance, the District al so is responsible fo r ensuring that 
an adequate internal contro l structure is in place to ensure compliance wi th applicable laws and 
regulations related to those programs. This internal control structure is also subject to periodic 
evaluation by the Distri ct management. 

As part of the Distri ct's single audit desc ri bed ea rli er, tests are made to determi ne the adequacy of the 
internal control structure, including that portion related to federal and state financia l assistance 
programs. as we ll as to determine that the Distri ct has complied with applicable laws and regulations . 

5) BUDGETARY CONTROLS: 

In ad di ti on to in ternal accounting controls, the Distri ct mai ntains budge tary controls. The objecti ve of 
these budgetary controls is to ensure compliance with legal provisions embodied in the an nual 
appropriated budget approved by the voters of the municipali ty. Annual appropriated budgets are 
adopted for the general fund , the special revenue fund , and the debt se rvice fund. Projec t-l ength 
budgets are approved for the capital improvements accounted for in the capi tal projects fund . The fi nal 
budget amount as amended for the fi scal year is refl ected in the financial section. 

An encumbrance accounting system is used to record outstanding purchase commitments on a line 
item basis. Open encumbrances at year-end are either canceled or are included as reappropriations of 
fund balance in the subsequent year. Those amounts to be reappropriated are reported as rese rvations 
of fund balance at June 30, 20 16. 

6) ACCOUNTING SYSTEM AND REPORTS: 

The District's accounting records refl ect generally accepted accounting principles, as promulgated by 
the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) . The accounting system of the District is 
organized on the basis of fund s and account groups. These funds and account groups are ex plained in 
"Notes to the Financia l Statements", Note l . 
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7) DEBT ADMINISTRATION: 

At June 30, 20 16, the District had outstanding debt of $6, 170,000.00. 

8) CASH MANAGEMENT: 

The investment poli cy of the District is gu ided in large part by state statute as detail ed in "Notes to the 
Financial Statements", Note 2. The District has adopted a cash management plan that requires it to 
deposit public funds in public depositories protected from loss under the provisions of the 
Governmental Unit Deposit Protection Act ("GUDPA"). GUDPA was enacted in 1970 to protec t 
Governmental Units from a loss of funds on deposit with a fai led banking institution in New Jersey. 
The law requires governmental units to deposit public fund s only in public depositories located in New 
Jersey , where the funds are secured in accordance with the Act. 

9) RISK MANAGEMENT: 

The Board carri es various forms of insurance , including but not limited to general liability, hazard and 
theft insurance on property and contents, and fideli ty bonds. 

10) OTHER INFORMATION: 

A) Independent Audit - State statutes req uire an annual audit by independent certified public 
accountants or registered municipal accountants. The accounting firm of Alvino and Shechter, CPAs, 
was selected by the Board' s audit committee. In add ition to meeting the requirements set forth in state 
statutes, the audit also was designed to meet the requirements of the Single Audit Act of 1984, as 
amended by the Single Audit Act Amendments of 1996, and the related 0MB Circular Uniform 
Guidance and New Jersey 0MB Circular 15-08. The auditor's report on the general purpose financial 
statements and combining and individual fund statements and schedules is included in the financial 
section of this report. The auditor' s reports related specifically to the single audit are included in the 
si ngle audit section of this report. 

11) ACKNOWLEDGMENTS: 

We would li ke to express our appreciation to the members of the Neptune City School Board for their 
concern in providing fiscal acco untabi lity to the citizens and taxpayers of the school district and 
thereby contributing their fu ll support to the development and maintenance of our financial operation. 
The preparation of this report could not have been accomplished without the effic ient and dedicated 
se rvices of our financial and accounting staff. 

Respectfully submitted , 

Debra Mercora, Ed. D. 
Chief School Administrator 
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AL VINO & SHECHTER, L.L.C. 
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PCl'S of the .-\IC P.-\ Dh·is io11 of C P.\ Firms 

The Honorable President and 
Members of the Board of Education 
Neptu ne City Board of Education 
County of Monmouth, New Jersey 

Report on the Financial Statements 

CERTI FIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 
110 Fortunato Place 

Neptune, New Jersey 07753-3767 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

Phone: (732) 922--U22 
Fax: (732) 922-~533 

We have aud ited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and 
th~ aggregate remaining fund information of the Board of Education of the Neptune City School District (the "District") in the County of 
Monmouth, as of and for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2016, and the related notes to the financi al statements, which collectively comprise 
the District's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. 

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with accounting principles 
general ly accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant 
to the preparation and fa ir presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or e1Tor. 

Aud itor's Responsibility 

Our responsibi lity is to express opinions on these fin ancial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with 
aud iting standards generally accepted in the United States of America, the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government 
rf uditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the Un ited States, and audit requirements as prescribed by the Office of School 
Finance, Department of Education, State of New Jersey . Those standards require that we plan and perfo1111 the audit to obtain reasonable 
assurance about whether the financ ial statements are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the finan cial statements. The 
procedures selected depend on the auditor' s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial 
statements. whether due to fraud or e1Tor. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal conb·ol relevant to the District's 
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, 
but not for the purpose of expressing an opin ion on the effectiveness of the District's in ternal control. Accordingly, we express no such 
opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting 
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financ ial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audi t opinions. 

Opinions 

In our op ini on, the financial statements referred to above present fai rly, in all material respects, the respective financia l posi tion of the 
governmental activities, the business-type activit ies, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Board of 
Education of the Neptune City School District, in the County of Monmouth, as of June 30, 2016, and the respective changes in financial 
posit ion and. where applicable, cash flows thereof for the fi scal yearthen ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted 
in the United States of America. 
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Ot her Matters 

Required Supple111en1w:11 !11for111ation 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management's discussion and analysis, budgeta1y 
comparison information and pension in formation as listed in the table of contents be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. 
Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who 
considers it to be an essential part of financia l reporting for placing the bas ic financ ial statements in an appropriate operational, econom ic, 
or hi storical conte:-.:t. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementa1y information in accordance with auditing 
standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which cons isted of inquires of management about the methods of preparing 
the information and compari ng the information for consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, 
and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financ ial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance 
on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufticient evidence to express an opinion or provide any 
assurance. 

Other Information 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the fi nanc ial statements that collectively comprise the District's basic 
financial statements. The accompanying introducto1y section, supplementary information such as the combining and individual non-major 
fund fi nancia l statements section, statistical section, schedule of expenditures offederal awards, as required by Title 2 U.S. Code o.f Federal 
Regulations Part 200. U11 ifor111 Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles. and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Un iform 
Guidance), and the schedule of expend itures of state fi nancial assistance as requ ired by New Jersey 0MB Circular 15-08, ·'Single Audit 
Policy for Recipie111s of Federal Grants, State Grants and State Aid", are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a 
required part of the basic financial statements. 

The accompanying supplementaiy schedules such as the combining and individual non-major fund financial statements and the schedule 
of e:-.:penditures of federa l awards and state fin ancial assistance are the responsibility of management and were derived from and re lates 
directly to the underlyi ng accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected 
to the auditing procedures applied in the aud it of the basic financial statements and ce11ain additional procedures, including comparing and 
reconci ling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to 
the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the 
United States of America. In our opinion, the supplementa1y schedules and the schedule of expenditures of federal awards and state 
financial ass istance are fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole. 

The introductory and statistical sections listed in the table of contents have not been subjected to the auditing procedures appl ied in the 
audi t of the basic financia l statements, and accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on it. 

Other Reporting Required by Governm ent Audi ting Standards 

In accordance with Gol'ernmenl Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated November 30, 2016 on our consideration of the 
District's in ternal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, 
and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that repo11 is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial 
reporting and comp liance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on 
compl iance. That repo1t is an integral pa1t of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the 
District's internal control over financial reporting and comp liance. 

November 30, 20 16 
Neptune, New Jersey 

Allen 8 . Shechter 
Licensed Public School Accountant No. 2183 
Certified Public Accountant 
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REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION - PART I 



NEPTUNE CITY PUBLIC SCHOOL DISTRICT 
NEPTUNE CITY, NEW JERSEY 

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016 

(Unaudited) 

The discussion and analysis of the Neptune C ity Public School District 's financial performance provides an 
overall review of the school di strict's financial activities for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2016. The intent 
of this discussion and analysis is to look at the School District' s financial performance as a whole; readers 
should also review the notes to the basic financial statements and financial statements to enhance their 
understanding of the School District 's financial performance. 

The Management 's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) is a new element of Required Supplementary 
Information specified in the Govenu11ent Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 34 - Basic 
Financial Statements and /vlanagement 's Discussion and Analysis.for State and Local Governments issued 
in June 1999. Certain comparative information between the current year (2015-2016) and the prior year 
(2014-2015) is required to be presented in the MD&A. 

Financial Highlights 

Key financial highlights for the 2015-201 6 fiscal year are as follows: 

In tota l, net position increased $454,550 primarily due to unexpended appropriations. 

General revenues were $9,030,990 which represents 84.9% of revenues for the year. Program 
specific revenues in the form of charges for services, operating grants and contributions accounted 
for $1 ,602,664 or 15.1 % of total revenues of $10,633,654. 

The School District had $10,179,104 in expenses and only $1,602,664 was offset by program 
specific charges for services, grants or contributions. General revenues (primarily taxes and State of 
New Jersey and Federal Aid) of $9,030,800 were adequate to provide for these programs. 

The General Fund had $8,83 1,769 in revenues and $8,594,025 in expendihires. The General Fund's 
balance increased $237,744 from June 2015. This increase was anticipated by the Board of 
Education. 

Using this Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) 

This annual report consists of a series of financial statements and notes to those statements. These 
statements are organized so the reader can understand the Neptune City Public School District as a financial 
whole, an entire operating entity. The statements then proceed to provide an increasingly detailed look at 
the specific financial activities. 

The Statement of Net Position and Statement of Activities provide information about the activities of the 
whole School District, presenting both an aggregate view of the School District's finances and a longer -
term view of those finances. Fund financial statements provide the next level of detail. For governmental 
funds, these statements tell how services were financed in the short-term as well as what remains for future 
spending. The fund financial statements also look at the School District' s most significant funds with all 
other non-major funds presented in total in one column. In the case of Neptune City Public School District, 
General Fund is by far the most significant fund . 
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Reporting the School District as a Whole 

Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities 

While this document contains the large number of funds used by the School District to provide programs 
and activiti es, the view of the School District as a whole looks at all financial transactions and asks the 
question , '·How did we do financially during the 2015-20 16 fiscal year?" The Statement of Net Position 
and the Statement of Activities helps answer this question. These statements include all assets and 
liabilities using the accrual basis of accounting similar to the accounting used by most private-sector 
companies. This basis of accounting takes into account, all of the current year ' s revenues and expenses 
regardless of when cash is received or paid. 

These two statements report the School District' s net position and changes in the net position. This 
change in net position is important because it tells the reader that, for the school district as a whole, the 
financial positions of the School District has improved or diminished. The causes of this change may be 
the result of many factors, some financial , and some not. Non-financial factors include the School 
Distri ct 's property tax base, current laws in New Jersey restricting revenue growth, facility condition, 
required educational programs and other factors. 

ln the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities, the School District is divided into two 
distinct kinds of activities: 

Govenm1ental activities - All of the School District's programs and services are reported here 
including, but not limited to, instruction, support services, operation and maintenance of plant 
faci lities, pupil transportation and extracurricular activities. 

Business-Type Activities - This service is provided on a charge for goods or services basis to 
recover all the expense of the goods or services provided. The Food Service Enterpri se Fund is 
reported as a business activity. 

Repo rting the School District's Most Significant Funds 

Fund Financial Statements 

The analysis of the School District's major funds begins on page 19. Fund financial reports provide 
detai led information about the School District ' s funds. The School District uses many funds to account 
for a multitude of financial transactions. The School Distri ct's govenunental funds are the General 
Fund, Special Revenue Fund and Capital Projects Fund. 

Governmenta l Funds 

The School District 's activities are repo11ed in governmental funds, which focus on how money flows 
into and out of those funds and the balances left at year-end available for spending in the future years. 
These funds are reported using an accounting method called modified accrual accounting, which 
measures cash and al l other financial assets that can readily be conve11ed to cash. The governmental 
fund statements provide a detailed short-term view of the School District 's general govenunent 
operations and the basic services it provides. Govenunental fund information helps the reader determine 
whether there are more or fewer financia l resources that can be spent in the near future to finance 
educational programs, The relationship (or differences) between governmental activities (reported in the 
Statement <~[ Net Position and the Statement of Activities) and the govenunental funds is reconciled in 
the financial statements. 
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Enterprise Fund 

The Enterpri se Fund uses the same basis of accounting as business-type activities; therefore, those 
sta tements are essentially the same. 

Notes to the Financial Statements 

The notes provide additional informati on that is essential to a full understanding of the data provided in 
the District-wide and fund financial statements. The notes to the financial sta tements can be fo und on 
pages 27 to 50 of this report. 

The School District as a Whole 

Recall that the Statement of'Net Position provides the perspective of the School District as a whole. Net 
Position may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government' s financial position. 

The District's financial position is the product of several financial transactions including the net results 
of activities, the acquisition and payment of debt, the acquisition and disposal of capital assets, and the 
deprecia ti on of capital assets . 

Table I provides a summary of the School District's net assets for 201 6 and 2015. 

Assets 
Current and Other Assets 

Capital Assets, Net 
Total Assets 

Deferred Outflows of Resources 

Liabilities 
Current Liabil ities 
Long-Tenn Liabilities 

Total Liabil ities 

Deferred Inflows of Resources 

Net Position 

Table I 
Net Position 

Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt 
Restricted 

Unrestricted (Defi cit) 

Total Net Position 

12 

2016 

$1,627,436 
$9,538,325 

$11, 165,76 1 

$483,354 

$976,327 
$7,699,164 
$8,675 ,491 

$57,766 

$3,368,325 
$720,973 

$(1 , 173 ,440) 
$2,91 5,858 

$1,165,078 
$9,743,045 

$10,908.1 23 

$208.673 

$333,230 
$8,238,006 
$8,571,236 

$84,252 

$2,983,045 
$496,349 

$(1 ,018,086) 
$2,461,308 



Table 2 shows the changes in net position for the fiscal years 2016 and 2015. 

Revenues 
Program Revenues 

Charges for Services 
Operating Grants and Contributions 
Capital Grants and Contributions 

General Revenues 
Property Taxes 
Grants and Entitlements 
Other 

Total Revenues 

Program Expenses 
Instruction 
Support Services 

Pupils and Instructional Staff 

Table 2 
Changes in Net Position 

General Administration, School Administration, 
Business Operations and Maintenance of Facilities 

Pupil Transportation 
Food Service 
Other 
Total Expenses 

Increase (Decrease) in Net Position Before Other Items 

Other Decrease 

Increase (Decrease) in Net Position 

Governmental Activities 

2016 

$52,566 
$1,550,098 

$0 

$6,581,715 
$2,400,615 

$48,660 
$10,633,654 

$3,729,735 

$4,658,799 

$990,923 

$174,782 
$ 151 ,164 
$473,701 

$10,179,104 

$454,550 

$Q 

$454,550 

2015 

$57,500 
$1,246,325 

$0 

$6,461 ,619 
$2,361 ,027 

$43,603 
$10,170.074 

$3,414,833 

$4,761,345 

$1,037,468 

$184,646 
$148,438 
$485,252 

$10,031,982 

$138,092 

$Q 

$138,092 

The unique nature of property taxes in New Jersey may create the need to arnrnally seek voter approval for 
the School District operations. Effective with the 2012-2013 budget, voter approval is only necessary when 
seeking to exceed the state imposed property tax levy CAP. Property taxes made up 66.8 percent of 
revenues for govenm1ental activities for the Neptune City Public School District for the fiscal year 2016. 
Federal and state grants accounted for another 32.6 percent of revenues. 

Program expenses include instruction that comprises 36.6 percent of the total expenses. Support services 
comprise 55.6 percent of total expenses. 
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The Statelllen/ of Actii•ities shows the cost of program services and the charges for services and grants 
offsetting those services fo r the year ended June 30, 2016. Table 3 shows the total cost of services and the 
net cost of services. The net cost shows the financial burden that was placed on the District' s taxpayers by 
each of these functions 

Total Cost of Net Cost of Total Cost of Net Cost 
of 

Services Services Services Services 
2016 2016 2015 2015 

Instruction $3,729,735 $2,655,280 $3 ,414,833 $2,548,921 
Support Services 

Pupils and Instructional Staff $4,658,799 
General Administration, School 

$4,383,225 $4,761 ,345 $4,546,914 

Administration, Business Operations 
and Maintenance of Facilities $990,923 $9 12,568 $1,037,468 $976,518 
Pupil Transportation $174,782 $ 174,782 $ 184,646 $ 184,646 
Food Service $15 1,164 $(23, 117) $ 148,438 $(14,096) 
Other $473,70 1 $473,701 $485,252 $485.253 
Total Expenses $ 10,179,104 $8,576,439 $10,03 1,982 $8,728.156 

Table 3 

Instruction expenses include activities directly dealing with the teaching of pupils and the interaction 
between teacher and student. 

Pupils and instructional staff include the acti vities invo lved with assisting staff with the content and process 
of teaching to students, including curriculum and staff development. 

General administration, school administration and central services include expenses associated with 
administrative and financial supervision of the district. 

Maintenance of fac ilities activities involves keeping the school grounds, buildings and equipment in an 
effective working condition. 

Pupil transportation includes activities involved with the conveyance of students to and from school, as well 
as to and from school activities, as provided by state law. 

The dependence upon tax revenues is apparent. The community, as a whole, is the primary support for the 
Neptune C ity Public School District. 

The School District's Funds 

Information abo ut the School District's govenunental funds starts on page 19. These funds are accounted for 
using the modified accrual basis of accounting. All govenm1ental funds had total revenues of $9,848,198 
and expenditures of $9,701,450. 

At the end of the current fi scal year, the Board ' s governmental funds reported combined ending fund 
balances of $ 1,104,617. Of thi s fund balance, $232,341 is unassigned which is available for spending at the 
Board ' s discretion. The remainder of fund balance is restricted or assigned to indicate that it is not available 
for spending because it has already been committed 1) to liquidate contracts and purchase orders of the prior 
period ($3 ,591), 2) for capital reserve ($ 11 ,361), 3) for excess surplus ($366,255) , 4) for excess surplus 
designated for subsequent year's expenditures ($343,355), 5) assigned to be designated for subsequent 
year' s expenditures and included as anticipated revenue for the year ending June 30, 2017 ($ 147,712), 6) 
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General Fund Budgeting Highlights 

The School District's budget is prepared according to the law of the State of New Jersey, and is based on 
accounting for certain transactions on a basis of cash receipts, disbursements, and encumbrance. The 
most significant budgeted fund is the General Fund. 

During the course of the fiscal 2016 year, the School District amended its General Fund budget as 
needed. The School District uses program based budgeting and the budgeting systems designed to 
tightly control total program budgets but provide fl exibility for program management. Revisions in the 
budget were made to recognize revenues and expenditures that were not anticipated and to prevent over 
expend itures in specific expense accounts. 

Capital Assets 

At the end of the 2016 fiscal year, the School District had $9,524, l 08 invested in buildings, furniture 
and equipment and vehicles. Table 4 shows fiscal 20 16 balances. 

Table 4 
Capital Assets (Net of Depreciation) at June 30 

2016 2015 
Land $30,000 $30,000 
Construction in Progress 0 0 
Buildings and Improvements $9,483,626 $9,688,034 
Machinery and Equipment $10,482 $11 ,842 

Trucks 0 Q 

Totals $9,524, l 08 $9,729,876 

Debt Administration 

At June 30, 2016. the School District had $8,237,489 as outstanding debt. This amount consisted of 
compensated absences ($68,325), bonds payable ($6,170,000),unamorti zed bond premiums ($357,103) 
and net pension liability ($1 ,642,061). 

As of June 30, 2016, the School District' s legal debt margin was $8,747,524. For more detailed 
information, please refer to the Notes to the Financial Statements. 

For the Future 

The Neptune City Public School District is in good financial condition presently. The Borough of 
Neptune City is primarily a residential community, thus the burden is on the homeowner to fund the 
taxes needed to operate the school. Other funding sources have increased minimally and future finances 
wi ll be with challenges. The decrease in Fund Balance available to be utilized in future budgets and 
level state funding wi ll cause difficulty to comply w ith the CAP on tax levies as mandated by the State 
of New Jersey. 
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The Borough of Neptune Ci ty has designated an area in the Eastern section of the Borough as in need of 
redevelopment. This may affect the School District, however, such effect cannot be accurately projected 
at this time. 

In conclusion. the Neptune City Pub lic School Distric t has committed itself to financial excellence for 
many years . The School Distric t plans to continue its system of sound financial plaiming, budgeting and 
internal controls to meet the challenges of the future. 

Contacting the School District's Financial Management 

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, investors and creditors with a general 
overview of the School District ' s finances and to show the School District' s accountabi lity for the 
money it receives. If you have any questions about this report or need additional information, contact 
William Folk, School Business Administrator/Board Secretary at Neptune City Board of Education, 2 1 O 
West Sylvani a Avenue, Neptune City, NJ 07753. 
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BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 



DISTRICT-WIDE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

The statement of net position and the statement of activities di splay in formation about the District. 
These statements include the financ ial activities of the overall District, except for fiduciary activities. 
Elim inations have been made to minimize the double-counting of inte rn a l activities. These statements 
dist ingu ish between the governmental and business-type activities of the District. 



NEPTUNE CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
Statement of Net Position 

June 30, 2016 

ASSETS: 

Cash and Cash Equ ivalents 
Receivab les, Net 
Inventory 
Restricted Assets: 

Cap ital Reserve Accou nt - Cash 
Capital Assets. Net: (Note 5) 

Tota l Assets 

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES: 

Deferred Loss o n Refunding Debt 
Deferred Outflows Related to Pensions 

Tota l Deferred Outflows of Resources 

LIABILITIES: 

Accounts Payable 
Other Payable 
Accrued Interest 
Unearned Revenue 
Noncurrent Liabilities: (Note 6) 

Due With in O ne Year 
Due Beyond One Year 

Total Liabi li ties 

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES: 

Deferred Inflows Related to Pensions 
Deferred Commod ities Revenue 

Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 

NET POSITION: 

Invested in Cap ital Assets, Net of Related Debt 
Restricted for: 

Debt Service 
Othe r Purposes 

Unrestricted ( Deficit) 

Total Net Pos ition 

Governmental 
Activities 

1,231,713.67 
244,897.49 

.00 

11,36 1.36 
9.5?4. l 07 .95 

l l.Ol?,080.47 

12l,l06.25 
362,248.00 

483,354.25 

335,643.29 
36,592.03 
32, 127.22 
11 , 120.00 

538,325.00 
7,699.163.95 
8,652,971.49 

56,432.00 
.00 

56.432.00 

3,354, 107.95 

1.59 
720,972 .00 

( 1.289,050.3 1) 

$ 2. 786,031.23 

Business-Type 
Activities 

I 00,428.15 
35,647.73 

3,3 88.28 

.00 
14.2 l 6.94 

153.681. 10 

.00 

.00 

.00 

21 ,598.66 
920.81 

.00 

.00 

.00 

.00 
22.519.47 

.00 
1 334.44 

1 .334.44 

14,2 16.94 

.00 

.00 
1 15.610.25 

129.827.19 

The accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements are an integra l paii of this statement. 
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Total 

1,332, 141.82 
280,545.22 

3,388.28 

11 ,361.36 
9.538,324.89 

11, 165,761.57 

12 1, 106.25 
362.248.00 

483.354.25 

357,241.95 
37,512.84 
32,127.22 
11,120.00 

538,325 .00 
7.699, 163 .95 
8,675.490.96 

56,432.00 
1.334.44 

57.766.44 

3,368,324.89 

1.59 
720,972.00 

( 1,173,440.06) 

2,915,858.42 



,..... 
00 

NEPTUNE CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
Statement of Activities 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2016 

Program Revenues 
Indirect Operating Capita l 

Exhibit A-2 

Net (Expense) Revenu e and Changes 
In Net Position 

Expense Charges for Grants & Gra nts & Governmental Business-Type 
Activities Functions/Programs 

GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES: 
Expenses Allocation Services Contributions Contributions Activities 

Instructi on: 
Regular Instruction 
Special Education Instruction 
Other Special Instruction 
Other Instruction 

Support Services: 
Tuition 
Student & Instruction Related Services 
Genera I Administrat ion 
School Admin istrati ve Serv ices 
Central Services 
Administration Technology-Infomrntion 
Plant Operations and Maintenance 
Pupil Transportat ion 
Unallocated Employee Benefits 

Charter Schools 
Interest on Long-Tern, Debt & Other Changes 
Unal located Depreciation 

I ,605,29 I .07 
402,3 18.56 

38,032.37 
42,494.07 

3,60 1,873.60 
738,153.88 
190,409 .07 
82,287. 14 

142,446.80 
2,037.95 

307,75 1.88 
174,781.45 

2,226,360.4 1 

1,233 ,348 .43 7,982.50 83 1,409.07 
408,250.48 .00 235,063.0 1 

.00 .00 .00 

.00 .00 .00 

.00 .00 .00 
3 18,77 1.82 .00 275,574 .04 
180,996.75 .00 78,354.34 
28,9 12 .37 .00 .00 

.00 .00 .00 

.00 .00 .00 
56,080.56 .00 .00 

.00 .00 .00 
(2,226,360.4 1) .00 .00 

.00 .00 .00 

.00 .00 .00 

.00 .00 .00 
Total Governmental Activities 

4,843 .00 
264,588.93 
204,268.82 

$ 10.0?7,939.00 .00 7,982.50 1,420,400.46 

BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES: 
Food Serv ice 

Total Business-Type Activities 
Total Primary Government 

151. 164.64 
15 I, 164.64 

$ 10, 179,103.64 

GENERAL REVENUES: 
Taxes: 

.00 44,583.54 )'.)9 697.64 

.00 44,583.54 129 697.64 
00 52.566.04 I .550.098. I 0 

Propert y Taxes Levied for General Puq)oses, Net 
Taxes Levied for Debt Service 
State Aid Not Restricted 
Investment Earnings 
Mi scellaneous Income 

Total General Revenues 
Change in Net Position 

Net Position - Beginning of Year 
Net Position - Ending of Year 

The accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements are an integral pa1t of this statement. 

.00 (1 ,999,247.93) 

.00 (575,506.03) 

.00 (38,032.37) 

.00 (42,494.07) 

.00 (3,60 I ,873.60) 

.00 (78 I ,351 .66) 

.00 (293,05 I .48) 

.00 ( I I I , 199. 5 I ) 

.00 ( 142,446 .80) 

.00 (2,037.95) 

.00 (363,832.44) 

.00 ( I 74,78 1.45) 

.00 (.00) 

.00 (4,843.00) 

.00 (264,588.93) 

.00 (204.268.82} 

.00 {8,599.556.04) 

.00 .00 

.00 .00 

.00 {8,599,556.04} 

6,044,9 1 I .00 
536,804.00 

2,400,6 15.00 
2,595 .27 

45.874.59 
9,030.799.86 

43 I ,243.82 
2,354,787.4 1 

$?.786,03 I .?3 

Total 

.00 ( I , 999,247.93) 

.00 (575,506.03) 

.00 (38,032.37) 

.00 (42,494.07) 

.00 (3,60 I ,873.60) 

.00 (78 I ,3 51.66) 

.00 (293 ,05 I .48) 

.00 (I I 1,199.51) 

.00 ( I 42,446.80) 

.00 (2,037.95) 

.00 (363,832.44) 

.00 ( 174,781.45) 

.00 (.00) 

.00 (4,843.00) 

.00 (264,588 .93) 

.00 (204.268.8?} 

.00 {8.599,556.04) 

23, I 16.54 23 11 6.54 
23, I I 6.54 23, I I 6.54 
23, 11 6.54 (8,576.439.50} 

.00 6,044,9 I I .00 
.00 536,804.00 
.00 2,400,6 I 5.00 

I 89.86 2,7 85.13 
.00 45.874.59 

I 89.86 9.030,989.7? 
23,306.40 454,550.22 

I 06,520.79 2,46 I ,308.?0 
)?9,827. 19 2.91 ~,858.4? 



FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

The Ind ivid ual Fund statements and sched ules present more detai led information for the individual fund in a format 
that segregates information fund type. 



ASSETS: 
Cash and Cash Equivalents 
Jnterfunds Receivable 

NEPTUNE CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
Balance Sheet 

Governmental Funds 
June 30, 2016 

Special 
General Revenue 

Fund Fund 

1,23 1,712.08 .00 
4 ,788.23 .00 

Receivables from Other Governments 
Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents 

189, 122.49 
11 361.36 

55,775.00 
.00 

Total Assets $ 1,436,984. 16 55,775.00 

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES: 
Liabil ities: 

Accounts Payable 
lnterfunds Payable 
Unearned Revenue 

Total Liabil ities 

Fund Balances: 
Restricted for: 

Excess Surplus - Current Year 

299, 176.52 36,466.77 
33,192.03 8,188.23 

.00 I 1. 120.00 
332.368.55 55,775.00 

366,255 .54 .00 
Excess Surplus - Prior Year - Designated 

for Subsequent Year' s Expenditures 
Capital Reserve 

343 ,355. IO 
I 1,361.36 

.00 

.00 
Debt Service .00 .00 

Assigned for: 
Designated by BOE for Subsequent 

Year 's Expenditures 147,7 11.90 .00 
Other Purposes 

Unassigned: 
General Fu nd 

Total Fund Balances 
Total Liabi lities and Fund Balances 

3,590.71 .00 

232.34 I .00 .00 
1.104,6 15.61 .00 

$ 1.436,984.16 55 ,775.00 

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the 
statement of net position (A-I) are different because: 

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not 
financial resources and therefore are not reported in 
the governmental funds. The cost or the assets is 
$ 1 1.909.512.05 and the accu111ulalecl depreciation is 
$(2.385.404. 10) (See Note 5). 

Deferred outflows and inflows of resources are applicable 
to future periods and therefore not reported in the funds. 

Deferred Outllows of Resources fro111 Pensions (Note I 0) 
Loss on Refunding Debt (Note 6) 
Deferred Inflows of Resources from Pensions (Note 10) 

Long-term liabilities. including bonds payable, are not 
clue and payable in the current period and therefore are 
not repo11ecl as liabilitks in the funds. (See Note 6) 

Interest is accrued on outstanding debt in the govern111ent­
wicle financial state111ents, whereas in the govern mental 
fund linancial sta1<!111ents. an interest expenditure is reported 
when clue. 

Net Position of Government Funds 

Debt 
Service 
Fund 

1.59 
.00 
.00 
.00 

1.59 

.00 

.00 

.00 

.00 

.00 

.00 

.00 
1.59 

.00 

.00 

.00 
1.59 
1.59 

362,248.00 
121 , I 06.25 

(56,432 .00) 

The accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements are an integral pati of th is statement. 
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Total 
Governmental 

Fund 

1,231,7 13.67 
4,788.23 

244,897.49 
I 1.361.36 

1,491 ,760.75 

335,643 .29 
4 1,380.26 
I 1. 120.00 

388,143.55 

366,255.54 

343,355.10 
I 1,361.36 

1.59 

147,7 I 1.90 
3,590.71 

?3?,341.00 
1, 104,617.20 

9,524, I 07.95 

426,922.25 

(8,237,488.95) 

(32, 127.22) 

$2,786,031.23 



Exhibit B-2 
NEPTUNE CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Chani::es in Fund Balances 
of Governmental Funds 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2016 

Special Debt Tota l 
Ge neral Revenue Service Governmental 

Fund Fund Fund Fund 
REVENUES: 
Local Sources: 

Local Tax Levy 6,044,9 1 1.00 .00 536,804.00 6,58 1,715.00 
Tu ition from Individuals 7,982.50 .00 .00 7,982.50 
Interest Earned on Capital Reserve 45.35 .00 .00 45.35 
Interes t Earned on Investments 2,549.92 .00 .00 2,549.92 
M isceI laneous 45 874.59 .00 .00 45 874.59 

Total - Local Sources 6, 101 ,363.36 .00 536,804.00 6,638,167.36 
State Sources 2,730,405.66 .00 178,562.00 2,908,967.66 
Federal Sources .00 301,062. 80 .00 30 1,062.80 
Total Revenues 8,831,769.02 30 1,062.80 715.366.00 9,848, 197.82 
EXPENDITURES: 
C urrent: 

Regu tar Instruction I ,462, 770.22 148,607.00 .00 1,6 11 ,377.22 
Special Education Instruction 402,318.56 .00 .00 402,3 18.56 
Other Special Instruction 38,032 .37 .00 .00 38,032.37 
Other Instruction 42,494.07 .00 .00 42,494.07 

Support Services: 
Tuition 3,601 ,873.60 .00 .00 3,601,873.60 
Student & Instruction Related Services 578, I 98.08 152,455.80 .00 730,653.88 
General Administration 189,869.87 .00 .00 189,869.87 
School Administrative Services 82,287. 14 .00 .00 82,287.14 
Centra l Services I42,446.80 .00 .00 142,446.80 
Administration Information Technology 2,037.95 .00 .00 2,037.95 
Plant Operations and Maintenance 306,930.88 .00 .00 306,930.88 
Pupil Transportation 180,78 I .45 .00 .00 180,781.45 
Employee Benefits 1,559, 141.4 1 .00 .00 1,5 59, 14 1.4 I 

Transfer to Charter Schools 4,843.00 .00 .00 4,843.00 
Debt Service: 

Principal .00 .00 445,000.00 445,000.00 
In terest and Oth er Charges .00 .00 270,365.67 270,365.67 
Cost of Issuance .00 .00 90,996.70 90,996.70 

Capital Outlay .00 .00 .00 .00 
Total Expenditures 8.594,025.40 301.062.80 806,362.37 9,701,450.57 

Excess (Defic iency) of Revenues 
Over (Under) Expenditures 237,743.62 .00 (90,996.37) 146 747.25 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES): 

Payment to Escrow Agents .00 .00 (5,976, 106.25) (5,976, I 06.25) 
Refunding Bond Proceeds .00 .00 5,710,000.00 5,710,000.00 
Premium on Issuance of Refunding Bonds .00 .00 357, I 02.95 357, I 02.95 
Total Other Financing Sources and Uses .00 .00 90 996.70 90,996.70 

Net Change in Fund Balances 237,743.62 .00 .33 237,743 .95 
Fund Balance - Ju ly I 866 87 1.99 .00 1.26 866,873.?5 
Fund Balance - June 30 $1,104,6 15.61 .00 1.59 1,104,6 17.20 

The accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements are an integral pa11 of this statement. 
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NEPTUNE CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures 

and Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds 
To the Statement of Activities 

Governmental Funds 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2016 

Total net change in fund balances - governmental funds (from B-2) 

/\mounts reported for governmental activities in the statement 
of activities (A-2) are different because: 

Capital outl ays arc reported in governmental funds as expenditures. However, on the 
statement of activities, the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful 
lives as deprec iation expense. This is the amount by which capital outlays exceeded 
depreciation in the cuJTent fiscal year. 

Deprec iation Expense 
Capital Outlay 

Repayment of bond principal is an expenditure in the governmental funds, but the 
repayment reduces long-term liabilit ies in the statement of net position and is not 
reported in the statement of activities. 

In the statement of activities, certain operating expenses, e.g., compensated absences 
(vacation and sick pay) are measured by the amounts earned during the year. In the 
governmental fund s, however, expenditures for these items are repo11ed in the amount 
of financ ial resources used (paid). When the earned amount exceeds the paid amount, 
the difference is a reduction in the reconciliation; when the paid amount exceeds the 
earned amount, the difference is an addition to the reconciliation. 

Issuance of Debt is an Other Financing Source in the Governmental Funds, but the issuance 
increases long-term liabilities in the statement of net position and is not reported in the 
statement of activities. 

Refunding Bond Proceeds 
Payments to Escrow Agent 
Premium on Issuance of Refunding Bonds 

District pension contri bution are reported as expenditu res in the governmental funds 
when made. However, they are reported as deferred outflows of resources in the State­
ment of Net Position because the reported net pension liabi lity is measured a year before 
the District 's report date. Pension expense, which is the change in the net pension liabili ty 
adjusted for changes in deferred outflows and inflows of resources related to pensions, is 
reported in the Statement of Activities. 

Pension Expense - PERS Contribution -2016 
State Share of Unfunded TPAF Pension Expense 
Unfunded TPAF Pension Expense 
Pension Expense 

Interest is accrued on outstanding debt in the government-wide financial statements, 
whereas in the fund fi nancial statements an interest expend iture is repo11ed when due. 

Change in net position of governmental activities 

(205,767 .87) 
.00 

(5,710,000.00) 
5,976, I 06.25 
(357, 102.95) 

62,889.00 
774,341.00 

(774,341.00) 
( 119, 123.00) 

The accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements are an integra l pati of this statement. 
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237,743.95 

(205,767.87) 

445,000.00 

4,725.00 

(90,996.70) 

(56,234.00) 

96 773.44 

$ 431,243.8? 



ASSETS: 

Current Assets: 
Cash and Cash Equivalents 
Accounts Receivab le: 

State 
Federal 
lnterfund 
Other 

In ventories 

Tota l Current Assets 

Noncurrent Assets: 
Equipment 

NEPTUNE CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
Statements of Fund Net Position 

Proprietary Funds 
June 30, 2016 

Less Ace um u lated Depree iation 

Tota l Noncurrent Assets 

Total Assets 

LIABILITIES: 

Current Liabi I ities: 
Accounts Payable 
Prepaid Accounts 

Total Current Liabiliti es 

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES: 

Deferred Commodities Revenue 

Total Deferred In flows of Resources 

NET POSITION: 

Net Investment in Capital Assets 
Unrestricted 

Tota l Net Position 

Exhibit B-4 

Food Service Fund 

I 00,428.15 

116.85 
6,884.58 

24,666.47 
3,979.83 
3,388.28 

139,464. I 6 

74,980.08 
(60,763.14) 

14.216.94 

153,68 I. I 0 

21,598.66 
920.81 

22,519.47 

l J34.44 

1.334.44 

14,2 16.94 
115,610.25 

$ 129,827.19 

The accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements are an integral part of thi s statement. 
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Exhibit 8 -5 
NEPTUNE CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Position 
Proprietary Funds 

For the Fisca l Year Ended June 30, 2016 

OPERA TING REVENUES: 
Local Sources: 

Dai ly Sales - Reimbursable Programs 
Daily Sales - Non-Reimbursab le Programs 
Sate llite Sales - Non-Reimbursable Programs 

Tota l Operating Reve nues 

OPERA TING EXPENSES: 
Food Service Costs: 

Cost of Food 
Wages 
Payrol l Taxes and Benefits 
Insurance 
Supplies 
Miscellaneous 
Management Fee 

Other Expenses: 
Suppli es 
Depreciation 

Tota l Operating Expenses 

Operating Loss 

NON-OPERA TrNG REVENUES: 
State Sources: 

State Schoo l Lunch Program 
Federal Sources: 

National Schoo l Lunch Program 
School Breakfast Program 
Food Distribut ion Program (Non-Cash) 

Interest Earnings 

Tota l Non-Operating Revenues 

Income Before Contributions and Transfers 

Operating Transfer In: Board Contribution 

Change in Net Position 

Total Net Position - July I 

Tota l Net Posi tion - June 30 

Food Serv ice Fund 

29,540.45 
7,990.54 
7,052.55 

44,583.54 

76,83 4.20 
41,553.69 

6,285.87 
4,069.25 
7,049.68 
3,227.87 
8,080.00 

147,100.56 

2,01 l.76 
2,052.32 

151,164.64 

(106,581. 10) 

1,971 .35 

96,358.54 
19,433.95 
l l ,933.80 

189.86 

129,887.50 

23,306.40 

.00 

23,306.40 

106,520.79 

$129,827. 19 

The accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements are an integral part of th is statement. 
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NEPTUNE CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
Statement of Cash Flows 

Proprietary Funds 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2016 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERA TING ACTIVITIES: 
Cash Rece ived from Daily and Satelli te Sa les 
Payments to r ood Service Vendor 
Payments for Other Expenses 

Net Cash Used fo r Operating Activities 

CASH FLOWS FRO!VI NON-CAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES: 
State Reim bursements 
Federal Reimbursements 
Interfunds 

Net Cash Provided by Non-Capital r inancing Activities 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES: 
Interest on Investm ents 
Purchase of Equipment 

Net Cash Prov ided by Investing Activities 

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Cash and Cash Equi va lents - July I 

Cash and Cash Equi va lents - June 30 

Reconciliation of Operating Loss to Net Cash Used for Operating Activities : 
Operating Loss 

Adj ustments to Reconcile Operating Income (Loss) to Net Cash Used 
fo r Operating Acti vities 

Depreciation 
Food Distribution Program - Federal Ass istance (Non-Cash) 
( Increase) Decrease in Inventories 
Increase (Decrease) in Accounts Payabl e 
(Increase) Decrease in Other Accounts Recei vable 
Increase (Decrease) in Prepaid Accounts 

Tota l Adjustments 

Net Cash Used fo r Operating Acti viti es 

Exhibit B-6 

Food Service Fund 

44,173.00 
( 127,112.60) 

(2.01 1.76) 

(84.95 1 .36) 

1,998.53 
116,759.49 

.10 

118.758. 12 

189.86 
(3 ,100.00) 

(2.910.14) 

30,896.62 

69.53 1.53 

$ I 00 .428.1 5 

(106.58 1.10) 

2,052.32 
12,744.29 
(1 ,847.28) 
9,090.95 
(603.02) 
192.48 

21,629.74 

$ (84,951 .36) 

The accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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ASSETS: 

Cash and Cash Equi valents 
Accounts Receivable: 

Payro ll Service Vendor 
lnterfunds 

Tota l Assets 

LIABJLITlES: 

Accounts Payable 
Payro l I Deductions and 

Withholdings 
Due to Student Groups 

Total Liabi li ties 

NET POSITION: 

NEPTUNE CITY SCHOOL DISTIUCT 
Statement of Fiduciary Net Position 

Fiduciary Funds 
June 30, 2016 

U nemployment 
Compensation 

Trust 

134,662.80 

2,083.35 
6 464.11 

143 .210.26 

.00 

.00 

.00 

.00 

Held in Trust for Unemployment 
Claims and Other Purposes 143,2 10.26 

Tota l Net Position $ 143 .210 .26 

The accompanyi ng Notes to Basic Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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Agency 
Fund 

6,648.62 

.00 
5.46 1 .45 

12.110.07 

635 .12 

1,489.1 5 
9,985 .80 

12.11 0.07 



ADDITIONS: 

Contributions: 
Plan Member 
Board Contributions 

Tota l Contributions 

In vestm ent Earnings: 
Interest 

NEPTUNE CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
Statement of Chan~es in Fiduciary Net Position 

Fiduciary Funds 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2016 

Net In vestment Earnings 

Total Additions 

DEDUCTIONS: 

Unemployment Clai ms 

Total Deductions 

Change in Net Position 

Net Position - July I 

Net Position - .June 30 

The acco mpanyin g Notes to Bas ic Financial Statements are an integra l pa,t of this statement. 
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Unemployment 
Compensation 

Trust 

5,652.11 
I 0,000.00 

15,652.11 

503 .54 
503.54 

16.155.65 

8,221. 12 

8.22 1.1 2 

7,934.53 

135.275.73 

$ 143.210.26 
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NEPTUNE CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2016 

NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIG NIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

Jntroductio n 

The Neptun e City Schoo l District is an instrum ental ity of the State of New Jersey, establ ished to function as an educational 
institution. The Board consists of elected offic ials who are responsible fo r the fiscal control of the District. A 
Superintendent is appo inted by the Board and is responsible for the administrative control o f the District. 

The financ ia l statements of the Board of Education of Neptune City School District have been prepared in conformity with 
accounti ng principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP) as app li ed to governmental units. The 
Governmenta l Accou nting Standards Board (GAS B) is the accepted standard-setting body for establishing govern mental 
accounting and financial report ing pri nciples. 

A. Repo1·ting Enti tv: 

The Neptu ne City School Distric t is a Type II di strict located in the County of Monmouth, State of New Jersey. As a Type 
11 dist ric t, the School Distric t functions independently through a Board of Ed ucation. The Board is com prised of nine 
members elected to three year- terms. The purpose of the District is to ed ucate students in grades K-8. 

The primary cri te rion for including acti vities within the District's reporting entity, as set fo1th in Section 2100 of the GASB 
Codification of Governmenta l Accounting and Financ ial Report ing Standards, is whether: 

the organi zation is lega lly separate (can sue or be sued in their own name) 
the district ho lds the corporate powers of the organi zation 
the district appoints a voting majority of the organ ization 's board 
the di strict is ab le to impose its will on the organ ization 
the organization has the potential to impose a financ ial benefit/burden on the district 
there is a fi sca l dependency by the organization on the district 

Based on the aforementioned criteria, the District has no component un its . 

B. New Accounting Standards: 

During fiscal year 20 16, the District adopted the fo llowing GASB statements: 

GAS B Statement No. 72.. Fair Value Jvfeasure111e11t and Application. The objective of th is Statement is to address 
accounting and fi nanc ial reporti ng issues re lated to fa ir val ue measurements. Implementation of this Statement did 
not im pact the Distri ct's financia l statements. 

GASB Statement No. 73, Accounting and Financial Reportingjor Pensions and Related Assets That Are Not Within 
the Scope ofGASB 68, and amendments lo certain Provisions of GA SB Statements 67 and 68. The objective of this 
Statement is to improve the usefulness of infonnation about pensions inc luded in the general purpose external financ ial 
reports of state and loca l governments for making decisions and assessing accountabi li ty. Implementation of thi s 
Statement did not impact the District's financia l statements. 

GAS B Statement No. 76, The HierorchyofGenerol Accepted Accounting Principlesfor State and Loco/ Governments. 
The objecti ve of this Statement is to identify - in the context of the govern menta l financial reportin g environment -
the hierarchy of generally accepted accounti ng principles . Implementat ion of th is Statement did not impact the 
District' s financ ial statements. 

27 



NEPTUNE CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT[NUED) 

JUNE 30, 2016 

NOTE I. SUMMA RY O F SIGNlFlCANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT 'D) 

B. New Accounting Standa1·ds (Cont 'd) : 

Other accounting standards that the District is currently reviewing fo r appl icabi lity and potential impact on the fi nancia l 
statements include: 

GASB Statement No. 74. Financial Reporting/or Poste111ploy111ent Bene.fit Plans Other Than Pension Plans, will be 
effective for the year ended Ju ne 30, 2017. The objective of this Statement is to improve the usefu lness of infonnation 
about postemploymentbenefits other than pensions included in the general purpose external financial reports of state 
and local governmental OPEB plans fo r making decisions and assess ing accountabil ity. The District does not expect 
thi s Statement to impact its fi nancial statements. 

GAS B Statement No. 7 5, Accounting and Financial Reporting.for Poste111ployment Benefits Other Than Pensions, wi 11 
be effective for the year ended June 30.20 18. The prima1y objective of thi s Statement is to improve accounting and 
financia l repo1ting by state and local governments for postemployment benefits other than pensions. The District does 
not expect th is Statement to impact its financial statements. 

GASB Statement No. 77, Tax Abatement Disclosures, wi ll be effective for the year ended June 30, 20 17. The 
objective of th is Statement requ ires governments that enter into tax abatement agreements to disclose information 
about those agreements. The District does not expect this Statement to impact the District's financial statements. 

GASB Statement No. 78. Pensions Provided through Certain Multiple-Employer Defined Benefit Pension Plans, will 
be effective fo r the year ended June 30, 2017. The objective of this Statement is to address a practice issue regarding 
the scope and app licab i I ity of Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting.for Pensions. The District does 
not expect this Statement to impact the District's fi nancial statements. 

GASB Statement No. 79, Certain External Investment Pools and Pool Participants, will be effective for the year ended 
June 30, 20 17. The objective of this Statement is to address accounti ng and financial repo1ting for certa in external 
investment poo ls and pool part icipants. The District does not expect this Statement to im pact the District's fi nanc ial 
statements. 

GASB Statement No. 80, Blending Require111ents.for Certain Component Units - an amendment ofGASB Statement 
No. J ./, will be effec ti ve for the year ended June 30, 20 18. The objective of this Statement is to improve financia l 
reporting by clarifying the financia l statement presentation requirements for certain component units. This Statement 
amends the blend ing requi rements established in paragraph 53 of Statement No 14, The Financial Reporting Entity , 
as amended. The District does not expect this Statement to impact the District' s fi nanc ial statements. 

GASB Statement No. 81 , Irrevocable Split-Interest Agreements, will be effective for the year ended June 30, 2018. 
The object ive of th is Statement is to improve accounting and fi nancial repo1t ing for irrevocable split- interest 
agreements by providing recognition and measurement gu idance for situations in which a government is a beneficiary 
of the agreement. The District does not expect thi s Statement to impact the District's fi nancial statements . 

GASB Statement No. 82, Pension Issues - m, amendment of GASE Statements No. 67, No. 68 and No. 73, wi ll be 
effective for the year ended June 30, 2018. The objective of this Statement is to address ce1tain issues that have been 
raised with respect to Statements No. 67, Financial Reporting.for Pension Plans, No. 68, Accounting and Financial 
Reporting.fin· Pensions, and No. 73, Accounting and Financial Reporting.for Pensions and Related Assets That Are 
Not within the Scope of GASE Statement 68, and Amendments to Certain Provisions of GASB Statements 67 and 68. 
The District has not yet determined the potential impact on the District 's financial statements. 
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NEPTUNE CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STAT EMENTS (CONTINUED) 

JUNE 30, 2016 

NOT E I. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D) 

C. Basis of Presentation, Basis of Accounting: 

The Schoo l District" s basic fina ncial statements consist of District-Wide statements, including a statement of net posit ion 
and a statement of activit ies, and fu nd financial statements which provide a rnore deta iled leve l of fi nancial in fo rmation. 

Basis of Presentation: 

District-Wide State111ents: The statemento fnet position and the statern ent of activities display information about the District 
as a whole. These statements include the fi nancial activities of the overall District, except for fiduciary activities. 
El im inations have been made to 111 inim ize the double-counti ng of interna l activities. These statements distingu ish between 
the governmenta l and business-type activity of the District. Governmenta l activities generally are financed through taxes, 
intergove rnm ental revenues, and other nonexchange transactions. Business-type activities are financed in whole or in part 
by fees charged to externa l parties. 

The statement of net pos ition presents the financial con cl ition of the governmenta l and business-type activity of the School 
District at fi scal year end. The statement of activities presents a com parison between direct expenses and program reven ues 
for the business-type activity of the District and for each function of the District's governmental activities. Direct expenses 
are th ose that are specifica lly associated with a program or function and, therefore, are clearly identifiable to a particular 
function. Program revenues include (a) fees and charges paid by the recipients of goods or serv ices offered by the prograrns 
and (b) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particu lar program. 
Revenues that are not c lassified as program revenues, includ ing al I taxes, are presented as general revenues. The 
comparison of direct expenses with program revenues identifies the extent to wh ich each governmental function or business 
segment is se lf- fi nancing or draws from the genera l revenues of the School Distr ict. 

Fund Financial Statem ents: During the fi scal year, the School District segregates transactions related to certain School 
Distri ct functions or activities in separate fund s in order to aid fi nancial management and to demonstrate legal comp li ance. 
The fu nd fi nancial staternents provide information about the District's fu nd s, includ ing its fiduciary funds. Separate 
statements for each fund category - governmental. proprietmy, andfiducimy - are presented. The New Jersey Department 
of Education (N JDOE) has elected to require New Jersey districts to treat each governmental fund as a major fund in 
accordance with the option noted in GASB Statement No. 34, paragraph 76. The NJ DOE believes that the presentation of 
all fu nds as major is important for public interest and to promote consistency among district financial reporting rnode ls. 

The District reports the fo llowing govern mental funds: 

General Fund : The genera l fu nd is the general operating fu nd of the District and is used to account for all expendab le 
fi nancial resources exce pt those requ ired to be accounted fo r in another fund. Inc luded are certain expenditures fo r 
vehic les and movable instructional or non-instructional equipment which are classified in the capital outlay subfund. 

As required by the NJDOE, the Distri ct includes budgeted capital outlay in this fund . GAAP as it pertains to 
govern mental entities states that general fund resources may be used to directly finance capital outlays for long-lived 
improvern ents as long as the resources in such cases are derived exclusive ly from unrestricted revenues. Resources 
for budgeted capita l outlay purposes are normally derived from State of New Jersey Aid, district taxes, and 
appropriated fund balance. Expenditures are those that resul t in the acquis it ion of or addit ions to fixed assets for land, 
existing bu i Id ings, im provements of ground s, construction of bui Id ings, additions to or remodeling of bui Id ings and 
th e purchase ol' bui lt- in equiprnent. These resources can be transferred from and to Current Expense by Board 
reso lution. 
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NEPTUNE CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

JUNE 30, 20 16 

NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D) 

Special Revenue Fund : The spec ial revenue fu nd is used to account for the proceeds of specific revenue from State 
and Federa l Government, ( other than major capital projects, debt service or the enterprise fund s) and local 
appropriations that are lega lly restricted to expenditures for specified purposes. 

Debt Serv ice Fund : The debt service fund is used to account for the accumu lation ofresources for and the payment 
of princ ipal and interest on bonds issued to fi nance major prope1ty acqu isition, construction and improvement 
programs. 

The District reports the following proprietary fund: 

En tequise (Food Serv ice) Fund: The enterprise fund accounts for all revenues and expenses pertaining to the 
Board's cafeteria operations. The food service fund is uti I ized to account for operations that are financed and operated 
in a manner si milar to private business enterprises. The stated intent is that the cost (ie. expenses includ ing 
depreciation and ind irect costs) of providing goods or services to the students on a continui ng basis are financed or 
recovered primari ly through user charges. 

Additionally, the District reports the fo llowi ng fund type: 

Fiduciary Funds : The Fiduciary Funds are used to account for assets held by the District on behalf of others and 
includes the Student Activities Fund, Payrol I Agency Fund and Unemployment Compensation Insurance Trust Fund. 

Basis of Accounting: 

Basis of accounting determines when transactions are recorded in the financia l records and reported on the financial 
statements. 

District-Wide, Proprietm:y. and Fiducimy Fund Financial State111ents: The District-Wide fi nancial statements are prepared 
using the accrual basis of accounting. Governmenta l funds use the mod ified accrual basis ofaccounting; the enterprise fund 
and fiduciary funds use the accrual basis of accounting. Differences in the accrual and modified accrual bas is of accounting 
arise in the recogni tion of revenue, the record ing of deferred revenue, and in the presentation of expenses versus 
expend itures. Ad Va lorem (Prope1ty) Taxes are suscepti ble to accrual as under New Jersey State Statute a municipal ity 
is requi red to remit to its school district the entire balance of taxes in the amount voted upon or certified , prior to the end 
of the schoo l year. The District records the entire approved tax levy as revenue (accrued) at the sta1t of the fiscal year, since 
the revenue is both measurable and ava ilable. The District is entitled to receive monies under the established payment 
schedule and the unpaid amount is considered to be an "accounts rece ivable". Revenue from grants, entitlements, and 
donations is recognized in the fisca l year in which all el igibi li ty requ irements have been satisfied. 

Govemmental Fund Financial Stafelllents: Governmental funds are reported using the current financia l resources 
measurement focus and the modifi ed accrual basis of accounting. Under this method, revenues are recognized when 
measurable and avai lable. " Measurable'· means the amount of the transaction can be determined and "ava ilable" means 
co llectib le with in the current period or soon enough thereafter to be used to pay liab ilities of the current period. 
Expend itures are recorded when the related fund liability is incurred , except for principal and interest on general long-term 
debt, claims and judgments, and compensated absences, which are recognized as expenditures to the extent they have 
matu red. General capital asset acquisitions are repo1ted as expenditures in governmental funds. Proceeds of general long­
term debt and acquisitions under capital leases are repo1ted as other fi nancing sources. 

Al I govern mental and business-type activities and enterprise funds of the District follow F ASB Statements and 
Interpretations issued on or before November 30, 1989, Accounting Principles Board Opinions, and Accounting Research 
Bulleti ns, unless those pronouncements confl ict with GASB pronouncements. 
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NEPTUNE CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

JUNE 30, 20 16 

NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {CONT'D) 

D. B ud gcts/Budgetarv Contrnl : 

An nual appropriated budgets are prepared in the spring of each year for the general, special revenue, and debt service funds. 
The budgets are submitted to the county o ffice for approval and are voted upon at the annual school election 011 the th ird 
Tuesday in April. The Board voted to adopt P.L. 200 I c .202 effective January 17, 20 12, which el iminated the annual voter 
re ferendum on budgets which meet the statutory tax levy cap lim itations and the board of education members are e lected 
at the November general election. Budgets are prepared using the modi fi ed accrua l basis of accounting except for the 
special revenue fu nd as descri bed later. The legal level of budgetary control is establ ished at line item accounts within each 
l'und . Li ne item accounts are defined as the lowest (most spec ific) level of deta il as established pursuant to the minimum 
chart of accounts referenced in N.J.A.C. 6:20-2A.2(m) 1. 

All budget amendments/transfers must be approved by School Board resolution. All budget amounts presented in the 
accompany ing supplementary information reflect the original budget and the amended budget (which have been adj usted 
for lega lly authorized rev is ions of the annua l budgets during the year). 

Formal budgetary integration into the accounti ng system is employed as a management control dev ice during the year. For 
governmental funds, there are no substantial differences between the budgetary basis of accounting and GAAP with the 
exception of the legal ly mandated revenue recognition of the last state aid payment fo r budgetary purposes only and the 
spec ial revenue fund as presented in the Notes to Requi red Supplementary Inform ation. Encumbrance accounting is also 
employed as an extension of forma l budgetary integration in the governmenta l fu nd types. Unencumbered appropriations 
lapse at yea r end. 
The accounting records of the special revenue fund are maintained on the grant accounting budgetary basis. The grant 
accounting budgetary bas is differs from GAA P in that the grant accounting budgetary basis recogni zes encumbrances as 
expenditures and also recogn izes the related revenues, whereas the GAAP basis does not. Suffic ient supplemental records 
are ma inta ined to al low for the presentation of GAAP bas is fi nancial reports. 

E. E nc umbrnnces: 

Under encumbrance accounti ng, purchase orders, contracts, and other comm itments for the expend iture of resources are 
recorded to reserve a portion of the applicable appropriation. Open encumbrances in Governmental Funds, other than the 
Special Revenue Fund, are reported as reservations of fund balances at fiscal year end as they do not constitute expenditures 
or liabi lities but rather comm itments re lated to unperformed contracts for goods and service. 

Open encumbrances in the Special Revenue Fund, for which the District has received advances, are reflected in the balance 
sheet as unearned revenues at fi sca l year end. 

The encumbered appropriation carries over into the next fisca l year. An entry wi ll be made at the beginning of the next 
fi sca l year to increase the appropriation reflected in the ce1t ified budget by the outstanding encumbrance amount as of the 
current fisca l year end. 

F. Assets, Lia bilities, Deferred O utflows/Inflows of Resources, and Net Position/ Fu nd Bala nce : 

Cash. Cash Equivalents, and Investments: 

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in banks and al l highly liqu id investments with a maturity of three months or less 
at the time of purchase and are stated at cost plus acc rued interest. The Board classifies ce1tificates of deposit which have 
maturity dates of less than three months from date of purchase as investments and are stated at cost. 
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NEPTUNE CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

JUNE 30, 2016 

NOTE l. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D) 

F. Assets, Liabilities, Deferred Outnows/Inllows of Resources, and Net Position/Fund Balance (Cont'd) : 

Cash. Cash Equivalents. and Investm ents (Cont'd): 

New .Jersey schoo l districts are limited as to the types of investments and types of financial institutions they may invest in . 
New Jersey Statute I 8A:20-3 7 prov ides a list of permissible in vestments that may be purchased by New Jersey school 
districts. Additiona lly, the District has adopted a cash management plan that requires it to deposit public funds in public 
depositories protected from loss under the provisions of the Gove rnmental Unit Deposit Protection Act (GUDPA ). GUDPA 
was enacted in 1970 to protect Govern mental Units from a loss of funds on depos it with a fa iled banking instituti on in New 
Je rsey. 

N .J .S.A. I 7 :9-41 et. seq . cstabl is hes the requirements fo r the security of depos its of governmental units. The statute requires 
that no governmental unit sha ll deposit public funds in a depository unless such funds are secured in accordance with the 
Act. Public depositories inc lude Savings and Loan institutions, banks (both state and national banks) and savings ban ks 
the depos its of which are federally insured. All public depositories must pledge col lateral, having a market value of at least 
equal to five percent of the average daily balance of co llected public funds, to secure the depos its of Governmental Units. 
lf a public depository fails, the collatera l it has pledged, plus the collateral of a ll other public depositories, is avai lable to 
pay the full amount of the ir deposits to the Governmental Units. 

lnterfund Transactio ns: 

Transfers between governm ental and business-type activities on the Distri ct-Wide statements are reported in the same 
manner as general revenues. Flows of cash or goods from one fund to another without a requirement for repayment are 
reported as ln terfund transfers. lnterfund transfers are reported as other financing sources/uses in governmental funds and 
as non-operating revenues/expenses in the enterprise fund. Repayments from funds responsible for particular 
expenditures/expenses to the funds that initially paid for them are not presented on the financial statements. 

On fu nd financ ial statements, short-term interfund loans are class ified as interfund receivables/payables. These amounts 
are e liminated in the statement of net position, except for am ounts due between governmental and business-type activities 
or governmental and agency funds, which are presented as internal balances. 

Bond Prem iums 

Bond premiums arising from the issuance of long-term debt (bonds) are amortized over th e life of the bonds, in systematic 
and rational method, as a component of interest expense. Bond prem iums are presented as an adjustment of the face amount 
of the bonds on the government-wide statement of net position . 

Allowa nce for Uncollectible Accounts: 

No allowance for unco llectible accounts has been recorded as all amounts are considered col lectible. 

Inventories: 

Inventory purchases, other than those recorded in the enterprise fund, are recorded as expenditures during the year of 
purchase. Enterprise fund inventori es are valued at cost, which approximates market, using the first-in/first-out (FIFO) 
method. 

Capital Assets: 

The District has establi shed a form al system of accounting for its capital assets. Purchased or constructed capital assets 
are reported at cost. Donated capita l assets are va lued at their estimated fair market va lue on the elate received. The general 
fixed assets acquired or constructed prior to June 30, 1992 are val ued at cost based on hi storical records or through 
estimation procedures performed by an independent appraisal company. The cost of normal maintenance and repairs is not 
capita lized . The School District does not possess any infrastructure. The capitalization threshold used by school districts 
in the State of New Jersey is $2,000.00. 
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NEPTUNE CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

JUNE 30, 2016 

NOTE I. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D) 

F. Assets, Liabilities, Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources, and Net Position/Fund Balance (Cont'd): 

Capital Assets (Cont ' d): 

All reported capital assets except for land and construction in progress are deprec iated. Depreciation is computed using 
the straight-line method under th e half-year convention over the fol lowing estimated usefu l lives: 

Asset Class 

School Bui ldings 
Building Improvements 

Land Im provements 
Office & Computer Equ ipment 

Furni ture 
Other Equ ipment 

Trucks 

Estimated 
Useful Lives 

50 
20 
20 

5 
10 
10 
5 

In the fund financial statements, fixed assets used in government fund operations are accounted for as capital outlay 
expenditures of the govern mental fund upon acqu isition. Fi xed assets are not capita lized and related depreciation is not 
reported in the fund financial statements. 

Unearned Revenue: 

Unearned revenue in the spec ial revenue fund represents cash that has been received but not yet earned. 

Accrued Liabil ities and Long-Term Obli gations: 

A 11 payables, accrued I iab i I ities, and long-term obli gations are repo1ted on the District-Wide financial statements. In 
genera l, governmenta l fund payables and accrued liabilities that, once incurred, are paid in a timely manner and in fu ll from 
current fi nancial resources are reported as ob li gations of the fund s. Bonds are recogni zed as a liabi li ty on the fund financi al 
statements when due. 

Accrued Liabilities and Long-Term Obligations: 

Al l payables, accrued li abili ties, and long-term obligations are reported on the District-Wide financial statements. In 
general , governm ental fund payables and accrued liabi lities that, once incurred, are paid in a timely manner and in full from 
current financ ial resources are reported as obligations of the fund s. Bonds are recognized as a liabi lity on the fu nd financia l 
statements when due. 

Net Position: 

Net posit ion represent the difference between the summation of assets and deferred outfl ows of resources, and the 
summation of I iabi Ii ties and deferred in fl ows of resources Net position invested in capital assets, net of related debt consists 
of cap ita l assets, net of accumulated depreciation, reduced by the outstand ing balance of any borrowing used for the 
acqui sition, construction, or improvement of those assets. 
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NEPTUNE CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {CONTINUED) 

JUNE 30, 20 16 

NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF S IGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {CONT'D) 

F. Assets, Liabili ties, D eferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources, and Net Position/Fund Balance {Cont'd): 

fund Balance: 

Begin ning with the fi scal year 2011. the District implemented GAS B Statement No. 54 ·T und Balance Reporting and 
Governmental Fund Type Defini tion'' . The School District reports fu nd balance in class ifications that comprise a hierarchy 
based primarily on the extent to which the School District is bound to honor constraints on the specifi c purposes for whi ch 
amounts in those funds can be spent. The School District' s class ifications, and policies for determ ini ng such c lassifications, 
are as follows: 

Nonspcndablc - The nonspendable fu nd balance c lassificat ion inc ludes amounts that cannot be spent because they are 
e ither not in spendable form or are lega lly or contractua lly requi red to be mainta ined intact. The "not in spendable 
form'· criterion inc ludes items that are not expected to be converted to cash, such as inventories and prepaid amounts. 

Restricted - The restricted fund balance classification includes amounts that are restricted to specific purposes. Such 
restrictions, or constra ints, are placed on the use of resources e ither by being( !) externally imposed by creditors, 
grantors. contributors. or laws or regulations of other governments; or (2) imposed by law th rough constitutiona l 
provisions or enabling legislation. 

Committed - The committed fund balance classificat ion inc ludes amounts that can only be used for specific purposes 
pursuant to constra ints imposed by formal action of the School District ' s hi ghest level of decision-making·authority, 
which. fo r th e Schoo l District, is the Board of Education. Such formal act ion consists of an affi rmative vote by the 
Board of Educatio n, memori alized by the adoption of a resolut ion. Once committ ed, amounts cannot be used for any 
other purpose unl ess the Board of Education removes, or changes, the specifi ed use by taking the same type of action 
(resolution) it employed to prev iously comm it these amounts. 

Assigned - The ass igned fund balance class ifi cation inc ludes amounts that are constrained by the Schoo l Distr ict's intent 
to be used for specific purposes, but are neither restricted nor comm itted. Intent is expressed by either the Board of 
Education or by the business administrator, to which the Boa rd of Education has delegated the authority to assign 
amounts to be used for specifi c purposes . Such authori ty of the business administrator is establ ished by way of a formal 
job description fo r the position, approved by the Board of Education. 

Unass igned - The unass igned fund ba lance classifi cation is the residual classification for the genera l fu nd. This 
classification represents fund ba lance that has not been ass igned to other funds and that has not been restricted, 
committed, or ass igned to specifi c purposes withi n the general fund. The general fund is the only fu nd that reports a 
positive unass igned fund balance amount. In other governmenta l funds, if expenditures incurred fo r spec ific purposes 
exceed the amounts restricted, co mm itted, or assigned to those purposes, it may be necessary to repo1t a negative 
unassigned fund balance. 

When an expend iture is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted fund balances are avai lable, it is 
the policy of the School District to spend restricted fund balance first. Moreover, when an expenditure is incurred for 
purposes fo r which amou nts in any o f the unrestr icted fund balance class ifi cat ions can be used, it is the policy of the Schoo l 
Distr ict to spend fu nd ba lances, if appropriate, in the fo ll owing order: committed, ass igned, then unass igned. 

Deferred Outll ows/ln flows of Resources: 

In addition to assets, the statement of net position will sometimes report a separate section fo r deferred outflows of 
resources. Thi s separate financial statement element, deferred outflows of resources, represents a consumption of net 
position that app li es to a future period and so wil l not be recognized as an outflow ofresources ( expense/expenditure) until 
then . The District has two items that qua! ify for reporti ng in th is category, deferred loss on refu nd ing of debt and deferred 
outflows related to pensions. 
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NEPTUNE CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

JUNE 30, 2016 

NOTE I. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D} 

F. Assets, Liabilities, Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources, and Net Position/Fund Balance (Cont'd) : 

Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources (Cont' d): 

In addition to li ab ilities, th e statement of net position wi ll sometimes repo11 a separate section for deferred inflows of 
resources. Th is separate financia I statement element, deferred in.flows o,fresources, represents an acquisition of net position 
th at applies to a future period and so wi II not be recognized as an in flow ofresources (revenue) unti I that time. The District 
has two items, deferred inflows related to pensions and deferred commodities revenue, that qualify for repo11ing in this 
category. The latter item is reported in both the district-wide and the propriety funds statements of net position. The 
deferred commodities revenue represents the estimated market value of the donated and unused Federal commodities at year 
end. This amount is deferred and recognized as an inflow of resources in the period the commodities are consumed. 

Revenues - Exchange and Nonexchange Transaction s: 

Revenue resulting from exchange transactions, in which each pa11Y gives and receives essential ly equal value, is recorded 
on the accrua l basis when the exchange takes place. On the modified accrual basis, revenue is recorded in the fi scal year 
in which the resources are measurable and become avai lable. Avai lable means the resources will be collected within the 
current fi scal year or are expected to be collected soon enough thereafter to be used to pay liabilities of the current fiscal 
year. For the District, available means within sixty days of the fi scal year-end. 

Nonexchange transactions, in which the School District receives value without directly giving equal value in return, include 
property taxes, income taxes, grants, entitlements and donations. On the accrual basis, revenue from property taxes is 
recognized in the fi scal year for which the taxes are levied. Revenue from income taxes is recognized in the period in which 
the income is earned. Revenue from grants, entitlements, and donations is recognized in the fi scal year in which all 
el igibility requi rements have been satisfied. Eligibility requirements include timing requirements, wh ich specify the year 
when the resources are required to be used or the fiscal year when use is first permitted; matching requirements, in which 
the School District must provide local reso urces to be used for a specified purpose; and expenditure requirements, in which 
the resources are provided to the School District on a reimbursement basis. On the modified accrual basis, revenue from 
nonexchange transactions must also be available before it can be recognized. 

Under the modi fied accrual basis, the following revenue sources are considered to be both measurable and available at fi scal 
year-end: property taxes available as an advance, interest and tuition. 

Operating Revenue and Expenses: 

Operating revenues are those revenues that are generated directly from the primary acti vity of the enterprise fund. For the 
School District, these revenues are sales for food service. Operating expenses are necessary costs incurred to provide the 
se rvice that is the primary activity of the enterprise fund. 

Allocation of Indirect Expenses: 

The District reports all direct expenses by function in the Statement of Activities. Direct expenses are those that are clearly 
identifiable with a function . Indirect expenses are allocated to functions but are reported separately in the Statement of 
Activities. Employee benefits, incl ud ing the employer's share of soc ial security, workers compensation and medical and 
pension benefits, were allocated based on salaries of that program. Depreciation expense, where practicable, is specifically 
identified by function and is included in the direct expense column of the Statement of Activities. Depreciation expense, 
that could not be attributed to a specific function is repo11ed separately on the Statement of Activities. 
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NEPTUNE CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

JUNE 30, 2016 

NOTE t. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D) 

F. Assets, Liabilities, Dererred Outflows/Inflows or Resources, and Net Position/Fund Balance (Cont'd): 

Management Estimates: 

The preparation of financial statements incon fo rmity with GAAP requires managementto make estimates and assumptions 
that affect the reported amounts of revenues and expendi tures/expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could 
differ from those estimates. 

NOTE 2. CASH AND CASH EQUIV A LENTS AND INVESTMENTS 

The District is governed by the depos it and investment limitations of New Jersey state law. The deposits and investments 
held at June 30, 2016, and reported at fair value, are as fo llows: 

Deposits: 
Demand Deposits 

Investments: 
None 

Total deposits and investments 

Ratini: 

Reconciliation of Statement of Net Position 
Current: 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 
Restricted: 

Capital Reserve Account 

Maturities 
Carrying 

Value 

1,343,503. 18 

.00 

$1.343.503 .18 

1,332,141.82 

11.361.36 
$1 .343.503.18 

Custodial Credit Risk - Deposits in financia l institutions, reported as components of cash, cash equivalents, and 
investm ents had a bank balance of $1 ,084,295 .1 8 at June 30, 2016. Of the bank balance $500,000.00 was full y in sured by 
depository in surance and $479,5 4 1.05 was secured by a co llateral pool he ld by the bank, but not in the District 's name, as 
required by New Jersey statutes. 

I nvestmcnt Interest Rate Risk - The District has no fo rmal in vestment policy that limits investment maturities as a means 
of managing its exposure to fair value losses aris ing from increasi ng interest ra tes. 

Investment Credit Risk - The District has no investment policy that limits its investment choices other than the limitation 
of state law as fol lows: 

I. Bonds or other obligations of the Uni ted States of America or obligations guaranteed by the United States of 
America; 

2. Governm ent money market mutual funds; 
3. Any obli gation that a federa l agency or federal instrumentality has issued in accordance with an act of Congress, 

which security has a maturity date not greater than 397 days from the date of purchase, provided that such 
obligations bear a fixed rate of interest not dependent on any index or other external factor. 

4. Bonds or other obligations of the schoo l district or bonds or other obligations of the local unit or units with in which 
the school district is located; 

5. Bonds or other obligations, havi ng a maturi ty date o f not more than 397 days from the date of purchase, approved 
by th e Di vision o f In vestment in the Department of Treasury fo r investment by school district; 
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NE PTUNE CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
NOTES TO THE F INANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

JUNE 30, 201 6 

NOTE 2. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND INVESTMENTS (CONT'D) 

Inves tment Credit R isk (Co nt'd): 

6. Loca l govern ments investment poo ls; 
7. Deposits with the State of New Jersey Cash Management Fund established pursuant to section 1 of P.L. 1977, c.28 1; 

or 
8. Agreements for the repurc hase of fully co llateral ized securities. 

Concentra tion of Investment C redit Risk - The District places no limit on the amount it may invest in any one issuer. 
At June 30, 2016. the District had no investments. 

NOTE 3. CAPITAL RESERVE ACCOUNT 

A capita l reserve account was estab li shed by the Borough of Neptune City Board of Educat ion by inclusion of $1.00 on 
September 26. 2000 for the accumu lation of fu nds for use as capital outlay expenditures in subsequent fisca l years. The 
ca pital reserve account is maintained in the general fu nd and its activity is included in the general fund annual budget. 

Funds placed in the capital reserve account are restr icted to capital projects in the district 's approved Long Range Facil ities 
Plan (LRFP). Upon subm ission of the LRFP to the department, a district may increase the balance in the capital reserve 
by appropriating funds in the annual general fund budget ce1tified for taxes or by transfer by board resolution at year end 
of any unanticipated revenue or unexpended line-item appropriation amounts, or both .. A district may also appropriate 
add itiona l amounts when the express approval of the voters has been obtained either by a separate proposal at budget time 
or by a spec ial question at one of the four spec ial elections authorized pursuant to NJS.A. 19:60-2. Pursuant to NJA.C. 
6:23 A-5. I ( cl ) 7. the ba lance in the account cannot at any time exceed the local suppo1t costs of uncompleted capital projects 
in its approved LRFP. 

The activity of the cap ita l reserve for the Ju ly 1, 20 15 to June 30, 20 16 fiscal year is as follows: 

Beginning balance, Ju ly I, 2015 
Interest earn ings 
Depos its 

Approved by budget 
Withdrawals 

Board reso lution 
Endi ng ba lance, Ju ne 30, 2016 

NOTE 4. RECEIVABLES 

$11,3 16.01 
45.35 

.00 

.00 
$11.361.36 

Receivables at June 30, 20 16, cons isted of interfu ncl and intergovernmental accounts. All receivables are considered 
co ll ectible in fu ll . A summary of the princ ipal items of receivables fo llows: 

State Aid 
Federa l Aid 
lnterfunds 
Other 
Gross Rece ivables 
Less: All owance for Unco llectibles 

Total Receivables, Net 

Governmental 
Fund Fi nancial 

Statements 
I 89, 122.49 
55,775.00 
4,788.23 

.00 
249,685.72 

.00 
$249,685.72 
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District-Wide 
Financial 

S tatements 
189,239.34 
62,659.58 
24,666.47 

3.979.83 
280,545 .22 

.00 
280.545.22 



NEPTUNE CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {CONTINUED) 

JUNE 30, 2016 

NOTE 5. CA PIT AL ASSETS 

Capita l asset activity for the fisca l year ended June 30, 2016, was as follows: 

Governmental Activities: 
Capital assets not be ing depreciated: 

Land 
Total 

Capital assets being depreciated: 
Site improvements 
Build ing and building improvements 
Machinery and equ ipment 
Truck 

Total capital assets be ing deprec iated 
Total at historical cost 

Less accumulated depreciation fo r: 
Site Improvements 
Bui lding and improvements 
Machinery and equipment 
Truck 

Tota l accumulated depreciation 

Governmental activity capita l assets, net 

Business-Type Activities: 
Capital assets being depreciated: 

Equipment 
Less accumulated depreciation 

Enterprise fund capita l assets, net 

Beginning 
Balance 

30.000.00 
30.000.00 

22 ,325.00 
11,453,549.38 

398,637.67 
5.000.00 

I 1.876.512.05 
11.909.512.05 

(22,325.00) 
(I , 765,515.26) 

(386,795.97) 
(5.000.00) 

{2. 179.636.23) 

$ 9,729,875.82 

71 ,880.08 
{58.710.8..,) 

$ 13.169.26 

Transfers or 
Additions 

.00 

.00 

.00 

.00 

.00 

.00 

.00 

.00 

(.00) 
(204,407.67) 

(1 ,360.20) 
(.00) 

{205.767.87) 

(?05.767.87) 

3, 100.00 
{2.052.32) 

1.047.68 

Depreciation expense was charged to the following governmental programs: 

Instruction 
Support Services - Administration 
Operation and Ma intenance of Plant Serv ices 
Unallocated 
Tota l 

6. LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS 

138.85 
539.20 
821.00 

204,268.82 
$205.767.87 

Transfers or 
Retirements 

.00 

.00 

.00 

.00 

.00 

.00 

.00 

.00 

.00 

.00 

.00 

.00 

.00 

.00 

.00 

.00 

.00 

Ending 
Balance 

30.000.00 
30,000.00 

22,325.00 
11,453 ,549.38 

398,637.67 
5.000.00 

l l .879,512.05 
11.909.512.05 

(22,325.00) 
(1 ,969,922.93) 

(388,156.17) 
{5 ,000.00) 

{2.385.404.1 0) 

9.524.107.95 

74,980.08 
{60.763.14) 

14,216.94 

Bonds are authorized in accordance with State law by the voters of the District through referendum s. All bonds are reti red 
in serial in sta llments within the statutory period of usefulness. Bonds issued by the District are general obligation bonds. 

A. Long-Term Obligation Activity: 

Change in long-term obligations for the year ended June 30, 2016, are as follows: 

Amounts 
Balance Balance Due Within 

.Julv 1, 2015 Increases Decreases .June 30, 2016 One Year 
Bond s Payable 6,760,000.00 5,710,000.00 (6,300,000.00) 6, 170,000.00 525,000.00 
Add: Unamortized Premium .00 357. 102.95 .00 357, l 02.95 .00 
Bonds Payable, Net 6,760,000.00 6,067, l 02.95 (6,300,000.00) 6,527,102.95 525,000.00 
Com pen sated absences 73,050.00 7,500.00 ( 12,225.00) 68,325.00 13,325.00 
Net Pension Liabi lity 1,404.956.00 237,105.00 (.00) l ,642.06 1.00 .00 

$8.238.006.00 6J 11 707.95 (6.312.225.00) 8.23 7.488.95 538.325.00 
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JUNE 30, 2016 

6. LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS (CONT'D) 

For governmental activities, the liability fo r compensated absences are generally liquidated by the genera l fund. 

2006 School District Bonds 
2016 Refunding Bonds 
Total Bonds 

B. Debt Service Requirements: 

Issue 
Date 

06/01 /2006 
05/1 1/2016 

Government Activities 

Interest 
Rates 

4.125%-4.200% 
3.000% 

Date of 
Maturity 

07/15/2016 
01 /15/2027 

Princ ipal and interest on bonds payable at .June 30, 2016 are as fo llows: 

Fiscal Year Ending 
June 30 Principal Interest 

201 7 525,000.00 124 ,6 15.83 
2018 490,000.00 162,000.00 
2019 505,000.00 147,075.00 
2020 520,000.00 131 ,700.00 

202 1-2025 2,855,000.00 410,625.00 
2026-2027 1.275,000.00 38.475.00 

$6.1 70.000.00 1.01 4.490. 83 

Pi-incipal 
Balance 

June 30 2016 
460,000.00 

5.710.000.00 
$6. 170.000.00 

Total 
649,615.83 
652,000.00 
652,075.00 
65 1,700.00 

3,265,625.00 
1.31 3.475.00 
7.184.490.83 

C. Bonds Authorized But Not Issued: The District has 110 authorized but not issued bonds at June 30, 2016. 

D. Long-Term Debt Defeasance: On May I I, 2016, the District issued refunding bonds in the amount of $5,7 10,000.00. 
The bonds were issued to refund $5,855,000.00 of its June 1, 2006 School District Bond s and pay issuance costs. The 
re fundin g bond bear an interest of 3 .00% with principal maturities clue July 15, 2027. 

As a result of the above transact ion, the $5 ,855,000.00 of the 2006 District Schoo l Bond issue is cons idered to be def eased 
and the liability for this debt has been removed from the governmental activiti es column of the statement of Net Pos ition. 
The reacquisit ion pri ce exceeded the net carry ing amount of the old debt by $ 12 1,106.25. This amount has been reported 
as a Deferred Outflow of Resources 011 the financia l statements and will be amortized over the remaining life of the new 
debt issued . The re funding program dec reased tota l debt service by $679,859.20 and resulted in a net present val ue 
economic savings of $615 ,462.79. The economic sav ings is the difference between the present va lues of the debt service 
payments on the old and new debt. 

NOTE 7. FUND BALANCE APPROPRIATED 

General Fund - Of the $ 1, I 04,6 15.61 General Fund fund balance at June 30, 2016 , $366,255.54 has been restricted for 
excess surplus; $343,355. IO has been restricted for excess surplus at June 30, 20 15 and has been appropriated and included 
as antic ipated revenue fo r the year ending June 30, 201 7; $ 11,361 .36 has been restricted for the Capital Reserve Account; 
$3 ,590.71 of encumbrances for outstanding purchase orders have been ass igned for other purposes; $ 14 7,71 1.90 has been 
assigned to be des ignated for subsequent year ' s expenditures and included as anticipated revenue for the year ending Jun e 
30. 2017; and $232,34 1.00 is unass igned. 

NOTE 8. CALCULATION OF EXCESS SURPLUS 

111 accordance with N .J .S.A. I 8A:7F-7, as amended by P.L. 2004, c. 73 (S 170 I ), the des ignation for Restricted Fund Balance­
Excess Surplu s is a required calculation pursuant to the New Jersey Comprehensive Educational Improvement and 
Financing Act of 1997 (CE! FA). New Jersey school districts are required to reserve General Fund fund balance at the fi scal 
year end of June 30, if they did not appropriate a required minimum amount as budgeted fund balance in their subsequent 
yea rs' budget. The excess fund balance at June 30, 20 16 is $3 66,255.54. 
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NEPTUNE CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

JUNE 30, 2016 

NOTE 9. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 

Grant Programs: 

The School District parti cipates in federa l awards and state fina ncial ass istance grant programs. These programs are subject 
to program compl iance audits by the granters or their representatives. The School District is potentially liable for 
expenditures which may be disallowed pursuant to the terms of these grant programs. Management is not aware of any 
material items of noncompl iance which would result in the disallowance of program expenditures. 

NOTE I 0. PENSION PLANS 

Description of Plans - All requ ired employees of the District are covered by either the Public Employees' Retirement 
System or the Teachers' Pension and Annuity Fund which have been established by state statute and are administered by 
the New Jersey Division of Pension and Benefits (Divis ion). According to the State of New Jersey Admini strative Code, 
all obligations of both Systems will be assumed by the State of New Jersey should the Systems terminate. The Division 
iss ues a publicly available financial report that includes the financial statements and required supplementary information 
for the Public Employees· Retirement System and the Teachers' Pension and Annuity Fund. These reports may be obtained 
by wri ting to the Di vision of Pension and Benefits, PO Box 295, Trenton, New Jersey, 08625 or on the internet at 
http:/ /www.state. n j. us/treasu rv/pens ions/annrprts.sh tm I. 

Tcache1·s' Pension and Annuity Fund (TPAF) - The Teachers' Pension and Annuity Fund (TPAF) was established as of 
January I, 1955, under the provisions of N.J.S .A. 18A:66 to provide reti rement benefits, death, disability and medical 
benefits to certa in qualified members. The Teachers' Pension and Annuity Fund is considered a cost-sharing multiple­
employer plan with a special funding situation , as under current statute, 100% of employer contributions are made by the 
State of New Jersey on behalf of the District and the system 's other related non-contributi ng employers. Membership is 
mandatory for substantially a ll teachers or members of the professional staff certified by the State Board of Examiners, and 
employees of the Department of Education who have titles that are unclassified, professional and certified . 

Sw11111my ofSignif7cant Accounting Policies - For purpose of measuring the net pension liabi lity, deferred outflows of 
resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net 
position of the Teachers ' Pension and Annuity Fund (TPAF) and additions to/deductions from the TPAF 's fiduciary net 
positi on have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by the TPAF. For th is purpose, benefit payments 
( including re fonds of employee contributions) are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. 
Investm ents are reported at fai r val ue. 

Pension Liabilities. Pension Expense, and Deferred Outjlows o,fResources and Deferred !njlows of Resources Related to 
Pensions 

The employer contributions for the district are legally required to be funded by the State in accordance with N.J.S.A. l 8:66-
33 . Therefore, the district ( employer) is considered to be in a special funding situation as defined by GASS Statement No. 
68 and the State is treated as a nonemployer contributing entity. Since the district (employer) does not contribute di rectly 
to the plan ( except for employer spec i fie financed amounts), there is no net pension I iabi I ity or deferred outflows or inflows 
to report in the financial statements of the district. However, the state 's portion of the net pension liability that was 
associated with the district was $ 12,681,851 as measured on June 30, 2015. 

For the year ended.June 30, 2016, the District recogni::.ed pension expense of$77./,3./ land revenue of$77./,341 for support 
provided by the State. The measurement period for the pension e,,pense and revenue reported in the district 's j111ancial 
statements (A -2) at June 30, 2016 is based upon changes in the collective net pension liability with a measurement period 
cf.June 30, 201./ through June 30, 201 j . Accordingly, the p ension expense and the related revenue associaled with the 
support provided by the State is based upon the changes in the collective net pension liability between July 1, 2014 and June 
30, 20lj, 
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NEPTUNE CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
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JUNE 30, 2016 

NOTE 10. PENSION PLANS (CONT'D) 

Teachers' Pension and Annuity Fund (TPAF) (Cont'd) 

A I though the district does not report net pension I iabi I ity or deferred outflows or inflows related to the TPAF, the fo l lowing 
schedule illustrates the collecti ve net pension I iab i I ity and deferred items and the State' s portion of the net pension I iabil ity 
associated with the di strict. The collec tive amounts are the total of all New Jersey loca l governments partic ipating in the 
TPAF plan. 

Collecti ve deferred outflows of resources 
Collective deferred inflows of resources 
Col lective net pension liability (Nonemployer-

State of New Jersey) 
State "s portion of the net pension liability that 

was associated with the district 
State 's porti on of the net pension liabi li ty that 
,vas associated with the district as a percentage 
of the co llecti ve net pension liabili ty 

06/30/2014 

$2,306,623,861 
1,763,205 ,593 

$53,446,745 ,367 

I 0,556,769 

0.0197519398% 

06/30/2015 

$7,521 ,378,257 
554,399,005 

63 ,204,270,305 

12,681 ,85 1 

0.0200648642% 

Actuarial assw11plio11s-The total pension liabili ty for the June 30, 2015 measurement date was determined by an actuarial 
valuation as of July I, 2014, which was rolled forwa rd to June 30, 201 5. This actuarial valuation used the fol lowing 
actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods in the measurem ent: 

Inflation: 
Sa lary Increases: 
Investment Rate of Return : 

2.50% 
Varies based on experience 
7.90% 

Mortali ty rates were based on the R.P-2000 Health Annuitant Mortality Table for Males or Females, as appropriate, with 
adj ustments fo r mo11a li ty improvements based on Scale AA. Pre-retirement mortality improvements for active mem bers 
are projected using Scale AA from the base year of 2000 until the valuation date plus 15 years to account for future 
morta lity improvement. Post-re tirement mortality improvements for non-disabled annuitants are projected using Scale AA 
from the base year o f 2000 for males and 2003 for fema les until the valuation date plus 7 years to account fo r future 
mortality improvement. 

The actuarial assumptions used in the July 1, 2014 va luation were based on the results of an actuarial experience study fo r 
the period July I, 2009 to June 30, 20 12. 
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JUNE 30, 2016 

NOTE 10. PENSION PLANS (CONT'D) 

Teachers' Pension and Annuitv Fund (TPAF) (Cont'd) 

Long-Term Expected Rate of Retum - In accordance with State statute, the long-term expected rate of return on plan 
in vestments (7 .90% at June 30, 2015) is determined by the State Treasurer, after consultation with the Directors of the 
Division of Investments and Di vision of Pension and Benefits, the board of trustees and the actuaries. Best estimates of 
arithmetic real rates o f return for each major asset class included in TPAF ' s target asset allocation as of June 30, 2015 are 
summarized in the foll owing table: 

Long-Term Expected 
Asset Class Target Allocation Real Rate of Return 
US Cash 5.00% 0.53% 
US Government Bonds 1.75% 1.39% 
US Credit Bonds 13.50% 2.72% 
US Mortgages 2.10% 1.47% 
US Inflat ion- Indexed Bonds 1.50% 4.57% 
US High Yield Bonds 2.00% 5.63% 
US Equity Market 27.25% 6.22% 
Foreign-Deve loped Equity 12.00% 8.46% 
E111erging Market Equities 6.40% 3.97% 
Private Rea l Estate Prope1ty 4.25% 4.09% 
Timber 1.00% 4.61 % 
Farmland 1.00% 9. 15% 
Private Equ ity 9.25% 9.15% 
Commodities 1.00% 3.58% 
Hedge Funds - MultiStrategy 4.00% 4.59% 
Hedge Funds - Equity Hedge 4.00% 5.68% 
Hedge Funds - Distressed 4.00% 4.30% 

Discount rate. The discount rate used to measure the State' s total pension liability was 4.1 3% as of June 30, 2015. This 
single blended di scount rate ,Nas based on the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan invest111ents of 7.90%, and 
a municipal bond rate of 3.80% as of June 30, 2015, based on the Bond Buyer Go 20-Bond Municipal Bond Index which 
includes tax-exempt general obligation municipal bonds with an average rating of AA/ Aa or higher. The projection of cash 
fl ows used to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from plan members will be made at the current member 
contribution rates and that contributions from employers (State of New Jersey) wi ll be made based on the average of the 
last fi ve years. Based on those assumptions, the plan 's fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make 
projected future benefit payments of current plan members through 2027. Therefore, the long-term expected rate ofreturn 
on plan investments was applied to projected benefit payments through 2027, and the municipal bond rate was applied to 
projected benefit payments after that date in determining the total pension liability. 

Sensitivity of the District 'sproportionate share oft he net pension liability to changes in the discount rate. Since the District 
has no proportionate share of the net pension liability because of the special funding situation, the di strict would not be 
sensitive to any changes in the discount rate. Detailed information about the pension plan ' s sensitivity of the collective net 
pension liability to changes in the discount rate is available in the separately issued State ofNew Jersey Division of Pension 
and Benefits financial repo,t at http://www.nj .gov/treasury/pensions/pdf/financial/gasb68-tpafl 5.pdf. 

Pension planfiducimJ' net posit ion. Detailed infor111ation about the pension plan ' s fiduciary net position is avai lable in the 
separate ly issued State o f New Jersey Division of Pension and Benefits financial report at 
http://www.nj .gov/treasury/pensions/financial-rp1ts-home.sht111I. 
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JUNE 30, 2016 

NOTE 10. PENSION PLANS {CONT'D} 

Public Emplovccs' Retirement Svstem (PERS) - The Publ ic Employees' Retirement System (PERS) was established as 
o f January I, 1955, under the provis ions ofN.J.S.A. 43: 15A to provide retirement, death. disability and med ica l benefits 
to certain qual ifi ed members. The Public Employees' Retirement System is a cost-sharing multiple-employer plan. 
Membership is mandatory fo r substant ia lly a ll fu ll- time employees of the State of New Jersey or any county, municipality, 
sc hoo l district, or publ ic agency, provided th e employee is not required to be a member of another state-administered 
ret irement system or other state or local jurisdiction. 

S 11111111a1y ofSig11ijjcanl Accounting Policies - For purposes of measuring the net pension liab il ity, deferred outflows of 
resources and deferred in fl ows of resources related to pensions, and pension expense, in formation about the fi duc iary net 
pos it ion of the PERS and add itions to/deductions from PERS fid uciary net position have been determi ned on the same bas is 
as they are reported by PERS. For th is purpose, benefit payments ( including refunds of employee contributions) are 
recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms . Investments are repo11ed at fai r value. 

Pension Liabilit ies. Pension Expense. and Deferred Outflows o.fResources and Deferred 11~/lows of Resources Related lo 
Pensions 

/\ t Ju ne 30, 2016, the District repo11ed a liabil ity of$ l,642,061 for its propo11ionate share of the net pension liabili ty. The 
net pension liabi li ty was measured as of June 30.2015, and the total pension liabi lity to calculate the net pension liab ility 
was determ ined by an actuaria l val uation as of July I , 20 14, whi ch was rolled fo rward to Ju ne 30, 2015. The District's 
proportion of the ne t position liabi li ty is based on the ratio of the contri butions as an individual em ployer to total 
contributions to the PERS during the year ended June 30, 20 15. At Ju ne 30, 20 I 5, the District's propo11ion was 
0.0073 149556% which was an decrease of 0.0001890573 from its propo11ion measured as of June 30, 20 l 4 . 

For the vear e11ded June 30, 2016, the District recogni::.ed in the district-wide s tatements of activit ies (accrual bas is) 
pe11sion expense of SJ 19,123. Al June 30. 2016, the District reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred il17ows 
r!f resources related lo PERS.fro111 the following sources: 

Differences between expected and actua l experience 
Changes of assumptions 
Net di fference between projected and actual earnings on 
pens ion plan investments 

Changes in proportion and differences between District 
contributions and proport ionate share of contributions 
District contributions subsequent to the measurement date 
Total 

Deferred 
Outflo·ws of 

Resources 
39,174 

176,344 

83 ,84 1 
62,889 

$362.248 

Deferred 
Inflows of 
Resou rces 

26,401 

30,031 

$56,432 = 

$62.889 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resul ting from school d istrict contributions 
subsequent to the measurement date (ie. for the school year end ing June 30, 2016, the plan measurement date is Ju ne 30, 
20 15) will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liabil ity measured as of June 30, 2016. Other amounts reported 
as deferred out flows of resources and deferred infl ows of resources related to pensions will be recognized in pension 
expense as fo llows: 

2017 
2018 
20 19 
2020 
202 1 
Total 

Year Ended June 30 
$46,831 
46,831 
46,830 
67,761 
34 674 

$242,927 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

JUNE 30, 2016 

NOTE 10. PENSION PLANS (CONT'D) 

Public Ernplovces' Retii·ement System (PERS) (Cont'd) 

Additiona l Information: 
Local Group Co llective balances at June 30, 2014 and 20 15 are as follows: 

Collective deferred out nows of resou rces 
Co llective deferred infi ows of resources 
Collective net pension liabil ity (Non State - Local Group) 
District's portion of net pension liability 
Distri ct's portion % 

06/30/2014 
$ l ,032,618,058 

l, 726,631 ,532 
18,722,735,003 

1,404,956 
0.0075040 I 05% 

06/30/2015 
$2,946,265,815 

360,920,604 
22,447,996,119 

1,642,061 
0.0073149556% 

The col lective total pension I iabi I ity for the June 30, 2015 measurement date was determined by an actuarial valuation as 
of July I. 2014. which was ro lled fo rward to June 30, 20 I 5. This actuarial valuation used the following actuarial 
assumptions: 

In nation: 
Salary Increases 

2012-20 13: 
Thereafter: 
I 11 vestme11t Rate of Return: 

3.04% 

2.15%-4.40% based on age 
3.15%-5.40% based on age 
7.90% 

Morta lity rates were based 011 the RP-2000 Combined Hea lthy Male and Female Mortality Tables (setback l year for 
fema les) with adj ustments for mortality improvements from the base year of2012 based on Projection Scale AA. 

The actuaria l assumptions used in the July I, 2014 va luation were based on the results of an actuarial experience study for 
the period July I, 2008 to June 30, 20 11. 

long-Term Expecled Rafe of Relurn - In accordance with State statute, the long-term expected rate of return on plan 
investments is determined by the State Treasurer, after consultation with the Directors of the Division of Investments and 
Di vision of Pension and Benefits, the board of trustees and the actuaries. Best estimates of arithmetic real rates ofreturn 
for each maj or asset c lass inc luded in PERS's target asset allocation as of June 30, 2015 are summarized in the fol lowing 
table: 

Long-Term Expected 
Asset Class Target Allocation Real Rate of Return 
US Cash 5.00% 1.04% 
US Treasuries 1.75% 1.64% 
In vestment Grade Credit 10.00% 1.79% 
Mo1tgages 2.10% 1.62% 
High Yield Bonds 2.00% 4.03% 
1 n nation- Indexed Bonds 1.50% 3.25% 
Broad US Equ ities 27.25% 8.52% 
Developed Foreign Equi ties 12.00% 6.88% 
Emergi ng Market Equities 6.40% 10.00% 
Private Equity 9.25% 12.41% 
Hedge Funds/ Absolute Return 12.00% 4.72% 
Real Estate (Property) 2.00% 6.83% 
Commod ities 1.00% 5.32% 
Globa l Debt ex US 3.50% -0.40% 
REIT 4.25% 5. 12% 
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NEPTUNE CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
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JUNE 30, 201 6 

NOTE 10. PENS ION PLANS {CONT'D) 

Publ ic Employees ' Retirement System (PERS) (Cont'd) 

Discount rate. The d iscount rate used to measure the tota l pension liabi lity was 4.90% as of June 30, 20 15. This s ingle 
blended discount rate was based on the long-term expected ra te of return on pension plan investments of 7 .90%, and a 
munic ipal bond rate o f3.80% and as of June 30, 20 15, respectively, based on the Bond Buyer Go 20-Bond Mun icipal Bond 
Index vvhich includes tax-exempt general obl igation muni cipa l bonds with an average rating of AA/Aa or higher. The 
projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from plan members will be made 
al the current mem bcr contribution rates and that contri butions from employers wi ll be made based on the average of the 
last five years of contributions made in re lation to the last fi ve years of recommended contri butions. Based on those 
assumptions. the plan's fid uciary net posit ion was projected to be ava il able to make projected fu ture benefit payments of 
current plan members thro ugh 2033. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on plan investments was applied to 
projected benefi t payments through 2033, and the municipal bond rate was appl ied to projected benefit payments after that 
elate in determini ng the total pension liabil ity. 

Sensitivity oft he District ·s proportionate share oft he nel pension liability lo changes in the discount rate. The fo llowing 
presents the District's proportionate share of the net pension I iabi I ity measured as of June 30, 2015, calcu lated using the 
discount rate o f 4.90%, as we ll as what the District's proportionate share of the net pension liabil ity would be if it were 
ca lculated using a discount rate that is I-percentage-po int lower (3.90%) or I-percentage-po int higher (5.90%) than the 
current ra te: 

D istricf s proport ionate share of the net 
pension liabil ity 

1% 
Decrease 
(3.90%) 

$2,040,88 1 

Current 
Discount 

Rate 
(4.90%) 

$ 1,642,061 

1% 
Increase 
(5.90%) 

$ 1,307,693 

Pt!nsion plonj,duciwy net position. Detailed in formation about the pension plan' s fid uciary net position is avai lable in the 
separately iss ued State o f New Je rsey Div ision of Pens ion and Benefits fin ancial report at 
http ://www. nj .gov /treasury/pens ions/fi nanc ial-rprts-home .shtm I. 

Defined Contribution Rctii·emcnt Plan (DCRP) - The Defi ned Contribution Reti rement Program (DCRP) was estab lished 
as of July I, 2007 under the prov isions of Chapter 92, P. L. 2007 and Chapter 103, P.L. 2007 (N.J .S.A. 43: 15C- I et. seq.). 
The DCRP is a cost-sharing mu lt ipl e-employer de fi ned contribution pension fu nd. The DCRP prov ides el igible members, 
and the ir beneficiaries with a tax-sheltered, de fi ned contribution retirement benefit, along with I ife insurance and disabi lity 
coverage. Vesting and benefi t provisions are estab lished by N.J.S.A. 43:ISC-I et. seq. 

The contributi on requ irements of plan members are determined by state statue. In accordance with Chapter 92, P.L. 2007 
and Chapter I 03, P.L. 2007, p lan members are requi red to contri bute 5.5% of their annual covered salary. Member 
contri butions are matched by a 3% employer contribution. For the year ended June 30, 20 16, employee contributions tota l 
$2. 767.40, and the District recognized pension expense of $ 1,509.60. The State Treasurer has the right under current law 
to make temporary reductions in member rates based on the existence of surplus plan assets in the retirement system; 
however statute also req uires th e return to the normal rate when such surplus pension assets no longer exist. 

PERS and TPAF Vesting and Benefit Provisions - The vesting and benefit provisions for PERS are set by N.J.S.A. 
43: I SA and 43 .3 B, and N .J .S.A. I 8A:6C fo r TPAF. Al I benefits vest after e ight to ten years of service, except for med ical 
benefi ts that vest after 25 years of se rvice. Retirement benefits for age and service are avai lable at age 60 and are generally 
determined to be 1/60 of the fina l average sa lary for each year of service cred it, as defined. Final average sa lary equals the 
average sa lary for the fina l three years of service prior to retirement ( or hi ghest three years' compensation if other than the 
final three years). Mem bers may seek early retirement after achieving 25 years of service credit or they may elect de ferred 
re tirement after achievin g e ight to ten years of service in which case benefits woul d begin the first day of the month after 
the member attains normal retirement age. 
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NOTE 10. PENSION PLANS {CONT'D) 

Public Emplovecs' Retii·emcnt System (PERS) (Co nt'd) 

The TPAF and PERS provides for spec ified medica l benefits for members who reti re after achiev ing 25 years of qualified 
service. as defined. or under the disabi li ty provisions of the System. Members are always fu lly vested for their own 
contributions and, after three years of service cred it, become vested for 2% of re lated interest earned on the contributions. 
1 n the case of death before retirement, members' beneficiaries are entitled to fu l I interest credited to the members' accounts. 

Significant Legislation - Chapter 78, P.L. 2011 , effective June 28, 20 11, 111ade va rious changes to the manner in which the 
Pub I ic Employees' Retirement System (PERS) and the Police and Firemen's Retirement Syste111 (PFRS) operate and to the 
benefit provis ions of those systems. 

Chapter 78's provisions impacting employee pension and health benefits include: 

• New members of the PERS hired on or after Ju ne 28, 2011 , (Tier 5 members), wi ll need 30 years of cred itable 
service and age 65 for receipt of the early reti rement benefit without a reduction of 1/4 of I% for each month that 
the member is under age 65. 

• The eligibility age to qual ify for a service retire111ent in PERS is increased from age 63 to 65 for Tier 5 members. 

• The annual benefit under special retirement for new PFRS 111embers enro lled after June 28, 201 1, (Tier 3 
members), wil l be 60% instead of 65% of the member' s final compensation plus I% for each year of creditable 
service over 25 years but not to exceed 30 years. 

• Increases in active member contribution rates. PERS active member rates increase from 5.5% of annual 
compensation to 6.5% pl us an additional I% phased- in over 7 years; PFRS active member rate increase from 8.5% 
to I 0%. For fiscal yea r 2012, the me111ber contri bution rates increased in October 20 I I. The phase-in of the 
additional incremental me111ber contribution rates for PES members wi ll take place in July of each subsequent 
fi scal year. 

• The payment of auto111atic cost-of- li ving adjustment (COLA) add itional increases to current and future retirees and 
beneficiaries is suspended until reactivated as permitted by this law. 

• New employee contribution requi rements towards the cost of employer-provided health benefit coverage. 
E111p loyees are required to contribute a certai n percentage of the cost of coverage. The rate of contribution is 
determ ined based on the em ployee' s annual sa lary and the selected level of coverage. The increased e111ployee 
contributions will be phased in over a 4-year period for those employed pri or to Chapter 78's effective date with 
a minimum contri bution req uired to be at least 1.5% of sa lary. 

• In add ition, th is new legislation changes the method for amortizing the pension systems' unfunded accrued I iabi I ity 
(from a leve l percent of pay method to a level dollar of pay) . 

Contt-ibution Requirements - The contribution policy is set by N.J.S.A. 43: I SA, Chapter 62, P.L. of 1994, Chapter 115, 
P.L. of 1997 (PERS) and N..J.S.A. 18:66 (TPAF) requires contributions by active 111embers and contributing employers. 
Plan member and employer contributions may be amended by State of New Jersey legislation. TPAF and PERS provide 
for employee contributions of 7.06% of employees' annual compensation, as defined. Employers are required to contribute 
at an actuarially deter111ined rate in both TPAF and PERS. The current TPAF rate is 7.06% and the PERS rate is 7.06% of 
covered payro ll . 
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NOTE JO. PENSION PLANS (CONT'D) 

Contribution Requirements (Cont'd) 

The actuarially determined contribution includes funding for cost-of-l iving adjustments, noncontributory death benefits, 
and post-retirement medical premiums. Under current statute the District is a non-contributing employer of the TPAF. 

Three-Year Trend In formation for PERS 

Annua l Percentage Net 
Year Pension of APC Pension 

Funding Cost (APC) Contributed Liability 

6/30/ 16 62.889 100% 1.642,06 1 
6/30/15 6 1.862 100% 1.404.956 
6/30/ 14 51.7.i 7 100% 1.312.56 I 

Three-Year Trend In formation for TPAF (Paid on-behalf of the District) 

Annual Percentage Net 
Year Pensio n of APC Pension 

Fundinu Cost (APC) Contributed Liabi lity 

6/30/ 16 163.356 100% 
6/30/ 15 I 08.4 78 100% 
6/30/ 14 83.559 100% 

During the fi scal year ended June 30, 20 16, the State of New Jersey did contribute $ I 94,5 12.00 to the TPAF for post­
retirement medical benefits on behalf of the District. Also, in accordance with N.J.S .A. l 8A:66-66 the State of New Jersey 
rei mbursed the District $ 150,494.66 during the year ended June 30, 2016, for the employer's share of social securi ty 
contributions for TPAF members, as calcu lated on their base sa laries. The PERS amounts have been included in the fund­
based statements as pension expense and the TPAF on-behalf amounts have been included in the fund-based statements as 
revenues and expend itures. The PERS and TPAF amounts have been modified and included in the District-wide financia l 
statements in accordance with GASB Statement No. 68. 

NOTE 11. POST-RETIREMENT BENEFITS 

P.L. 1987, c. 384 and P.L. I 990, c.6 required Teachers' Pensions and Annuity Fund (TPAF) and the Public Employees' 
Retirement System (PERS), respectively, to fund post-retirement medical benefits for those State employees who retire after 
accumulating 25 years of credited service or on a disability retirement. P.L. 2007, c. l 03 amended the law to eliminate the 
funding of post-retirement medical benefits through the TPAF and PERS. It created separate funds outside of the pension 
plans for the funding and payment of post-retirement medica l benefits for retired State employees and retired educati onal 
employees. As of June 30, 20 15, there were I 07,314 retirees receiving post-retirement medical benefits and the State 
contributed $1.25 bil lion on their behalf. The cost of these benefits is funded through contributions by the State in 
accordance with P.L. 1994, c.62. Funding of post-retirement medical premiums changed from a pre-funding basis to a pay­
as-you-go basis beginning in Fiscal Year 1994. 

The State is also responsible fo r the cost attributable to P.L. 1992 c. 126, which provides free health benefits to members 
of PERS and the Alternate Benefit Program who retired from a board of education or county college with 25 years of 
service. The State paid $214. I 111 i I li on toward Chapter 126 benefits for I 9,056 e ligible retired members in Fiscal Year 20 15. 

GASB Statement No. 45 requires ce11ain disclosures relating to governmental entities obligations fo r other post-employment 
benefits (OPEB ). wh ich are post-employment benefits other than pensions. The District does not provide post-employment 
benefits other than pension. Healthcare provided to eligible TPAF and PERS board of education retirees through the NJ 
State Health Benefits Program are paid by the State of New Jersey and as such, no district OPEB liability exists. 
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NOTE 12. COMP ENSATED ABSENCES 

The District accounts fo r compensated absences (sick leave) as di rected by Govern mental Accounting Standards Board 
Statement No. 16 (GASB 16), --Accounting for Compensated Absences··. A liabil ity for compensated absences attributable 
to services already rendered and not contingent on a spec ific event that is outside the contro l of the employe r and employee 
is accrued as employees earn the ri ghts to the benefits. 

District employees who are employed for ten months are entitled to ten paid sick leave days per fiscal school year. District 
employees who are employed for twelve months are entitled lo twelve paid sick leave days per fiscal schoo l year. Unused 
sick leave may be accumulated and carried forward to th e subsequent years. Upon retirement and who have not less than 
twenty (20) years of service in the District, the District shall pay the employee for unused sick leave in acco rdance with the 
Districts· agreements with the various employee unions. 

The entire liab ili ty fo r compensated absences is reported in the District-Wide Statements of Net Position. 

NOTE 13. DEFERRED COMPENSATION 

The Board offers its employees a choice of various deferred compensation plans created in accordance with Internal 
Revenue Code Section 403(b). The plans, which are administered by the entities listed below, permits participants to defer 
a portion of their salary until future years. Amounts deferred under the plans are not avai lable to employees until 
termination. retirement, death or un foreseeable emergency. The plan administrators are as fo llows: 

NOTE 14. RISK MANAGEMENT 

AXA Equitable 
Siracusa Benefits Program 
Lincoln Financial 

The District is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of assets; erro rs and 
omissions: injuries to employees: and natural di sasters. 

Property and Liability Insurance - The District mainta ins commercial insurance coverage for property, liabil ity and surety 
bonds. A complete schedule of in surance coverage can be fo und in the Statistica l Section of this Comprehensive Annual 
Financial Report. 

New Jersey Unemployment Com pensation Insu.-ance - The District has elected to fu nd its New Jersey Unemployment 
Compensation Insurance under the "Benefit Reim bursement Method'' . Under this plan, the District is required to reimburse 
the New Jersey Unemployment Trust Fund for benefits paid to its fo rmer employees and charged to its account with the 
State. The District is billed quarterly fo r amounts due to the State. The fo llowing is a summary of District contributions, 
employee contri butions. reimbursements to the State fo r benefi ts paid and the ending balance of the District' s expendab le 
trust fund fo r the current and prev ious two years: 

Fisca l Yea r 

20 15-2016 
201 4-201 5 
2013-201 4 

Interest Earnings/ 
District 

Contributio ns 

I 0,503 .54 
555.55 
584.33 
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E mployee 
Contributio ns 

5,652.1 1 
5,340.24 
5,44 1.83 

Amount 
Reimbursed 

8,221. 12 
20,417.56 
12,5 I 5.88 

E ndin g 
Balance 

143,210.26 
135,275.73 
149,797.50 



NEPTUNE CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

JUNE 30, 2016 

NOTE 15. INTERFUND RECEIVABLES, PAYABLES AND TRANSFERS 

lnterfund ba lances at June 30, 2016 consisted of the fo llowing indiv idual fund rece ivab le and payables: 

Due From 
Other Funds 

Genera l Fund: 
Specia l Revenue Fund 4,788.23 
Unemployment Compensation Trust .00 
Food Service Fund .00 
Agency Fund .00 

Special Revenue Fund: 
Genera l Fund .00 
Agency Fund .00 

Food Service Fund: 
General Fund 24,666.47* 

Unemployme nt Compensation Trust: 
General Fund 6,464.11 

Agency Fund: 
Specia l Revenue Fund 3,400.00 
Genera l Fund 2.061 .45 

$41.380.26 

Al l of the above interfunds represent short-term loans. 

* Reported as a receivable on the District-Wide statement of net position. 
** Reported as a payable on the District-Wide statement of net position. 

The District had no operating transfers during the year ended June 30, 2016. 

NOTE 16. INVENTORY 

In ventory in the Food Service Fund at Ju ne 30, 2016 consisted of the fo llowing: 

Food 
Suppl ies 

NOTE 17. DEFICIT UNRESTRICTED NET POSITION 

2,402.29 
985.99 

$3.388.28 

Due To 
Other Funds 

.00 
6,464.11 ** 

24,666.47** 
2,061.45 ** 

4,788.23 
3,400.00** 

.00 

.00 

.00 

.00 
41.380.26 

As re fl ected on Exhibit A-1 , Statement of Net Position, a deficit in unrestricted net position of ($ 1,289,050.3 1) ex isted as 
of June 30, 2016 for governmenta l acti vities. The primary causes of this deficit is the District not recognizing the receivable 
for the last two state a id payments and the recording of the long-term liabil ity for compensated absences and net pension. 
In accordance with ful I accrual accou nti ng, which is the basis of accounting for Exh ibit A-1, Statement of Net Position, such 
liabi lities are required to be recorded in the period in which they are incurred. However, in accordance with the rules and 
regulations that govern the District in the formulation of their annual budget (see Note I), compensated absences and 
pension liab ilities that relate to future serv ices, or that are contingent on a specific event outside the control of the District 
and its employees, are funded in the period in which such services are rendered or in which such events take place. 
Therefore, thi s deficit in unrestricted net position fo r governme ntal activities does not indicate that the District is facing 
financial di fficulties. 
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NEPTUNE CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL ST A TEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

JUNE 30, 2016 

NOTE 18 . OPERATING LEASES 

The District leases two photo cop iers under noncancelable operating leases spann ing 60 months. Total lease payments for 
the fiscal year ended June 30, 2016 were $21,245.73. The future minimum lease payments for these operating leases are 
as fol lows: 

Fiscal 
Year Ending Ju ne 30 

NOTE 19. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 

2017 
2018 
2019 
2020 
2021 

18,188.52 
18,188.52 
18,188.52 
18,188.82 
12,125.68 

$84.879.76 

Management has reviewed and eva luated al l events and transactions that occurred between June 30, 2016 and November 
30, 2016, the elate that the financial statements were available to be issued for possible disclosure and recognition in the 
rinancial statements, and no items have come to the attention of the District that woul d require disclosure. 
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REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION - PART II 



BUDGET ARY COMPARISON SCHEDULES 



1u:,·1c , n:s: 
l.nr :1 I Sou recs: 

L,,cal T .1\ l.c" 

r,11 u,"' from lnd 1< iJ uals 

1111.·rcst Earned ,,n Capnal Reser. c Fund s 

i\ l1sc1..· ll;mc:ous 
T,,tal - Local Sources 

S late Sources: 

f':q ual1za1io 11 ,\ id 

Special EJu,·a111m Ca tego rical , \ 1J 
Scrnri1,· AiJ 

Transp,ma1iou A1J 
L.'nJ,·r .-\ Jeq uac,· ,\1J 

Extr:hlrd1 11a r. Special EJuc:111011 Costs .·\ 1J 
1'.·\ RCC ReaJiness A,d 
l'cr Pupil Gro\\1h .-\ 1d 

,r-: l' Tl .,E C ITY SC'IIOOL DISTRI CT 

Bll(lg,• lan· C'omp,1rison Sd11•dul1· 

Crn,•ral Fund 

Fisi·al Yra r Frukd ,June JO. 211 16 

Original 
llu!l::1·1 

Budgcl 
Trans fers 

Final 

lludu1•1 

6.0-1-1 ,9 11 ()0 

11.000 00 

0 00 
6.lJ7Hlil 

6.062.S85.00 

I .S6-1.2 70 OU 
3H 076.00 

28.851 .00 

25.030 00 

6-1.10 1 .on 
120.000.00 

ll 00 C,,0-1-1 ,91 1.00 

0 00 11.000 00 
O.Otl 0 .00 
0.00 6.97-1 00 
0 00 6,01>2.385 .00 

0.00 1.564.2 70.00 

0 00 3-1-1 .076 00 

o on 28.85 1 oo 
0 00 25.030.00 

000 6-1 .70 1.00 

0 .00 120.000.00 

0 .00 6,050.00 

0 00 6,050.00 
TP.-\ F - Post Rct,rc·mc·nt i\kJ1c:II 1011-13d,alr - Nnn-fluJ gcteJ\ 

Tead ids PcnsiDn & .-\nnui t, Fu nJ tOn-Bchalf'-Non-BuJgcteJ ) 

Reimbursed TP,\F S,,cia l Sccurn, Contn but i,ms ("lon-BuJgctcJ ) 

6.050.00 

6.050.00 

0 .00 

0.00 

0 00 

0 .00 
01)1) 

0 .00 
Total State Snurces 

·ro1:11 Re\'C IIU l'S 

E\ l'E.,IJITL'RES : 

Current Expcusc: 

Rt·:.:,ular l' rograrn.~ - lnslruction: 
l' rcsch,10 1 - Sa laries or T cad 1ers 

KinJcrgancn - Sab r,cs oi' Tcad1crs 

Grades 1-5 - Salaries ol'Tcachcrs 

<,raJ cs 6-8 - Salarics ol'Teachc•rs 

l~n!ular Pro~ r:1111s - llomt.' lr1,1ilr11 ctio11: 
S,darics or Te:ichas 

lh·uula r Pro~rams - l ·ndistrihull.·LI Ins truction: 
Othc·r Sa lancs for Instruc t ion 

l'urchascJ Prolcssional-Educauonal Se" ices 

O tha Purchased Sa vii:cs (-100-500 series ) 

General S upplii:s 

Textbooks 

O thcrObjw s 

T OTA L IU:Gl'I .. \R PIWGR.\:\IS- " STIH'CTIO, 

Sl' ECI.\ L EDL'C..\TI O;\ - l:'<STIH'CTIO, 
I.L·a rning. anc.J/nr La nguag.r Disah iliti t."S: 

Salaries of Teachers 

0 1hi:r Salaries for l11struc1io11 

Genera l S uppl ii:s 

Toi.ii Ll·arning and/or L:tn ~u~tgl' Disabili ties 

lh ·sourcc Room/Reso urce Cen ler: 
Salani:s o J' T .:achas 

Gene ral Supplies 

Tol:11 Resou rce Room/ Resource Center 

Preschool Disahilitics - Parl-Tin1c: 

Salani:s of Teachers 

Othi:r Sa laries for lnslrui:u nn 

Gi:naal S uppl ies 

Tola) Preschoo l Disahililics - Pa rl-T im,· 

TOTAL SP ECI.\L EDl.'C \ T IO, - " STIH 'f TIO., 

Basic Sl<ills/Rcmrllia l - lns lruclio n 

Salaries 0J'Te :1d icrs 

Gi:naal Supplies 

Tolal llas ir Skills/ Remedial · lns lru{·t iou 

2. 159.02s on 

8.22 1.913 ()I) 

-16 .679.00 

153,806.00 

698,285.00 

-165.687.00 

3.0 75.00 

-13,6 75 .00 

3,000.00 

22,500 .00 

5-1.000.00 

35,000.00 

1-1.692 .00 

1.5-10.3()9.00 

9S.07-I 00 

54. 15 1.00 

500.00 

152,725.00 

291,705.00 

1.000.00 

292.105 00 

7,-13 1.00 

1,538.00 

200.00 

9. 169 .00 

454.599 00 

2h.666 OU 
1.000.UO 

27.666 00 

5 1 

___ _:0.:..0::.:0c... 2. 159.028.00 

___ ..::o:..:;· o:.::o_ s.22 1. 913. oo 

0.00 -16.679.00 

0 .00 I 53.S06 00 
(25,300.00) 672.985.00 

5 1.300 00 5 16,987.00 

0 .00 3.075 00 

5,000 00 -18 ,67 5.00 

0 00 3 .000.00 

0 .00 22.500.00 

0 .00 5-l.000.00 
( 13.500.00) 21.500.00 

0 .00 1-1 ,692 .00 
17,500 00 1.557,899 00 

0 00 98.07-1 .00 

l I 3.200 00) -10.95 1.00 

0 .00 500.00 
( 13.200 00 ) 139.525.00 

(21.000 00) 210.105.00 

0 00 1,000.00 

(2 1,000 00) 271 ,705.00 

0.00 7.-13 1.00 

500 00 2.038.00 

0 00 200.00 

500 00 9,669 00 

(33,700.00) -120.899 00 

0 00 26,666.00 

0.00 1.000.00 

0 00 27 ,666.00 

.-\ c lua l 

6.0-14.9 11.00 

7,982 50 

-15 35 

-18A2-U I 

6. 101.363.36 

1.56-1.270.00 

3 -1-1.076.00 

28.851 .00 

25.030.00 

6 -1 ,70 1.00 

18 1.778.00 

6,050.00 

6.050 00 

l'l-l.512 .00 

163,356.00 

150.-19-1 .66 

2. 729, 168.66 

8.830.532.02 

-15.70-1 3 1 

150.52-1 .68 

66 1 ,22-1.60 

49-1,6 2 1 1-1 

0 .00 

-15.7 14.50 

0 .00 
17.IJ -19 09 

32,17072 

2.573.8-l 

12.2 87.24 

1.-162.770.22 

96.638 35 

37.380.35 

000 

13-1,0 18 70 

263.3-15 .26 

0.00 

263.3-15 26 

2,92-1 .60 

2,030 00 

0 00 

-1 .95-1 60 

402,318 56 

9.31 I 80 

0 .00 

9.311.80 

Exh 1bn C-1 

\°aria nc~ 
Final lo Aclual 

Farnr,1 blc 

( l' 11 fa,·ornhlc) 

0 00 

(3.017 50\ 

-15 35 

-l 1.-150.5 1 
38,-178 .36 

000 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 
6 1.778.00 

0.00 

0.00 

19-1,5 12 00 

16 3,356.00 

150.-19-l.66 

570. 1-10.66 

608.619 02 

97-1.69 

3.281.32 

I 1.760.-10 

22.365. 76 

3.075.00 

2.%0.50 

3.000.00 

-1 .550 9 1 

2 I ,829 28 

18.926. 16 

2.40-1.76 

95,128.78 

I .-135.65 

3,570.65 

500.00 

5.506 30 

7.359.7-1 

I .000 00 

8.359.7-1 

4 .506.-10 

8.00 

200.00 

-1.71-1-10 

18.580 -1-l 

I 7,35-1.20 

1.000 00 

I 8.35-1 10 



E.\l' E:\Dr1TR£S tConunu~J) 

Curn•nr Expcnsr (Con11nu..:J1 

llili11!(11al Etluc:11ion - lnslru clion 
S.il:m~s or T ..:ad1t'rs 
G,·ncr:il Surpl It's 

Tol:11 lli lini:ua l Edurnlion - ln, rruclion 

Sd111ol-Spon. Cocurrir ular .. \ clvls. - Ins!. 
Salan,·s 
Supplies lnJ ~lal..:nals 
l)1ha 0hJCCIS 

l'olal Sdwol-Spon. Cocurrirnlar .\ c1,·1s. - Inst. 

Schnol-Spon. Cncurric11l:1r .\ lhklics - Ins!. 
S.i lan~s 
l'urdiascJ Sen 1,·c, t300-5tl0 s~ri~sl 
Suppl 1cs anJ Ma1enals 
l)lhcr ObJccts 

Tn1:1I Schnol-Spon. Cnrn rrirnlar .\lh lcl irs - Inst. 

:\EP'lTM: CITY SCII OOL DISTRICT 
llud:,:rlar\' Comparison Sclwdulr 

G1•nrral Fu nd 
Fiscal Yrar Endl·cl .June 30, 201 6 

Origi11;1I 
Bud"l'I 

30.H5 00 
80000 

31.5-15 00 

17.223 00 
l .500.00 

750 00 
I 9.-173.00 

21 .-1-18.00 
5.000.00 
-1 .000 00 
2.500 00 

32.9-IS 00 

llud!!CI 
Tra nsfers 

000 
0 00 

000 

000 
000 
000 
0 00 

000 
90000 

0.00 
000 

900 Oil 

TOT.\ L l:\ST IH .CTIO\' .\:\0 .-\ T-RI SI, PROGR , , 1s 2.106.630 00 I 15.300 OUI 

l ntli,1rih111cd Expendilurcs - lnslruelinn: 

ruiu"n 10 01hcr LF.-\s \\'i1h111 1h..: S1a1c - R<!gulM 1.76 1 .838 00 6.000 OU 
r u11 ,nn 10 Other LF.-\s \ \'i1h111 the S1:11e - Special 398.120 00 l I 5.000 00) 

ru111t111 10 Count\ \inc School Dis1 - Rc"gubr 62.025 00 2-1.20000 

r111111m 10 Coum, Voe Sdwnl D1s1. · S1 ecial 15.900.00 000 
Tu,111111 10 CSS D & R\.'g. Day Sch.,ols 62.-175 .00 0.00 

rulllllll Ill Pn va1~ Sd1<,,1ls for the DisabkJ - \\' 11h111 Stale 1.27-1.6-17 00 9.000 00 

ru111nn Stale' Facil111c, 22.19900 000 

Tol:tl l 'ndis lril1111ctl E~1wndi111res - lns lruclion: J.597.20-1.00 2-l .200 00 

l 'ntlislrihuled Expend. - .\!lend. & Social Work 
Sa lanes 20. 111 .00 ( 1.000 00) 

Purchased Proti:ss1llllal and Tc'chni..:al Serv1c~s 2.000.00 0 00 

Supplies anJ :--1a1cnals 200 00 000 

Other Ob.1ec1s 200.00 0 00 
Tol:tl l 'mlis lribnll'd E.xpend. - ..\!l end. & Socia l \\ orl, 22.511 00 ( 1.000 00) 

l ntl isl. Expend. - I k:tllh Services 
Salam:s 50.6-10.00 5.500.00 

l'urcha,cJ l'roli:ss1011al anJ Techn1cal S..:n ices 6,700.00 950 00 

Supplies anJ i\ lalenals :!.000.00 (650 00) 

Other ObJeCIS 800.00 (300 00) 

To1:1l l 'ndis lrihu lcd Etpcndilurcs - lle:t llh Scn·ices 60.1-10.00 5.500 00 

l 'ntl ist. E.~pend. - S(H'Cch/Occup:11 ional Therapy, Physical Thcrap)· & lklatcd Sen·. 

S.ilanes 137.7-13.00 13.-150 .00 

l'urchascJ Prol.:ss1onal - EJ ucational Services 60.000.00 6.1 00.00 

Sllpphcs and i'vla1cnals 700.00 (250.00) 

Tn1:1l t ·ndist. Expend. - Spl·,·ch/Occ Therapy. PT & lh·l:11ccl Se n ·. IQS.-1-13 00 19.30000 

0 1!11·r Support Scn·iccs - S1udcnls - Exlranrdinar)' 

l'urchaseJ Proli:ss1nnal · EdL1ca11onal Services 95.000.00 61.500 00 

Total Support Sen-ices - S1uden1s - Ex1r:1nrtlin:1ry 95.000 00 61 .500 00 
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Fi na l 
Bud!!l'I 

J0.7-15 .00 
800 00 

31.5-15.00 

I 7 .223.00 
1.500.00 

750.00 
I <J.-173 00 

21.-1-1 8.00 
5.900.00 
-1.000 00 
2.500 00 

33.S-IS 00 

2.09 1 .330 00 

1.767 .83S Oil 
383. 120 OU 

86.225 00 
15.900.0U 
62.-1 7500 

I .283.6-17 00 

22. 199.00 

J.62 1.-10-1 00 

19. 111.00 
2.000 00 

200.00 
200 00 

21.511.00 

56. 1-10 00 
7.650.00 
1.350 00 

500.00 

65.6-10 00 

151.193 00 

66.1 00.00 

-150.00 

217.7-13 00 

156.500.00 

156.500.00 

.-\ c111al 

28.077 57 
6-13.00 

28.720 57 

1-1 . l<lJ -1-1 
1.000 00 

385 00 
15.573 -1-1 

20.-1 16 81 
-1.5-19 00 

7-19 82 
1.200.00 

26.91563 

1.9-15.6 I 5 22 

1.767.197 .9-1 
380.5 11 .00 

8-1.219 00 
1-1.290 00 
62.-1 15.00 

1.270.981 66 

22.l <l9.00 

3.60 1.873.60 

15.859 89 
0 00 
000 
0.00 

I 5.S59 89 

56.061.86 
7.628 95 
1. 168 .-10 

115.00 
6-1.97-1 .21 

l-l-l.09-l.-l3 

65.5-15 08 

192.95 

209.832 -16 

I 56.391.29 

156.39 1 29 

Exh1hi1 C-1 

\ 'arianl'C 

Final lo Actua l 
Farnrablc 

t l'nfarnra hk) 

2.667.-13 
157 00 

2.82-1 -13 

3.029 56 
500 00 
365.00 

3.89-1 56 

1.031 . IQ 
1.351 00 
3.250 18 
1.300.00 

6.932.37 

1-15.71 -1 .78 

6-10 06 
2.609 00 
2.006 00 
1.610 00 

0.00 
12.665 3-1 

0.00 

l'J.530.-10 

3.251 II 
2.000 00 

200 .00 
200 00 

5.651. 11 

78 1-l 
21 05 

181.60 

385 uo 
665 79 

7.098 57 
55-1 92 

257 05 

7.910 5-1 

108 71 

108 71 



:\EPTI ":\E C ITY SCI IOOL DISTIH CT 
B,ulgl'tan· Compa rison Srh1·dn l1• 

Genrr:11 Fund 
Fisral Yt·ar End1•d .Jun,• 311. 201 6 

E\l'f.:\DITl"IH:s (C111111 11u,·dl. 

C nrrl'nt Exp,·nsr I Co1H 111ucd I" 

1 ·udist. E\pl'nd. - Child Stud,· Tl':11ns 

Sal.mes of Other l'rol~·ss1onal Staff 
s., larics of S,·u,·tanal anJ Ckrical i\ssistams 

l'ur.:hased Prnli:ss,onal - Ed ucat ional Scr\"1ces 
Ot her Purchased Prof. anJ T,·c h. S,-rY1ccs 
Supphes anJ M:11c rials 

l"oia l l ·ndist. Exprnd. - Child S tud1· T1·:11ns 

1 ·nd ist. Exprnd. - Edu. ,ll'dia Srn·./Sch. Lihrar)· 

Supp lies a nd Materials 

Total r,ulis t. Exprnd. - Edu. ""dia Sl'rY./Sch. Lihra ry 

I ·udist. E,1lr111l. - I nstructin,rnl S tarr Training Sen ·. 
Other l'urchaseJ Scr, ices 1-100-500 series) 

Total l "mlist. f.xpr1HI. - Instructional Staff Trai n in)! Sa\". 

l "nd ist. Expeml. - Supp. Srr\". - Genrral .\ dmin. 
Salaries 

Li:gal S t.:r\'ll.: l'S 

,\uJn Fees 
t)th.:r Purchased l'rnt~·ss,onal Sen ,as 

l'urd1ased Tt'chn ical Services 
C,11nmunicati,,11s.-1·c1t'phont' 

1301.: Otht'r l'urchas,·d Scr,·,ces 

,\ l iscd lancous l'urd 1;1scJ Scrnc.:s t -l llll-500 series ,11her than 530,535) 
General Supplies 
~ I isccl lancous ExpcnJ,turcs 

RO E l\krnbership Due's anJ Fccs 
Tota l r ,ulis t. E,prn tl. - Supp. Srn·. - G1·111·ral .-\dmin. 

l ndist. Exp,•ntl. - S upport Sen·. - School ..\tlm in. 
Sa laries n r Secretarial anJ Ckrical . .\ssistants 
Suppl ic>s and i\laterials 

Other Ob1cc1s 
Total 1·11dist. E.,p,·1111. - Support Sen·. - School .-\ti min. 

l "ndistrihutcd E,pcntliturl's - C,·ntntl S,·,-.-in ·s 
Sal:trics 

Purchased Prnti:ss,onal St'I"\ ices 
Surplies and \ ·latc:rials 

\ 1 iscd lancnt1s E\penJ11urcs 

Total l 'ndistrihutrd bpendilurcs - Ct·ntral S,·rvicl's 

l "ndistrihutrd E.,pl'IHli tures - .-\d min. In fo. Trch. 
Purchased T t'd111ica l S,·r,•ices 
Total l"ndis trihuted Expenditures - ,\dmin. Info. Tech. 

1 ·ndist. Expend. -Rl'qu irrd .\l.linten,111rr for Sc hool Faci lit ies 
S:tl:tncs 

Cleaning. Repair. a11J Ma111tenance Services 

Tutal l "ndis l. F.xp,·ntl. - l~equircd ":1int1•nancc for School Facilities 

1 ·ndist. E.,pcmJ. - Otht·r Operation & "aintenance or Plant S1· rviccs 
Salaries 

Ck:111111g. Rcpair and ,vla111tenancc Scrv1ees 
Other Purchasc>J Propert\' Ser,,iet'S 
Insurance 

(ieneral S upplies 
l:ncrg\" ( Natural Gas) 

F. ncrg) ( Ek ctncm) 

Other Objects 

Total l "mlist. E.,p,·nd. - Other O pl'rntion & "ainten:t1H'C o r P la nt Sen·. 

Tntal l ·ndisl. E,p1·ntl. - Oper. & .\la int. Of Plant S,•rviccs 

Oril!in.11 
13111.J::r t 

11 7. 162.0(1 
11 .-1-l <J 00 

1.600 00 

1.800.00 
2.000 .00 

13-1.01 I 00 

1.000.00 
1.000.00 

5.000.00 
5.000.00 

130.000.00 

I 0.000 00 
I 3.875 .00 
5.000 .00 

6.000.00 
11.000.00 

3.000.00 
11.000.00 
3.000.00 

12.100.00 

-1.500.00 

20 'l.-175 .00 

72.785.00 

2.000.00 
15.000.00 
89.785.00 

130.000 00 

8.000 00 

2.000.00 
3,500.00 

1-13.500.00 

3.000.00 

3.000.00 

-1 1.175.00 

5.000.00 
-16.175.00 

12~.282.00 
30,000 00 

5.000.00 

31.000.00 
18,000.00 

36.000 00 
65.000.00 

13.500.00 

320. 782.00 
366 .957.00 
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Budgt·l 
Trans rr rs 

0.00 
0.00 

2.300 00 

300.00 
I 1.600.001 
1.000 00 

0 00 
0.00 

-1. 100.00 

-1. IOU./JO 

60 1.00 
( -1.926.00) 

0.00 

0 00 
0 00 

325.00 
000 
0 00 

I 100.00 ) 
2.200 00 

0.00 

I I .900 OOl 

2.S00.00 
0.00 

(2.800.00) 

O. IJO 

1.00 
125.00 

(726.00) 
600.00 

0 00 

0 00 
0.00 

0 00 

0 00 
U.00 

0.00 

0.00 
0.00 
0 00 

271.88 

( 12.500.00) 
( 12.500.00) 

0.00 
(1-1 . 728. 12) 

(2-l.728 121 

Final 
B111lul't 

117.162 .00 

11 .-1-llJ.00 
3.900.00 
2. 100 00 

-1()0 00 

135.0 1 I 00 

1.000.00 
1.000 00 

9. 100.00 
9. 100 00 

I 30.601.00 

5.07-1 00 
13.875 00 
5.000 00 

6.000 00 

11.325 00 
3.000 00 

11.000.00 
2.900.00 

1-1.300 .00 

-1.500.00 
207 .575.00 

75.585.00 

2.000.00 
12.200.00 
89.735.00 

130.00 1.00 

8.1 25.00 
1,27-1.00 

-1 .100 00 
1-13.500.00 

3.000.00 

3.000.00 

-11. 175.00 

5.000.00 
-16. 175.00 

122.282.00 
30.000.00 

5.000.00 
J 1,000.00 

18.27 1.88 

23.500.00 

52 .500.00 
13.500.00 

296.053.88 
3-12.228.88 

.-\ctua l 

115.029.55 

9.285.00 
1.07-1 75 
2.062.93 

-100 .00 

127.852.23 

000 
0 .00 

3. ~88.oo 

3.288 .00 

130 .600.08 

2.177.25 
13.375 00 

0 00 
-1 .2-15.00 

11.309 .12 

52-1 .52 
10 .685.68 

67 .25 
12.-106 .85 
3.979.12 

I 89.869 87 

73,-105 99 

595.28 
S.2S5.S7 

S2.287 . 1-1 

130.000.08 

8. 111.73 
323.36 

-1.0 1 I 63 
1-12. -1-16.80 

2.037.95 
2,037.95 

-10. 1-16.68 

-l.018.96 
-1-1.1 65 .64 

I 02.236.98 

25.663 10 
4,585 .52 

28.680.-1 8 

16,669 .37 

16. 107.30 

55.831.0 I 

12.991.-1 8 
262. 765 .2-1 

306.930.88 
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\ "aria nee 
Fin.ii to Aetna! 

Favorahlc 

(l"nfovo rahlel 

2. I 32A 5 
2. 16-1 00 
2.8~5.~5 

37 07 
0 00 

7.15877 

1.000.00 
1,000.00 

5.812.00 
5.812 00 

0.92 

2.896. 75 
0.00 

5.000.01) 

1.75500 

15.88 
2.-175.-1 8 

31-1 32 
2.832. 75 
1,893. 15 

520.88 
17.705.13 

2, 179 .0 1 

1.-10-1 .72 
3.9 1-1. 13 
7.-197S6 

0.92 
13.27 

950.6-l 

88.37 
1.053.20 

962 .05 

962.05 

1.028 32 
981 .0-1 

2.009.36 

20.0-15.02 
-1 .336.90 

-ll-l 48 

2.319.52 

1,602.5 1 
7,392.70 

(3,33 1.01) 

508.52 

33.288.64 

35.298.00 



NEl'Tlli\E C ITY SCIIOOL DISTR ICT 
Budgctarv Comparison Sc hl·d uie 

Gl•ncral Fu nd 
Fisca l Year Ended .lune 30, 2016 

E\:l'E'IDll'l'RES (Continued): 
Current Expense (Continued): 
1 ·ndist. Expend. - Student Transportation Sen •. 

Comract Services (Other than Bl't\\·ccn Home & School) - Vendors 
Contract Services - (lkt,w cn Home and Sch) - Joint Agrmts 
Cuntr Sa v (Spl. Ed. Studcms) - Vendors 
Comr Scrv (Spl. Ed. Studcllls) - Joint i\gnnt 

Tot:11 l indis t. E.~p,•nd. - Student Transportation Sen ·. 

l 'i\..\LLOC-\Tl::D BE.\EFITS 
Social Security Contributions 
Other Rctiremc1ll Contributions - PERS 
Unemploymclll Compensation 
Workmen's Compensation 
Heallh Benelits 
Tuition Reimbursemelll 
Unused Sick Payment to Terminated/Retired Staff 

T OT.-\L llN..\LLOC.-\TED Bl::NEFITS 

On-behalfTPAF Pension Comribmions (non-budgeted ) 
On-behalfTP/\ F OPEB (Post Retire. ivkdical) Contrib.( non-budgctcd) 
Reimbursed TPAF Social Securi ty Contributions (non-budgeted) 

TOT.-\L ON-BEII.-\LF COi\TRIBllTIONS 

TOT.\ L l' ERSOi\.-\L SERVICES- E~I l'LOYEE BEN EFITS 

TOTAL Ll:\'DISTRIBUTED E\:l'E'IDITl'll ES 

TOT..\ LG Ei\ER.-\ L Cl ;RRENT E\:l'E:\SE 

L \l'IT .-\L Ol lTL\ Y 

Equipment 
Undistributed E,penditurcs - Instruct ion 
Undistributed Expenditures - Gene ral Administration 
Undistri buted E,penditures- Custodial Services 

Total Equipment 

T OT.\L C.-\Prr.-\L O LITL\ y 

Trans fer of Funds to Charter Schools 

TOTAL E\:PE:\DIT URES 
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues 

O\'cr· (Linder) Expenditures 

Fund Ba lance, .July 1 

Fu nd Balance, .June 30 

lh'rnpitula tion: 

R,·s lrictcd Fund Balanee: 
Capital Reserve 
E"ess Surplus - Designated for Subsequent Year's Expenditures 
E,ccss Surplus - Curren! Year 

..\ssil(ned Fund Ba lance: 
Year-End Encumbrances 
Des ignated for Subsequent Year's Expenditures 

l ' nassigncd Fu nd Balance 

Rrroncilia tion to Governmental Funds Statements (G.-\.-\1'): 
Las I Two S tate Aid Payments not recognized on GA,\ P bas is 
Fund Balance per Govcrnmenlal Funds (GAAi') 

Original 
Budoct 

I 9,000.00 
75,000.00 

6,000.00 
135.000.00 
235.000.00 

80.000.00 
63.000.00 
10.000.00 
35.000.00 

978.000.00 
3,000.00 

22.000.00 
I .196.000.00 

000 
0.00 
0.00 
0.00 

1.196.000.00 

6.35 7 .026 00 

8.-163.656.00 

5,000.00 
3,000.00 
3,000.00 

11.000.00 

I I .000.00 

28.843 .00 

8,503,-199.00 

(28 I .586 00) 

I .067,545.99 

785.959.99 

54 

Budget 

Transfers 

0.00 
( I 5.000 00) 

0.00 
0.00 

( I 5.000 00) 

0.00 
0.00 
000 

2.200.00 
(55,600.00) 

(3.000.00) 
0.00 

(56,-100 00) 

0.00 
0.00 
0.00 
0.00 

(56.400 00) 

16,571.88 

1.271.88 

0.00 
0.00 
0 00 
0.00 

000 

32.305.00 

33,576.88 

(33,576 88) 

0.00 

(33.576 88) 

Fi n:tl 
B1Hioet 

I 9,000.00 
60,000.00 

6,000.00 
135.000.00 
220.000.00 

80.000.00 
68.000.00 
I 0,000.00 
37.200.00 

922,400.00 
0.00 

22.000.00 
1. 139.600.00 

0.00 
000 

0.00 
000 

I .139.600.00 

6.373.597.88 

8.46-1.927.88 

5.000.00 
3.000.00 
3.000.00 

11 .000.00 

I 1,000 00 

61 , 1-18.00 

8.537.075.88 

(3 15,162.88) 

I ,067.545 99 

752.383 . I I 

Actual 

10.889.00 
4 1.137.83 

0.00 
128. 75.J .62 
I 80.781.45 

55. 762.9.J 
6.J,398.60 
10.000 00 
37. 198.0 1 

871 ,994. 20 
0.00 

I I .425.00 
I .050. 778. 7 5 

163.356.00 
194,5 I 2.00 
150,494 .66 
508.362.66 

1.559. 14 1..J I 

6,643,567. I 8 

8.589. I 82.40 

0.00 
000 
0.00 
0 00 

0.00 

4.8-13 .00 

8.594.025.40 

236,506.62 

I .067,545.99 

I .304,052.6 1 

11,361.36 
343.355. I 0 
366,255.54 

3,590.7 1 
147,71 1.90 

43 I ,778.00 

I ,30.J ,052.61 

( 199,437 .00) 
1, 104.6 15.6 1 
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Varia,lcr 
Final to Actual 

Favorable 
(l 'nfa,.orablc) 

8.11 1.00 
18,862 I 7 
6,000.00 
6.2-15.38 

39.2 18.55 

24,237 .06 
3,60 1 ..JO 

000 
1.99 

50.-105.80 
0.00 

I 0.575.00 
88.821 .25 

(163,356.00) 
(194,5 1200) 
( 150.494.66) 
(508,362 66 ) 

(.j I 9 .54 I .4 I ) 

(269,969.30) 

(124.254 52) 

5,000.00 
3,000.00 
3,000.00 

I I ,000.00 
3,000.00 

I I .000.00 

56,305.00 

(56.949 52) 

55 1,669.50 

0.00 

55 1.669.50 



NEPTUNE CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
Budc;etary Comparison Schedule 

Special Revenue Fund 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2016 

REVENUES: 

Federa l Sources 

Total Revenues 

EXPEN DITURES: 
Instruction 
Salaries of Teachers 
Other Salaries for Instruction 
Tui tion 
Other Purchased Services 
General Supplies 

Total Instructi on 

Support Services 
Salaries of Other Professional Staff 
Salaries of Secretarial & Clerica l Asst. 
Other Salaries 
Personal Services - Employee Benefits 

Total Support Services 

Total Expenditures 

Total Outflows 

Excess of Revenues Over Expenditures $ 

Origina l 
Budget 

? I 1.53 1.00 

2 11.53 1.00 

67,56 1.00 
.00 
.00 
.00 
.00 

67,561.00 

75 ,000.00 
15,000.00 
10,000.00 
43,970.00 

143,970.00 

? I 1,53 1.00 

'I 1,53 1.00 

.00 

55 

Transfers 

91,262.00 

9 [ .?62.00 

22,901.00 
11 ,500.00 
44,645.00 

2,000.00 
33,385.00 

I 14.431.00 

(19,244.00) 
.00 

( I 0,000.00) 
6,075.00 

(23. 169.00) 

9 1.262.00 

9 1,262.00 

.00 

Final 
Budget 

302,793.00 

302,793.00 

90,462.00 
11 ,500.00 
44,645.00 

2,000.00 
33,385.00 

181 ,992.00 

55,756.00 
15,000.00 

.00 
50,045.00 

120.801.00 

302,793.00 

302,793.00 

.00 

Actual 

280,528.00 

280,528.00 

90,462.00 
11 ,500.00 
44,645.00 

2,000.00 
11,1 20.00 

159,727.00 

55,756.00 
15,000.00 

.00 
50,045.00 

l ?0,80 1.00 

?80,528.00 

280.528.00 

.00 

Exhibi t C-2 

Va riance 
Final 

to Actual 

2?,265.00 

22.265.00 

.00 

.00 

.00 

.00 
22,265.00 

22,265.00 

.00 

.00 

.00 

.00 

.00 

21 ,265.00 

22,265.00 

.00 
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NEPTUNE CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
Notes to Required Supplementarv Information 

Budget-to-GAAP Reconciliation 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2016 

Note A - Explanation of Differences between Budgetary In flows and Outflows and GAA P Revenues 
and Expenditures 

Exhibit C-3 

General Fund Special Revenue Fund 
Sources/inflows of resources 

Actua l amounts (budgetary) "revenues'' from the 
budgetary comparison schedules 

Difference - budget to GAAP: 
Grant accounting budgetary basis differs from 
GAAP in that encumbrances are recognized as 
expenditures, and the re lated revenue is recognized. 

Encumbrances, June 30, 2015 
Encumbrances, June 30, 20 I 6 

State aid payment recognized for GAA P statements in 
the current year, prev iously recognized for budgetary 
purposes. 

State aid payments recognized for budgetary purposes, 
not recognized for GAA P statements until the 
subsequent year. 

Total revenues as reported on the statement of 
revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances 
balances - governmental funds. 

Uses/outflows of resources 
Actual amounts (budgetary basis) "total outflows" from 
the budgetary comparison schedule 

Differences - budget to GAA P: 
Encumbrances for supplies and equipment ordered 
but not rece ived are reported in the year the order is 
placed for budgetary purposes, but in the year the 
supplies a re received fo r financial reporting purposes. 

Encumbrances, June 30, 20 15 
Encumbrances, June 30, 2016 

Total expenditures as reported on the statement of 
revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances -
govern mental funds. 

56 

8,830,532.02 

.00 

.00 

200,674.00 

(199,437.00) 

8,83 1.769.02 

8,594,025.40 

.00 

.00 

$8.594.025 .40 

280,528.00 

3 1,654.80 
(1 1,120.00) 

.00 

(.00) 

30 I .062.80 

280,528.00 

31,654.80 
( I 1,1 20.00) 

301,062.80 
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District's proportion of the net pension 
liability (asset) 

District's proportionate share of the net 
pension liability (asset) 

District's covered-employee payroll 

District's proportionate share of the net 
pension liability (asset) as a percentage 

v, of its covered-employee payroll 
-...J 

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage 
of the tota l pension liability (local) 

$ 

NEPTUNE SCHOOL DISTRICT 

Schedule of the District's Proportionate Share of the Net Position Liability - PERS 
Last Ten Fiscal Years* 

2016 

0.0073 149556% 

1,642,061 $ 

$493,069 

333.03% 

47.93% 

Public Employees' Retirement System (PERS) 

2015 2014 2013 2012 

0.0075040 129% 0.0068677376% 

1,404,956 $ 1,312,561 ------
$467,778 $464,448 

300.34% 282.61% 

52.08% 48 .72% 

* Until a full ten year trend is compiled, information will be presented for those years for which information is available. 
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2011 2010 2009 2008 2007 



U1 
CXl 

2016 

Contractually required contribution $ 62,889 $ 

Contribution in relation t o the 

contractually required cont ribution (62,889) 

Contribution deficiency (excess) 

District 's covered-employee payroll $ 493,069 $ 

Contributions as a percentage of 

covered-employee payroll 12.75% 

NEPTUNE SCHOOL DISTRICT 

Schedule of District's Contribution - PERS 

Last Ten Fiscal Years* 

Public Employees ' Retirement System (PERS) 

2015 2014 2013 2012 

61,862 $ 51,747 

(61,862) (51,747) 

467,784 $ 464,448 

13.22% 11.14% 

2011 

* Un t il a ful l ten year t rend is compil ed, informat ion wil l be presented for those years for which information is avai lable. 
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u, 

'° 

District's proportion of the net pension 

liability {asset) ** 

District's proportionate share of the net 
pension liability (asset) ** 

State's proportionate share of the net 
pension liability (asset) associated 
with the District 

Total 

District's covered-employee payroll 

Distri ct's proportionate share of the net 
pension liabi lity {asset) as a percentage 
of its covered-employee payrol l 

Plan fid uciary net position as a percentage 
of the total pension liability 

NEPTUNE SCHOOL DISTRICT 

Schedule of the District's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability - TPAF 

Last Ten Fiscal Years* 

Teachers' Pension and Annuity Fund (TPAF) 

2016 2015 2014 

N/A N/A N/A 

N/A N/A N/A 

$ 12,681,851 $ 10,556,769 · $ 10,909,795 

$ 12,681,851 $ 10,556,769 $ 10,909,795 

$ 2,057,787 $ 1,849,528 $ 1,789,046 

N/A N/A N/A 

28.71% 33.64% 33.76% 

2013 2012 2011 

* Until a full ten year trend is compiled, information will be presented for th ose years for which information is avai lable. 

2010 2009 2008 

** Note: TPAF is a specia l funding si t uation as defined by GASB Statement No. 68 in which the State of New Jersey is 100% responsible for contributions to the plan . 
Since the district {employer) does not contr ibute directly to the plan there is no net pension liabil ity to report in the financia l statements of the district . 

Exhibit L-3 

2007 
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NEPTUNE CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
NOTES TO THE REQUIRED SUPPLEMENT ARY INFORMATION - PART III 

PENSION SCHEDULES 
June 30, 2016 

Teachers' Pension and Annuitv Fund (TPAF) 

Clw11ges ofbe11e./11 terms. The vesting and benefit provisions are set by N.J .S.A. l 8A:66. TPAF provides retirement, death 
and disabil ity benefits. All benefits vest after ten years of services, except for med ical benefits, which vest after 25 yea rs of 
service or under the disabi lity ofTPAF. Members are always fully vested for their own contributions and, after three yea rs 
o r serv ice credit. become vested for 2% of re lated interest earned on the contributions. In the case of death before retirement. 
members· benefi c iaries are entitled to full interest credited to the members ' accounts. 

Changes q/assu111ptio11s. Mortality rates were based on the RP-2000 Health An nu itant Mortality Table for Males or Females, 
as appropriate. with adjustments for morta li ty improvements based on Scale AA. Pre-retirement mortality improvements for 
acti ve members are projected using Scale AA from the base year of 2000 unti l the valuation date plus 15 years to account 
for future morta li ty improve ment. Post-retirement 11101tality improvements for non-disabled annuitants are projected using 
Sca le AA from the base year of2000 for males and 2003 for females unt il the valuation date plus 7 years to account for future 
morta lity im provement. 

Public Emplovccs' Retirement Svstem (PERS) 

Cha11ges ofbe11ef!t terms. The vesting and benefit provisions are set by N.J .S.A. 43: I SA. PERS provides retirement, death 
and disabi lity benefits. All benefits vest after ten years of service, except fo r medical benefits, which vest after 25 years of 
serv ice or under th e di sability provisions of PERS. 

Changes of ass11111ptions. Mortality rates were based on the RP-2000 Combined Hea lthy Male and Female Mo1tality Tables 
(setback I year for females) with adjustments fo r mortality improvements from the base year 20 I 2 Based on Projection Scale 
AA. 
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OTHER SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 



SPECIAL REVENUE FUND 
DETAIL STATEMENTS 

T he Spec ia l Revenue Fu nd is used to account for the proceeds of spec ific revenue sources ( other than expendable trusts or 
major capita l proj ects) that are lega lly restricted to expenditures for specific purposes. 



NEPTUNE CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
Special Revenue Fund 

Combini ng Schedule of Reven ues and Expenditures 
Budgetary Basis 

For· the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2016 

Title II Part.-\ Ti tle I IDEA Part 8 IDE.-\ Part B 
Teacher and Part .-\ Basic Preschool 

Principa l 
Trainino 2015-1 6 2015-16 20 15-16 

RE\E\'l'F.S: 

Federal Sources 26.275.00 I 05.020.00 143.-126.00 5.807.00 

Total RcH nucs 26.275.00 I 05.020.00 143.426.00 5,807.00 

E\:l' E;\DITllRES: 

Instruction: 
Salaries ofTc:1chc rs 20.853.00 65,000.00 .00 4.609.00 
Other Services for Instruct ion .00 .00 11 .500.00 .00 
Tuition .00 .00 44.645.00 .00 
Other Purchase Services .00 2,000 00 .00 .00 
Ge neral Supplies .00 11. 120.00 00 ~ 

Tota l Instruction 1 0.S53.00 78.120.00 56. 145.00 4.609.00 

Support Services: 
Salaries of Other Professional Staff .00 00 55.756.00 .00 
Sal aries of Secretarial & Clerical Assistants. .00 .00 15,000.00 .00 
Personal Services - Employee Benefits 5.4?2.00 26.900.00 16.525.00 1.1 98.00 

Total Support Services 5.422.00 26.900.00 87.281.00 1. 198.00 

Total Expenditures 1 6.275.00 I 05,020 00 143.426.00 5,807.00 

Excess (Ocliciency) of Revenues Over 
(llndcr) Expenditures $ .00 .00 .00 .00 
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Totals 
20 16 

280,528.00 

280.528.00 

90,462.00 
11 ,500.00 
44,645.00 

2,000.00 
11.1 20.00 

159,727.00 

55,756.00 
15,000.00 
50.045.00 

120.80100 

280.528.00 

.00 



FIDUCIARY FUNDS 
DETAIL STATEMENTS 

Fiduciary Funds are used to accou nt for fu nds rece ived by the sc hool district fo r a specific purpose. 

Agency Funds are used to account for assets held by the school district as an agent for indi viduals, private organizations, 
other governm ents and/or other funds. 

Student Activity Fund - This agency fund is used to account for student fu nds held at the schoo ls. 

Payroll Fund - Th is agency fund is used to account for payro ll transactions of the sc hool district. 



ASSETS: 

Cash and Cash Eq uiva lents 
Accounts Receivable: 

Payroll Service Vendor 
I nterfunds 

Total Assets 

LIABILITIES: 

Account Payable 
Payroll Ded uctions and 

Withholdings 
Due to Student Groups 

Total Liabiliti es 

NET POSITION: 

NEPTUNE CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
Combinin~ Statement of Fiduciarv Net Position 

Fiducia1y Funds 
June 30, 2016 

Trust 

Unemployment Student 
Compensation Activitv 

134.662.80 5,159.47 

2,083.35 .00 
6.464.11 5.461.45 

143.210.26 10.620.92 

.00 635.12 

.00 .00 

.00 9.985.80 

.00 10.620.92 

Held in Trust for Unemployment 
Claims and Other Purposes 143.210.26 

Total Net Position $ 143.2 10. 26 
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A~ency 
Total 

Agency 
Pav roll Fund 

1,489.15 6,648.62 

.00 .00 

.00 5.46 I .45 

1.489.15 12. 110.07 

.00 635.12 

1,489.15 1,489. 15 
.00 9.985.80 

1.489.15 12.110.07 



Woodrow Wilson 
School 

Total 

NEPT UNE CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
Schedule of Receipts and Disbursements 

Student Activity Agcncv Fund 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2016 

Balance 
Julv 1, 2015 

$9 16.51 

63 

Cash 
Receipts 

28.39 1.75 

28.39 1.75 

Cash 
Disbursements 

24. 14 8.79 

24. 148.79 

Exhibit H-3 

Balance 
June 30, 2016 

5.1 59.47 

5.1 59.47 



Payrol I Deductions 
and Withholdings 

Total 

NEPTUNE ClTY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
Scheel ule of Receipts and Disbursem ents 

Pavroll Agency Fund 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2016 

Ba lance Cash 
July 1, 2015 Receipts 

2.687 .33 1.502.597. 78 

$2.682.33 1.502.597. 78 
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Cash Balance 
Disbursements June 30, 2016 

1.503.790.96 1.489.15 

1.503.790.96 l .489.15 



LONG-TERM DEBT SCHEDULES 

The Long-Tenn Debt schedules arc used to reflect the outstanding principa l balances of the genera l long-term liabilities of 
the schoo l district. This incl udes seria l bonds ou tstandin g. 



Date of Amount of 
Issue Issue Issue 

School District Bonds June I, 2006 $9.772,000.00 

School Refunding Bonds May 11. 20 16 $5.7 10.000.00 
Series 20 16 

°' V, 

NEPTUNE CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
Long-Term Debt 

Schedule of Bonds Payable 
Year Ended June 30, 2016 

Annual Maturities Interest Balance 
Date Amount Rate July I, 2015 

07/15/20 16 460.000.00 4. 125% 6.760.000.00 

.00 
07/ 15/20 16 65,000.00 3.000% 
07/ 15/201 7 490,000.00 3.000% 
07/ 15/201 8 505,000.00 3.000% 
07/ 15/20 I 9 520,000.00 3.000% 
07/ 15/2020 535,000.00 3.000% 
07/ 15/202 1 555,000.00 3.000% 
07/ 15/2022 570.000.00 3.000% 
07/ 15/2023 590.000.00 3.000% 
07/ 15/2024 605,000.00 3.000% 
07/ 15/2025 630,000.00 3.000% 
07/ 15/2026 645.000.00 3.000% 

$6. 760.000.00 

Paid by Budgct 
Refunded Bonds 

Exhibit 1-1 

Balance 
Issued Retired June 30, 2016 

.00 6.300.000.00 460.000.00 

5. 7 10.000.00 .00 5. 71 0.000.00 

---
5. 7 10.000.00 6.300.000.00 6.1 70.000.00 

445.000.00 
5.855.000.00 

$6.300.000.00 



Exhibit 1-3 
NEPTUNE CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 

Bmli::etarv Com~arison Schedule 
Debt Service Fund 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2016 

Variance 
Origi nal Budget Final Pos itive (Negative) 
Budget Transfers Budget Actual Final to Actua l 

REV ENUES: 
Local Sources: 

Local Tax Levy 536.804.00 .00 536.804.00 536.804.00 .00 
State Sources: 

Debt Service A id Type 11 178.562.00 .00 178.562.00 178.561 .00 .00 
Total State Sources 178.561 .00 .00 178.562.00 178.561 .00 .00 

Total Revenues 715.366.00 .00 715.366.00 715.366.00 .00 

tX PEN DITURES: 
Regular Debt Service: 

Interest 270,366.00 .00 270,366.00 270,365.67 .33 

Redempt ion of Principal 445,000.00 .00 445.000.00 445.000.00 .00 
Total Regular Debt Service 7 15.366.00 .00 715.366.00 715.365.67 .33 

Total Expenditures 7 15,366.00 .00 715.366.00 715,365.67 .33 

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues 
Under Expenditures .00 .00 .00 

..,.., 
,.).) .33 

Fund Balance - .July I 1.26 .00 1.26 1.26 .00 

Fund Balance - .June 30 $ 1.26 .00 1.26 1.59 .33 

66 



STATISTICAL SECTION (Unaudited) 



Exhibit J-1 
Neptune City Board of Education 

Net Assets by Component 
Last Ten Fiscal Years 

(accrual basis of accounting) 
Unaudited 

2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 

Governmental activities 
Invested in capita l assets , net of related debt s 137,998 $ 133,631 $ 129,765 $1,471,503 $ 1,876,435 $ 2,234,516 $ 2,522,664 $ 2,747,843 $ 2,969,876 S 3,354,108 
Restricted 2,341,270 2,300,669 1,766,766 1,404,602 1,610,577 1,379,441 860,533 513,022 496,349 720,973 
Unrestricted 630,588 1,042,258 1,446,682 127,228 126,100 168, 152 412,500 230,867 (1, 111 ,438) (1,289,050) 

Total governmental activities net position s 3,109,856 $3,476,558 $ 3,343,213 $ 3,003,333 $ 3,613,112 $ 3,782,109 $ 3,795,697 S 3,491,732 $ 2,354,787 S 2,786,031 

Business-type activities 
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt $ 2,590 $ 1,513 s 792 $ 1,591 $ 
Restricted 

1,310 s 1,030 s 16,934 s 15,041 $ 13,169 $ 14,217 

Unrestricted 19,177 21,573 30,860 47,768 69,951 94,433 83,961 77,257 93,352 115,610 
Total business-type activities net position s 21,767 $ 23,086 $ 31,652 s 49,359 $ 71,261 $ 95,463 $ 100,895 $ 92,298 $ 106,521 s 129,827 

District-wide 
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt $ 140,588 $ 135,144 $ 130,557 $ 1,473,094 S 1,877,745 $ 2,235,546 $ 2,539,598 $ 2,762,884 S 2,983,045 S 3,368,325 

°' Restricted 2,341 ,270 2,300,669 1,766,766 1,404,602 1,610,577 1,379,441 860,533 513,022 496,349 720,973 ---J 
Unrestricted 649,765 1,063,831 1,477,542 174,996 196,051 262,585 496,46 1 308,124 (1,018,086) (1 ,173,440) 

Total district net position _l _ 30_1 31,623 $3,499,644 $ 3 ,374,865 $ 3,052,692 S 3,684,373 $ 3,877,572 $ 3,8962_92 $ 3,584,030 S 2,461,308 $ 2,915,858 

Source: CAFR Schedule A-1 



Exhibit J-2 
Neptune City Board of Education 

Changes in Net Assets/Net Position 
Last Ten Fiscal Years 

(modified accrual basis of accounting) 

Unaudited 

2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 

Expenses 
Governmental activities 

Instruction 
Regular $ 2,497,925 $ 2,393,370 $ 2,418,256 s 2,670,350 s 2,262,074 s 2,437,829 $ 2,546,270 s 2,499,454 $ 2,716,913 s 2,838 ,640 

Special education 336 ,860 350,189 366,030 402,900 488,776 471 ,375 579,817 526,615 613 ,797 810,569 
Other special education 122,621 134,976 145,485 72,210 123, 593 49,723 38,032 
Vocational 
Other instruction 148,172 149,143 188,019 46,772 42,138 43,373 44,692 41 ,913 34,400 42,494 
Nonpublic school programs 
AdulVcontinuing education programs 

Support Services: 
Tuition 2,076,627 2,217,374 2,588,579 2,427,076 2,315,945 2,930,650 3,221,975 3,536,811 3,852,571 3,601 ,874 
Student & instruction related services 663,179 637,080 657,549 656,765 709, 150 722,105 712,864 834,599 908,773 1,056,926 
General/Business administrative services 424.977 490,81 6 310,608 289,810 429.743 328.353 31 1,473 303,208 388,469 371 ,406 
School administrative services 242 ,620 245,923 206,921 260 ,287 115,787 245,936 261,519 249,402 275,744 255,684 
Plant operations and maintenance 308 ,618 326,933 379.282 375 ,886 375,289 360,739 359,534 386,144 373,255 363 ,832 

(J"\ Pupil transportation 265. 183 288,782 302,395 264,153 198,846 197.187 222,790 207,490 184,646 174.781 
00 Special Schools 

Charter Schools 45,776 21 ,491 25,629 34,957 4,843 

Interest on long-term debt 402,910 389.779 375,430 360,991 346,159 330,716 314,654 297,774 280,984 264,589 

Unallocated depreciation 1,565 1,566 1,566 1,566 1,566 1,566 102,120 204,012 204,269 204,269 

Total governmental activities expenses 7,368,636 7,490,955 7,794,635 7,879,177 7,466,225 8,236,805 8,775.547 9,245,972 9,883,544 10,027,939 

Business-type activities: 
Food service 118,535 118,334 129,069 133,149 128,335 135,108 143,865 155,832 148,438 151,165 

Child Care 
Total business- type activities expense 118,535 118.334 129,069 133,149 128.335 135,108 143,865 155,832 148,438 151,165 

Total district expenses $7,487 ,171 $7,609,289 $7,923,704 $8,012,326 $7,594,560 $8,371.913 $8,919,412 $9,401 ,804 $10,031,982 $1 0,179.104 

Program Revenues 
Governmental activities: 

Charges for services: 
Instruction (tuition) 29,518 9,900 7.983 

Pupil transportation 
Business and other support services 

Operating grants and contributions 319.411 312,745 652,179 733,357 657,717 1,1 31,392 1,420,400 

Capital grants and contributions 
Total governmental activities program revenues 319,411 312,745 652,179 733,357 687.235 1,141.292 1,428,383 



Neptune City Boar d of Education Exhibit J-2 
Changes in Net Assets/Net Position (Continued) 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 
(modified accrual basis of accounting) 

Unaudited 

2007 2008 2009 2010 20 11 2012 2013 2014 2015 201 6 

Business-type activities: 
Charges for services 

Food service 69,804 62,202 70,381 75,807 79,019 68,627 52.413 49,131 47,601 44,583 
Child care 

O perating grants and contributions 48,208 53,909 63,677 74,969 71 ,054 90,431 96,642 97,786 114,933 129,698 
Capital grants and contributions 

Total business type activit ies program revenues 118,012 116,111 134,058 150,776 150,073 159,058 149,055 146,917 162,534 174,281 
Total district program revenues $ 118,012 $ 116,111 $ 134,058 $ 150,776 $ 150,073 s 159,058 $ 149,055 $ 146,917 $ 162,534 s 174,281 

Net (Expense)/Revenue 
Governmental activities s (7,368,636) $ (7,490,955) $ (7,794 ,635) $ (7 ,559,766) $ (7, 153,480) $ (7,584 ,626) $ (8,042,190) s (8,558,737) $ (8 ,742,252) s (8,599,556) 
Business-type activities (523) (2,223) 4,989 17,627 21 ,738 23 ,950 5,190 (8,915) 14,096 23,116 
Total district-wide net expense s (7,369,159) $ (7,493,178) $ (7,789,646) s (7,542,139) $ (7 ,131,742) $ (7,560,676) s (8,037,000) $ (8,567,652) $ (8,728,156) s (8,576.440) 

General Revenues and Other Changes in Net Position 
Governmental activities: 

Property taxes levied for general purposes, net $ 4,406,498 $ 4,492,518 $ 4,646,313 $ 4,646,327 s 4,917,380 $ 5,033,670 $ 5,197,941 s 5,354,700 $ 5,926,358 $ 6,044,911 
Taxes levied for debt service 250,000 297,242 10,965 334,300 528,109 534,324 534,105 536,928 535,261 536,804 
Unrestricted grants and contributions 2.416,942 2,757.424 2,871,885 2,197,984 2,306,551 2,186,821 2,282,208 2,338,857 2,361,027 2.400,615 
Payments in lieu of taxes 

(j\ Investment earnings 564,667 303,355 80,967 17,749 6,295 6,382 4,658 3,316 2,806 2,595 
I.Cl Miscellaneous income 10,310 10,478 54,652 23,527 4,924 7,468 36,867 20,971 40,669 45,875 

Transfers (3,000) (3,360) (3,491) 
Total governmental activities 7,645.417 7,857,657 7,661 ,291 7,219,887 7,763,259 7,768,665 8,055,779 8,254,772 8,866,121 9,030,800 

Business-type activities: 
Investment earnings 220 181 86 79 166 252 241 195 127 190 
Transfers 3,000 3,360 3,491 

Total business-type activities 3,220 3,541 3,577 79 166 252 241 195 127 190 
Total district-wide $ 7 ,648,637 s 7 ,861 ,198 $ 7,664,868 $ 7,219,966 s 7,763,425 $ 7,768,917 $ 8,056,020 $ 8 ,254,967 s 8,866,248 $ 9,030,990 

Change in Net Position 
Governmental activities $ 276,781 $ 366,702 $ (133,344) $ (339,879) $ 609,779 $ 184,039 $ 13,589 s (303,965) $ 123,869 $ 431 ,244 
Business-type activities 2,697 1,318 8,566 17,706 21,904 24 ,202 5.431 (8,720) 14,223 23,306 
Total district s 279,478 $ 368,020 $ (124,778) $ (322,173) $ 631,683 $ 208,241 $ 19,020 $ (312,685) s 138,092 $ 454,550 

Source: CAFR Schedule A-2 



Exhibit J-3 
Neptune City Board of Education 

Fund Balances . Governmental Funds 
Last Ten Yea rs 

(modified accrual basis of accounting) 
Unaudited 

2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 

General Fund 
Reserved/Restricted s 2,153,344 $ 1,933,373 $ 1,851, 123 $ 1,403,619 S 1,606,218 S 1,377,712 $ 860,533 $ 513,021 $ 496,347 $ 720 ,972 
Unreserved/Assigned/Unassigned 244, 071 359,660 399,801 336,146 362,788 388 ,047 635,458 453,194 370,525 383 ,644 

Total general fund s 2,397,4 15 $ 2,293,033 $ 2,250,924 $ 1,739,765 S 1,969,006 $ 1,765 ,759 _ Uc.495,991 s 966,215 $ 866,872 S 1,104,616 

All Other Governmental Funds 
Reserved/Restricted s 6,439,890 $ 962,1 03 s 15,500 $ $ 4,359 $ $ s 1 $ 1 $ 2 
Unreserved/Assigned/Unassigned, 
reported in: 

Special Revenue Fund (1 ,692) (1 ,692) 
Capital Projects Fund 1,104,605 767,260 122,793 56,896 1,534 1,534 
Debt Service Fund 541 ,11 2 638,692 178,476 7,456 195 195 
Permanent Fund 

Total all other governmental funds $ 8,083,915 $ 2,366,363 $ 316,769 $ 64,352 $ 4 ,359 $ 1, 729 $ 1,729 s 1 s 1 $ 2 

-....J 
0 

Source: CAFR Schedule B-1 



Exhibit J-4 
Neptune City Board of Education 

Changes in Fund Balances - Governmental Funds 
Last Ten Fiscal Years 

Unaudited 

2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 

Revenues 
Tax levy $ 4,656,498 $ 4,789,760 $ 4,657 .278 s 4,980,627 s 5,445,489 $ 5,567,994 $ 5,732,046 $ 5,891 ,628 $ 6,461,619 $ 6,581 .715 
Tuition charges 29,518 9,900 7,982 
Interest earnings 564 ,668 303,355 80,967 17,749 6,295 6,382 4,658 3,316 2,806 2,595 
Miscellaneous 10,310 10,478 54 ,652 23,527 4,924 7,468 36,867 20,971 40,669 45, 875 
State sources 2,152,908 2,533,250 2,575,950 1,793,802 2,319,944 2,477,291 2,723,294 2.702,925 2,772.162 2,908,968 
Federal sources 264,033 224,173 295,934 723,593 299,352 361 ,709 292,271 293,649 260,682 301 ,063 

Total revenue 7,648,417 7,861,016 7,664,781 7,539 ,297 8,076 ,004 8,420,844 8,789,136 8,942.007 9,547 ,838 9,848,198 

Expenditures 
Instruction 

Regular Instruction 1,659,772 1,663,033 1,675,306 1,950,317 1,669,272 1,641,101 1,692,057 1,730,999 1,635,941 1,611 .377 
Special education instruction 211 ,460 231 ,891 250,899 274,413 268,657 279,859 376,483 350,064 355,576 402,319 
Other special instruction 123,593 49,723 38,032 
Vocational education 
Other instruction 148,172 149,143 188,019 169,392 177,114 188,858 116,902 41 ,913 34,400 42,494 
Nonpublic school programs 
AdulUcontinuing education programs 

Support Services: 
Tuition 2,076 ,627 2,217,374 2,588,579 2,427,076 2,315,945 2,930,651 3,221 ,975 3,536,811 3,852,572 3,601 ,874 

-._J Student & instruction related services 547,480 524,077 557,137 536,465 572,197 605,515 582,097 623,980 638,037 730,654 ,.... 
General administrative services 313,110 368,906 204,906 194,561 199,013 21 4, 501 192,174 193,048 221 ,541 189,870 
School Administrative services 172,166 179,951 209,769 231,469 227,083 235,247 234,431 224,020 245,162 226.772 
Business administrative services 
Plant operations and maintenance 265,81 4 293,593 331,325 333,559 332,475 312,171 307,145 332,406 313 ,066 306,931 
Pupil transportation 265,182 288,782 302,395 264, 153 198,846 197,186 222,790 207,490 184,646 180,782 
Unallocated employee benefits 1,294,673 1,199,179 1,121.539 1,122,459 1,134,116 1,285 ,262 1,374 ,269 1,335,910 1,400,408 1, 559,141 

Special Schools 
Charter Schools 45,776 21,491 25,629 34,957 4,843 
Capital outlay 2,290,266 5,815,132 1,591 ,070 81,397 53,291 2,070 2,650 21,060 2, 800 
Debt service: 

Principal 350 ,000 350,000 360,000 375,000 390,000 410,000 425,000 445,000 
Interest and other charges 251 ,246 748,529 382,050 367,613 352,969 337,809 322,031 305,531 288,309 361 ,362 

Total expenditures 9,495,968 13,679,590 9,752 ,994 8,302,874 7,906,754 8,626.721 9,060,633 9,471,782 9,647,181 9,701 ,451 
Excess (Deficiency) of revenues 

over (under) expenditures (1,847,551) (5,818,574} {2,088,213) (763,577} 169,250 (205,877) (271 ,497) (529,775) (99,343} 146,747 

Other Financing sources (uses) 
Proceeds from borrowing 
Capital leases (non-budgeted} 
Proceeds of refunding debt 5,710,000 
Payments to escrow agent {5,976,106) 
Original issue premium 357 ,103 
Transfers in 504,860 257,580 45,897 1,559 195 
Transfers out (504,860) (260,940) (49,387) (1,559} (195) 

Total other financing sources (uses) (3,000) (3,360) (3,490) 90,997 

Net change in fund balances $ (1,850,55 1) $ (5,821,934) $ (2,091_.?0~ $ (763,577) $ 169,250 $ (205 ,877) $ (271,497) _$~(529 ,775) $ J_99,343) s 237.744 

Debt service as a percentage of 
noncapital expenditures 3.5% 9.5% 9.0% 8.7% 9.1% 8.3% 7.9% 7.6% 8.0% 9.0% 

Source : CAFR Schedule B-2 



--.J 
N 

Fiscal Year 

Neptune City Board of Education 
Genera l Fund Other Local Revenue by Source 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 
Unaudited 

Interest on Tuition 
Ended June 30, Investments Revenue Rentals Misc. 

2007 59,808 - - 10,310 
2008 45,775 - - 10,478 
2009 80,967 - - 54,652 
2010 17,749 - - 23,527 
2011 6 ,239 - - 4,924 
2012 6,382 - - 7,468 
2013 4,658 - - 36,867 
2014 3,361 29,518 - 20,926 
2015 2,805 9,900 - 40,669 
2016 2,595 7, 982 - 45,875 

Source: District Records 

Exhibit J-5 

Total 

70, 118 
56,253 

135,619 
41 ,276 
11 ,163 
13,850 
41 ,525 
53,805 
53,374 
56,452 



Neptune City Board of Educatio n 
Assessed Value and Es timated Actual Value of Taxable Property 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 
Unaudited 

Fiscal 
Year 

Ended 
June 30, Vacant Land Residential Farm Reg. Qfa rm Com mercial Industria l Aeartment 

2007 4 ,374 ,800 31 1,953,800 0 0 75,532.100 10,480,800 29,192,800 
2008 4,003.400 312,758.500 0 0 77,940,700 10,480,800 29,192,800 
2009 4,003,400 31 1,930,900 0 0 75,474 ,900 10,480,800 29,192.800 
2010 3,920,700 313,448,500 0 0 75,933,900 10,480,800 29,192,800 
2011 3,949,100 313,842,900 0 0 75,217,600 10,480,800 29,192,800 
2012 3,580,700 315,236,700 0 0 75,789,600 10,480,800 29,192,800 
2013 3,483,100 314,357,500 0 0 77,218,200 10,480,800 29,192,800 
201 4 4,499,400 310,885,000 0 0 76,607 ,800 10,480,800 29,192,800 
2015 5,821,300 364 ,329,400 0 0 106,096,700 9,81 9,500 46,898,200 
2016 4 ,352,000 374 ,923,500 0 0 103,560,900 9,375,300 48,960,600 

Source: 0 1stnct records Tax !isl summary & Municipal Tax Assessor 

~ Note: Real property is required to be assessed at some percentage of true value (fair or markel Y"alue) eslablished by each county board of laxallon. 

Reassessment occurs when ordered by the County Board of Taxation 

a Taxable Value of Machinery. Implements and Equipment of Telephone, Telegraph and Messenger System Companies 

b Tax rates are per S100 

Total Assessed 
Value 

431 ,534,300 
434,376,200 
431 ,082,800 
432,976,700 
432,683,200 
434,280,600 
434,732,400 
431,665,800 
532,965,100 
541 ,172,300 

Exhibi t J -6 

Less: Tax- Total Direct Estimated Actu.11 
Exempt Public Utilities Net Valuation School Tax (County Equalized 

Proeen~ Taxable Rate D Value) 

20,362,900 347,553 431,881 ,853 1.109 558,255.576 
20,217.700 353,158 434,729,358 1.072 589.849,108 
20,217,700 385,808 431 ,468,608 1.154 582,527,332 
19,968,800 436,119 433,41 2,819 1,257 565,479,990 
19,959,300 455,919 433,139,119 1.286 542,707,042 
20,117,200 483,536 434,764,136 1.318 534 ,163,258 
19,221,500 0 434,732,400 1.355 500,721,595 
19,221,500 0 431,665,800 1.413 483,153,441 
26,046,200 0 532,965,100 1.303 492,258,152 
27,058,700 0 541,172.300 1.248 528,621,442 



--...J 
.p.. 

Fiscal 
Year 

Ended 
June 30, 

2007 
2008 
2009 
2010 
2011 
2012 
2013 
2014 
2015 
2016 

Neptune City Board of Education 
Direct and Overlapping Property Tax Rates 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 

(rate per $100 of assessed value) 
Unaudited 

Neptune City Board of Education 

Borough of 
General Obligation Neptune 

Basic Rate• Debt Service b Total Direct City 

1.040 0.069 1.109 0.797 
1.068 0.003 1.071 0.878 
1.077 0.077 1.154 0.913 
1.135 0.122 1.257 0.955 
1.163 0.123 1.286 1.020 
1.195 0.123 1.318 1.054 
1.212 0.123 1.355 1.084 
1.290 0.123 1.413 1.121 
1.180 0.123 1.303 0.943 
1.148 0.100 1.248 0.949 

Source: District Records and Municipal Tax Collector 

Note: 

Exhibit J-7 

Overlapping Rates Total Direct 
and 

Monmouth 
Overlapping 

Tax Rate 
Library/Other County 

0.018 0.336 2.260 
0.019 0.333 2.301 
0.018 0.335 2.421 
0.018 0.341 2.571 
0.018 0.352 2.664 
0.019 0.345 2.736 
0.020 0.357 2.816 
0.020 0.333 2.887 
0.017 0.271 2.534 
0.018 0.275 2.490 

NJSA 18A:7F-5d limits the amount that the district can submit for a general fund tax levy . The levy when added to other components of the district's 
net budget may not exceed the prebudget year net budget by more than the spending growth limitation calcu 

a The district's basic tax rate is calculated from the A4F form which is submitted with the budget and the Net valuation taxable. 

b Rates for debt service are based on each year's requirements. 



Taxable 
Assessed 

Taxpayer Va lue 

Brighton Arms Apartments, LLC $ 33,544,500 
Neptune Realty Associates 12,500,000 
Neptune City Complex, LLC 6,900,000 
Hampshire Assoc. 6,703,600 
Sylvania 33 Associates, LP 6,410,600 
JSMD Inc. 6,393,500 
Coral Harbor Property. LLC 5,339,300 
TFH Publicaions Inc 4,208,400 
Rosko-Phil Oxford, LLC 4,156,700 

-..J Jumping Brook Enterprises, Inc. 3,506,500 
u, Neptune City Complex, LLC 

Neptune City Stores, LLC 
Jersey Shore Convalescent Center 

Total $ 89,663,100 

Source: District CAFR & Municipal Tax Assessor 

Neptune City Board of Education 
Pr incipal Property TaxPayers• 

Cur rent Year and Ten Years Ago 
Unaudited 

2016 
¾ of Tota l 

Rank District Net 
[Optional] Assessed Value 

1 6.20% 
2 2.31% 
3 1.28% 
4 1.24% 
5 1.18% 
6 1.18% 
7 0.99% 
8 0.78% 
9 0.77% 

10 0.66% 

16.59% 

Exhibit J-8 

2006 
Taxable ¾ of Total 

Assessed Rank District Net 
Value [Oetional] Assessed Value 

$ 19,272 ,000 1 4.47% 
11,701,600 2 2.71 % 

0.00% 
4,080,000 6 0.95% 
3,242,700 8 0.75% 
5,388,600 4 1.25% 

0.00% 
0.00% 

2,971,700 10 0.69% 
2,998,500 9 0.70% 
7,274,500 3 1.69% 
4,686,600 5 1.09% 
3,884,500 7 0.90% 

$ 65,500,700 15.20% 



"'1 
a, 

Fiscal 
Year 

Ended 
June 30, 

2007 
2008 
2009 
2010 
2011 
2012 
2013 
2014 
2015 
2016 

Neptune City Board of Education 
Property Tax Levies and Collections 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 
Unaudited 

Collected within the Fiscal Year of the Levy 
Taxes Levied for the Fiscal Percentage of 

Year Amount Levy 

4,656,498 4,656,498 100.00% 
4,789,760 4,789,760 100.00% 
4,657,278 4 ,657,278 100.00% 
4,980,627 4,980,627 100.00% 
5,445,489 5,445,489 100.00% 
5,567,994 5,567,994 100.00% 
5,732,046 5,732,046 100.00% 
5,891,628 5,891 ,628 100.00% 
6,101 ,619 6,101 ,619 100.00% 
6,581,715 6,58 1,715 100.00% 

Source: District records including the Certificate and Report of School Taxes (A4F form) 

Exhibit J-9 

Collections 
in 

Subsequent 
Years 

Note: School taxes are collected by the Municipal Tax Collector. Under New Jersey State Statute, a municipality is requ ired to remit to the 
school district the entire property tax balance, in is the amount voted upon or certified prior to the end of the school year. 
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Fisca l 
Year 

Ended 
June 30, 

2007 
2008 
2009 
2010 
2011 
2012 
2013 
2014 
2015 
2016 

Governmental Activities 

Certificates 
of 

General Obl igation Bonds Participation 

9,772,000 
9,420,000 
9,070,000 
8,720,000 
8,360,000 
7 ,985,000 
7 ,595,000 
7,185,000 
6,760,000 
6,170,000 

Capital 
Leases 

Sou rce: District CAFR Schedules 1-1, 1-2 

Neptune City Board of Education 
Ratios of Outstanding Debt by Type 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 
Unaudited 

Bond 
Anticipation 

Notes (BANS) 

Business-Type 
Activities 

Capital Leases 

Note: Details regarding the district's outstanding debt can be found in the notes to the financial statements. 

a See Exhibit NJ J-1 3 for personal income and population data. These ratios are calculated using personal income and 

population for the prior calendar year. 
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Total Percentage of Personal 

District Income• Per Capita• 

9,772,000 N/A 58,622.00 
9,420,000 N/A 59,915.00 
9,070,000 NIA 57,337.00 
8,720,000 N/A 57,873.00 
8,360,000 NIA 61,039.00 
7 ,985,000 NIA 63,00 1.00 
7,985,000 NIA 63,067.00 
7,185,000 NIA 66,019.00 
6,760,000 NIA NIA 
6,170,000 N/A NIA 
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Fiscal 
Year 

Ended 
June 30 , 

2007 
2008 
2009 
2010 
2011 
2012 
2013 
2014 
2015 
2016 

Neptune City Board of Education 
Ratios of General Bonded Debt Outstanding 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 
Unaudited 

General Bonded Debt Outstanding 

Percentage of 

General Net General Actual Taxable 

Obligation Bonded Debt Value a of 
Bonds Deductions Outstanding Property 

9,772,000 - 9,772,000 2.26% 
9,420,000 - 9,420,000 2.17% 
9,070,000 - 9,070,000 2.10% 
8,720,000 - 8,720,000 2.01% 
8,360,000 - 8,360,000 1.93% 
7,985,000 7,985,000 1.84% 
7,595,000 - 7,595,000 1.75% 
7,185,000 - 7,185,000 1.66% 
6,760,000 - 6,760,000 1.26% 
6,170,000 - 6,170,000 1.14% 

Per Capita b 

58,622 
59,915 
57,337 
57,873 
61,039 
63,001 
63,067 
66,019 

NIA 
NIA 

Note: Details regarding the district's outstand ing debt can be found in the notes to the financial statements . ..,. 
a See Exhibit NJ J-6 for property tax data. 
b Population data can be found in Exhibit NJ J-14 
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Neptune City Board of Education 
Direct and Overlapping Governmental Activities Debt 

As of June 30, 2016 

Governmental Unit 

Debt repaid with property taxes 
Borough of Neptune City 

Other debt 
Monmouth County 

Subtotal, overlapping debt 

Neptune City School District Direct Debt 

Total direct and overlapping debt 

Unaudited 

Sources: Neptune City Finance Officer, Monmouth County Finance Office 

Debt 
Outstanding 

3,092,100 

479,236,724 

Estimated 
Percentage 

Applicable a 

100.000% 

0.456% 

Estimated Share 
of Overlapping 

Debt 

$ 

3,1 13,200 

2,186,836 

5,300,036 

6,170,000 

11,470,036 

Note: Overlapping governments are those that coincide, at least in part, with the geographic boundaries of the District. 

Exhibit J-12 

This schedule estimates the portion of the outstanding debt of those overlapping governments that is borne by the residents and 
businesses of Neptune City. This process recognizes that, when considering the District's ability to issue and repay long-term debt, the 
entire debt burden borne by the residents and businesses should be taken into account. However this does not imply that 
every taxpayer is a resident, and therefore responsible for repaying the debt, of each overlapping payment. 

a For debt repaid with property taxes, the percentage of overlapping debt applicable is estimated using taxable assessed property values. 
Applicable percentages were estimated by determining the portion of another governmental unit's taxable value that is within the 
district's boundaries and divid ing it by each unit's total taxable value. 
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Debt limit 

Total net debt applicable to limit 

Legal debt margin 

Total net debt applicable to the limit 
as a percentage of debt lim it 

Neptune City Board of Education 
Legal Debt Margin Information 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 
Unaudited 

Legal Debt Margin Calculation for Fiscal Year 2016 

Equalized valuation basis 
2015 521 ,961,381 
2014 486,110,135 
2013 483,680,908 

[AJ $ 1,491 ,752,424 

Average equalized valuation of taxable property [A/3J s 497,250,808 

Debt limit (3 % of average 
equalization va lue) [BJ 14,917,524 a 
Net bonded school debt (CJ 6,170,000 
Legal debt margin [B-CJ $ 8,747,524 

2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 

$ 14,866,786 $ 16,246,093 $17,166,574 16,801,814 16,801,814 

9,772,000 9,420,000 9,070,000 8,360,000 8,360,000 

$ 5,094,786 $ 6,826 ,093 $ 8,096,574 $ 8,441 ,814 s 8,441,814 

65.73% 57.98% 52 .84% 49.76% 49.76% 

Source: Abstract or Ratables and District Records CAFR Schedule J-7 

a Limit set by NJSA 1 BA:24-19 for a K through 8 district; other % limits would be applicable for other districts 

Exhibit J-1 3 

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 

16,261,873 15,645,596 15,091,758 14,668,502 14,917,524 

7,985,000 7,595,000 7,185,000 6,760,000 6,170,000 

$ 8,276,873 $ 8,050,596 $ 7,906,758 $ 7 ,908,502 $ 8,747,524 

49.10% 48.54% 47.61% 46.09% 41 .36% 
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Neptune City Board of Education 
Demographic and Economic Statistics 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 
Unaudited 

Personal 
Income Per Capita 

(thousands of Personal Unemployment 
Year Population a dollars) b lncome c Rated 

2007 5,144 - 58,622 
2008 5,111 - 59,915 
2009 5,100 - 57,337 
2010 4,868 - 57,873 
2011 4,855 61,039 
2012 4,845 - 63,001 
2013 4,841 - 63,067 
2014 4,822 - 66,019 
2015 4,803 - N/A 
2016 N/A - N/A 

Source: 

a Population information provided by the NJ Dept of Labor and Workforce Development 
b Personal income - not ava ilable 

c Per Capita- US Department of Commerce 

d Unemployment data provided by the NJ Dept of Labor and Workforce Development 

3.8% 
5.0% 
8.1% 
8.2% 
8.3% 
8.7% 

11.4% 
7.4% 
6.6% 
N/A 
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Employer Employees 

TFH Publication 225 
First Student 188 
Stop 'n Shop 164 
Coral Harbor Property 125 

00 
Jersey Shore Univ. Medical Center 110 

N Borough of Neptune City 92 
Neptune City Board of Education 55 
Kelly's Tavern 65 
Pete N Elda's Pizzeria 63 

1,087 

Source: 
Neptune City Municipal Clerk 
2007 Information not available 

Neptune City Board of Education 
Principal Employers 

Current Year and Ten Years Ago 
Unaudited 

2016 

Rank Percentage of 
(Optional) Total Employment 

1 NIA 
2 NIA 
3 NIA 
4 NIA 
5 NIA 
6 NIA 
7 NIA 
8 NIA 
9 NIA 

0.00% 
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2007 

Percentage of 
Total 

Employees Rank (Optional) Employment 

NIA NIA NIA 
NIA NIA NIA 
NIA NIA NIA 
NIA NIA NIA 
NIA NIA NIA 
NIA NIA NIA 
NIA NIA NIA 
NIA NIA NIA 
NIA NIA NIA 

0.00% 



2007 
Function/Program 

Instruction 

Regular 28.0 
Special education 54 
Other special education 0.0 
Vocational 0.0 
Other instruction 0.0 
Nonpublic school programs 0.0 
Adult/continuing education programs 0.0 

Support Services: 
Tuition 00 

co Student & instruction related services 8.3 
w General administrative services 2.0 

School administrative services 2.0 
Business administrative services 2.0 
Plant operations and maintenance 3.5 
Pupil transportation 00 

Special Schools 0.0 
Food Service 0.0 
Child Care 0.0 

Total 51 .2 

Source: District Personnel Records 

Neptune City Board of Educat io n 
Full-time Equiva lent District Employees by Function/Program 

Last Ten Fiscal Yea rs 

Unaudited 

2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 

28.0 28.0 27.0 26.0 25.0 
5.9 5.9 5.9 5.9 7.0 
0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 
0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 
0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 
0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 
0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 
8.3 8.3 8.8 9.8 10.0 
2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 
2.0 2.0 2.0 2.5 2.5 
2.0 2.0 2.0 1.0 1.0 
3.5 3.5 3.5 3.5 3.5 
0.0 0.0 0.0 00 0.0 
0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 
0.0 0.0 00 0.0 0.0 
0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 

51 .7 51.7 51 .2 50.7 51 .0 
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201 3 2014 2015 2016 

25.0 25.0 25.0 25.0 
7.5 7.5 7.5 8.0 
0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 
0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 
0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 
0.0 0.0 0.0 00 
0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 

0.0 0.0 00 0.0 
11.0 12.0 13.0 13.0 
2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 
2.5 2.5 2.5 2.5 
1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 
3.5 3.5 3.5 3.5 
0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 
0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 
0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 
0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 

52.5 53.5 54.5 55.0 
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Fiscal Operating Cost Per Percentage 

Neptune City Board of Education 
Operating Statistics 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 
Unaudited 

Pupil/Teacher Ratio 

Teaching Staff 
Year Enrollment Expenditures• Pupil Change b Elementa~ Middle School 

2007 392 6,954,456 17,741 22.10% 35 1:20 1:20 
2008 387 7,115,929 18,387 3.64% 36 1:20 1:20 
2009 395 7,429,874 18,810 2.30% 36 1:20 1:20 
2010 398 7,503,865 18,854 0.23% 36 1:20 1:20 
2011 389 7,140,494 18,356 -2.64% 35 1:20 1:21 
20 12 395 7,911 ,843 20,030 9.12% 35 1:20 1:21 
201 3 406 8,345,952 20,557 2.60% 35 1:20 1:21 
2014 396 9,104,1 91 22,990 1.40% 35 1 20 1:21 
2015 379 8,931 ,072 23,565 2.50% 36 1 19 1:21 
2016 363 8,895,088 24, 504 3.99% 37 1 19 1:21 

Sources: District records, ASSA and Schedules J-1 2. J-1 4 

Note: Enrollment based on annual October district count. 

a Operating expenditures equal total expenditures less debt service and capital outlay; Schedule B-2 
b Teaching staff includes only full-time equivalents of certi ficated staff. 
c Average daily enrollment and average daily attendance are obtained from the School Register Summary (SRS). 
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Average 
Daily Average Daily % Change in Student 

Enrollment Attendance Average Daily Attendanc e 
(ADE) C (ADA) C Enrollment Percentage 

389 364 -4 .19% 93.57% 
393 367 1.03% 93.50% 
391 364 -0 .51% 93.15% 
398 377 1.79% 94.57% 
389 367 -2.26% 94.34% 
395 376 1.54% 95.19% 
406 384 2.78% 94.55% 
396 376 2.46% 95.01 % 
379 359 -4.29% 94.68% 
363 343 -4.22% 94.62% 
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2007 2008 
Distr ict Build ing 

Elementary {K·Bl 
Woodrow Wilson (1927) 

Neptune City Board of Education 

Sc hool Bui lding Information 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 
Unaudited 

2009 2010 2011 

Square Feet 42,124 49 ,061 49,061 49,061 49,061 
Capacity (students) 340 375 375 375 
Enrollment 392 387 395 396 

Number of Schools at June 30, 2014 
Elementary = 1 

Source: District records, ASSA 
Note: Year of original construction is shown in parentheses. Increases in square footage and capacity are the result of 

and additions. Enrollment is based on the annual October district count. 

375 
389 

Exhibit J.1 s 

2012 2013 2014 2015 201 6 

49 ,061 49 ,061 49,061 49,061 49,061 
375 375 375 375 375 
395 395 394 379 363 



School Facilities Project# (s) 

Woodrow Wilson NIA $ 

Total School Facilities 337,413 

Other Facilities - None 

00 Grand Total $ 337,413 $ 
°' 

Neptune City Board of Education 
General Fund 

Schedule of Required Maintenance by School Facility 
Last Ten Fiscal years 

Unaudited 

UNDISTRIBUTED EXPENDITURES - REQUIRED MAINTENANCE FOR SCHOOL FACILITIES 
11-000-261-XXX 

2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010 

44,166 $ 41,022 $ 41 ,644 $ 40,165 $ 43,018 $ 31 ,665 $ 23,236 

44,166 41,022 41 ,644 40,165 43,018 31 ,665 23,236 

44,166 $ 41,022 $ 41 ,644 $ 40,165 $ 43,018 $ 31,665 $ 23,236 

Exhibit J-19 

2009 2008 2007 

$21 ,150 $ 13,847 $ 37,500 

21 ,150 13,847 37,500 

$21 ,150 $ 13,847 $ 37,500 



Company 

NJSIG 

NJSIG 

NJSIG 

NJSIG 

NJSIG 

NJSIG 

NJSIG 

NJSIG 

NJSIG 

Neptune City Board of Education 
INSURANCE SCHEDULE 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016 
Unaudited 

Type of Coverage 

Property Blanket Building & Contents-
Replacement Cost Values 

Flood/Earthquake 

Pollution Liability 

General Liability 
-Each Occurrence 
-General Aggregate 

-Personal Injury 
-Fire Damage 
-Medical Expense Limit 

(Excluding students) 
-Employee Benefit Liability 
-Aggregate 

Automotive Coverage 
-Combined Single Limit 
-Hired/Non-Owned 
-Uninsured & Underinsured 

Inland Marine 
-Electronic Data Processing Equipment 

Crime Coverage 
-Employee Dishonesty with Faithful 

Performance 
-Theft, Disappearance & Destruction 

Inside and Out 

Boiler & Machinery Coverage 

Catastrophe Liability Coverage 
-Occurrence Limit 
-Aggregate Limit 
-Retained Limit 

$ 

Coverage 

9,769,040 

50,000,000 
50,000,000 

1,000,000 occ/ 
2,000,000 agg 

6,000,000 
6,000,000 

1,000,000 
100,000 

10,000 
6,000,000 
1,000,000 

6,000,000 
1,000,000 
1,000,000 

100,000 

25,000 

25,000 

100,000,000 

25,000,000 
25,000,000 

Source: District Records 
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Deductible 

$ 5,000 

500,000 

5,000 

5,000 
5,000 

1,000 

500 

500 

1,000 



Company 

NJSIG 

Bollinger 

NJSIG 

NJSIG 

Neptune City Board of Education 
INSURANCE SCHEDULE 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016 
Unaudited 

Type of Coverage 

Board of Education 
-Liability Wrongful Acts Coverage 

Each Loss 
Aggregate 

Student Accident - Voluntary Program 

Fidelity Bonds 
-Treasurer of School Monies 
-School Business Administrator/ 

Board Secretary 

Worker's Compensation 
-Covered Payrolls-Professional 
-Covered Payrolls-Non-Professional 

88 

Coverage 

$ 6,000,000 
6,000,000 

200,000 

5,000 

2,800,000 
115,000 

$ 

Exhibit J-20 
(Continued) 

Deductible 

5,000 
5,000 

N/A 
N/A 
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REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON 
COIVTPLJANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

PERFORNIED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

The Honorable President and 
Members of the Board of Education 
Neptune City Board of Education 
County of Monmouth, New Jersey 

We have audited, in acco rdance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of Am erica, the 
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General 
of the United States and th e audit requirements prescribed by the Office of School Finance, Department of Education, State 
ofNew Jersey (the ··Department'"), the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each 
major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund in formation of the Board of Educati on of the Neptune City School District, 
in the County of Monmouth (the '"District") as of and for the fi scal year ended June 30, 20 16, and the related notes to the 
fina ncia l statements. which collective ly comprise the Distri ct' s basis financial statements, and have issued our report 
thereon dated November 30, 20 16. 

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 

In planning and perform ing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the District 's internal control over 
fi nancial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are app ropriate in the circumstances for the 
purpose of express ing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
e ffectiveness of the District' s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
District's internal control. 

A clej,cie11cy in intema/ contru/ exists when the design or operation of a contro l does not al low management or employees, 
in the normal course of performing th eir assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely 
basis. A material 1t·eakness is a deficiency, or combination of deficienc ies, in internal control such that there is a 
reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the District' s financial statements will not be prevented , or detected 
and corrected on a timely basis. A sign(ficant de.ficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal 
control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with 
governance. 

Our consideration of internal contro l was fo r the limited purpose descri bed in the first paragraph of thi s section and was 
not designated to identi fy all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or sign ificant deficienc ies. 
Given these limitations, durin g our audit we did not identify any defic iencies in internal control that we consider to be 
materia l weaknesses . However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 
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Compliance and Other Matters 

/\s part of obtaining reasonab le assurance about whether the District's fi nancial statements are free of material 
misstatem ent. we perform ed tests o f its compliance with ce1tain provis ions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant 
agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the dete rmination of financial statement 
amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with th ose provis ions was not an objective of our audit, and 
accordingly. we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other 
matters that are required to be reported und er Government A uditing Standards and aud it requirements as prescribed by 
the Office o f School Finance, Department of Education, State of New Jersey. We noted certa in matters that we reported 
to the management of the Neptune City Board of Education in a separate report entitled, Auditor 's J\!Janagement Report 
011 Ac/111inistratil'e Fi11dings - Financial Compliance a11d Pe,jormance dated November 30, 2016. 

Purpose of this Report 

The purpose of thi s report is so le ly to describe the scope of our test ing of internal control and compliance and the result 
o f that testing. and fo r New Jersey Department of Education use, and notto provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
District" s interna l control or on compliance. This repo1t is an integral part of an aud it performed in accordance with 
Govem111e11t Auditing Standards and audit requirements as presc ribed by the Office of School Finance, Department of 
Education. State of New Jersey in considering the District' s interna l control and compli ance. Accordingly, this 
commu nication is not suitable for any other purpose. 

November 30. 2016 
Neptune. New Jersey 

Al len B. Shechter 
Li censed Public School Accountant No. 2183 
Ce1tified Public Accountant 
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AL VINO & SHECHTER, L.L.C. 
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 
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Neptune, New Jersey 07753-3767 

REPORT ON COMPLI ANCE FOR EACH MA.IOR STATE PROGRAM AND 
REPORT O N INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY 

Tl-IE UNIFORM GUIDANCE AND NEW JERSEY 0MB C IRCULAR 15-08 

The Honorable President and 
Members of the Board of Education 
Ne ptune City Board of Education 
Cou nty of Monmouth, New Je rsey 

I NDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

Report on Compliance for Each Major State Program 

l'honc : (732) 922--t222 
Fax : (732) 922--t SJJ 

Exh ibit K-2 

We have audited the Board o f Education of the Neptune City School District's (the ' ·District") compl iance with th e 
types of com pliance requirements desc ribed in the 0MB Compliance Supplement and New Jersey State Aid/Grant 
Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on each of the Distri ct 's major state programs for 
the fi scal year ended June 30, 2016. The Distri ct's major state programs are identified in the summary of auditor's 
results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questi oned costs. 

Management's Res pons ibility 

Management is respons ible for compl iance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants appl icable 
to its state programs. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our respons ibility is to ex press an opinion on compliance for each of the District' s major state programs based on our 
audit of the types of corn pl iance requirements referred to above. We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance 
with auditing standards genera lly accepted in the Un ited States of America; the standard s applicable to financial audits 
contained in Govem111e11t Auditing Standards, issued by the Com ptroller General of the United States; audit 
requirements presc ribed by the Office of School Finance, Department of Education, State of New Jersey; the audit 
requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost 
Principles. and Audit Req uirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Gu idance) ; and New Jersey 0MB Circular 15-08, 
"Single Audit Policy for Recipients of Federal Grants, State Grants, and State A id". Those standards, the Uniform 
Guidance and New Jersey 0MB Circular 15-08 require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable 
assurance about whether noncompli ance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that cou ld have 
a direct and materi al effect on a major state program occurred. An audit inclu des examini ng, on a test basis, evidence 
about the Distri ct's compl iance with those requirements and performing such other procedure as we considered 
necessary in th e c ircumstances. 

We believe that our audi t prov ides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance fo r each major state program. 
However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of the District 's comp I iance. 
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Op inion o n Each Major State Program 

In our opinion. the District complied. in all material respects, with lhe types of compliance requirements referred to 
above that could have a direct and material effect on each of ils major state programs fo r the fi scal year ended June 30, 
2016. 

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance 

Managemen t oflhe District is responsible fo r estab lishing and maintaining effective internal control over compliance 
wilh the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and performing our audit of compl iance, we 
considered the Distri ct's internal control over compl iance with the types of requirements that could have a direct and 
material effect on a major stale program to determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the ci rcumstances 
fo r the purpose of exp ressing an opi nion on compliance fo r each major state program and to test and report on internal 
control over compliance in accordance with the Uni form Guida nce and New Jersey 0MB Circular 15-08, but not for 
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal contro l over compliance. Accordingly, we do not 
express an opin ion on the effectiveness of the District's internal control over comp I iance. 

/\ de,f,ciency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over compl iance does 
nol all ow management or emp loyees, in the norm al course of performing thei r assigned functions, to prevent, or detect 
and correct. noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a state program on a timely basis. A material 
,reakness in internal control 01'er co111plia11ce is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over 
compl iance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that materia l noncompli ance with a type of compliance 
requiremenl of a state program wi ll not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis . A significant 
d1!,/icie11cy in internal conlrol over co111pliance is a defic iency, or a co111bi nation of defic iencies, in internal control over 
compliance with a lype of compliance requirement of a state progra111 that is less severe than a material weakness in 
internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 

Our consideration of the internal control over compli ance was for the limited purpose desc ribed in the first paragraph 
of this section and was not designed to identify all defic iencies in internal control over compliance that might be 
111aterial weak nesses or significant defic iencies. We did not identify any deficiencies in interna l control over 
compliance that we consider 111aterial weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been 
identified. 

The purpose of thi s report on internal contro l over compliance is solely to desc ribe the scope ofour testi ng of internal 
control over compliance and the results that the testing based on the req uiremen ts of the Unifor111 Gu idance and New 
Jersey 0MB Circu lar 15-08. According ly, th is report is not suitabl e for any other purpose. 

ove111ber 30, 2016 
Neptune, New Jersey 
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Allen B. Shechter 
Licensed Pub I ic School Accountant No. 2183 
Ce11ified Public Accountant 
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Exhibit K-5 
NEPTUNE CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 

Notes to the Schedules of Expenditures of Awards and Financial Assistance 
June 30, 2016 

NOTE I. GENERAL 

The accompanying schedu !es of expenditures of federal awards and state fi nancial ass istance inc lude federal and state award 
acti vity of th e Board of Education, Neptune City School District. The Board o f Education is defined in Note I to the Boa rd 
basic financial statements . All federal and state awards rece ived directly from federal and state agencies, as well as federal 
awards and state financia I ass ista nce passed through other government agencies is inc luded on the schedules of expenditures 
of federal awards and state financial ass is tance. 

NOTE 2. BASIS OF ACCOUNTING 

The accompany ing sc hedules of expenditures of awards and fi nancial assistance are presented on the budgetary basi s of 
accounting with the exception of programs recorded in the food service fund , which is presented using the accrual basis of 
accounting . These bases of accounting are descri bed in Notes I to the Board 's basic financial statements. The accompany ing 
schedules o l' expenditures of awards and financial ass istance are presented on the budgetary basis of accounting with the 
exception of programs recorded in the food service fund , which are presented us ing the accrual basis of accounting. These 
bases of accounting are described in Note I to the Board 's basic financ ial statements. The in fo rmation in this schedule is 
prese nted in accordance with th e requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200 - U11 [forn1 
Ad111i11istrnti1·e Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements of Federal A111ards (Uni form Guidance) and New 
Jersey OM B Circular 15-08, "Single Audit Policy for Recipients of Federal Grants, State Grants, and Stole A id". Therefore, 
some amounts presented in this schedule may differ from amounts presented in, or used in the preparati on of, the basic 
financ ial statements. 

NOTE 3. RELATIONSHIP TO GENERAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

The basic fin ancial statements present the general fund and spec ial revenue fund on a GAAP basis. Budgetary comparison 
statements or schedules (RS I) are presented fo r the general fund and spec ial revenue fund to demonstrate finance-related 
lega l comp I iance in which certain revenue is perm ittecl by law or grant agreement to be recogni zed in the audit year, whereas 
fo r GAAP report ing, revenue is not recogn ized until the subsequent year or when expenditures have been made. 

The general fund is presented in the accompanyingschedules on the modified accrual basis with the exception of the revenue 
recognition of th e last state aid payment in the current budget year, which is mandated pursuant to N.J S.A . lSA:22-44.2. 
For GAA P purposes that payment is not recognized until the subsequent budget year clue to the state deferral and recording 
o f the last state aid payment in th e subsequent year. The special revenue fund is presented in the accompanying sc hedules 
on the grant accounting budgetary basis which recognizes encumbrances as expenditures and also recognizes the related 
reve nues, whereas the GAAP basis does not. The special revenue fund also recognizes th e last state aid payment in the 
current budget year, consistent with N.JS.A. I SA:22-4.2 . 

The net adjustment to reconcile from the budgetary basis to the GAAP basis is $1,237.00 for the general fund and $20,534.80 
for the special revenue fund . See Note A for a reco nciliation of the budgetary basis to the mod ified accrual basis of 
accounting for the genera l and special revenue funds. A wards and financial assistance revenues are reported in the Board 's 
bas ic financial statements on a GAAP basis as fo llows: 

Federal State Tota l 

Genera l Fund .00 2,730,405.66 2,730,405.66 
Spec ial Revenue Fund 30 1,062.80 .00 301,062.80 
Debt Se rvice Fund .00 178,562 .00 178,562.00 
Food Service Fund 127,726.29 I 971.35 129,697.64 
Tota l Awards & Financial Assistance $428,789.09 2.910.939.01 3,339,728. 10 
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NEPTUNE CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
Notes to the Schedules of Expenditures of Awards and Financial Assistance 

June 30, 2016 

NOTE 4. RELATIONSHIP TO FEDERAL AND STATE FINANCIAL REPORTS 

Exhibit K- 5 

Amou nts reported in the accompany ing sc hedules agree with amounts reported in the related federal and state fi nancial 
reports. 

NOTE 5. OTHER INFORMATION 

TPAF Soc ial Security contributions in the amount of $ 150,494.66, represents the amount re imbursed by the State for the 
cmployer·s share of socia l securi ty contributions for TPAF members for the fisca l year ended June 30, 20 16. The amount 
reported as TPAF Pension System Contri but ions in the amount of$ l 63 ,356.00 and TPAF Post-Retirement Medical Benefits 
Contributions in the amount of $ 194,512.00 represents the amount paid by the State on behalf of the District for the fi scal 
year ended June 30, 2016. 

NOTE 6. ON-BEHALF PROGRAMS - STATE SINGLE AUDIT MAJOR PROGRAM DETERMINATION 

On-beha lf State Programs for TPAF Pension and Post-Retirement Medical Benefits Contributions payments are excluded 
from the calculation for State sing le audit maj or program determ ination. The Schedule of State Financial Ass istance 
provides a reconcil iation of State Financial ass istance reported in the District' s basic financial statements and the amount 
subj ect to State s ingle audit major program determination. 

NOTE 7. DE MINIMUS INDIRECT COST RATE 

The District has not e lected to use th e IO percent de minimus indirect cost rate allowed under the Uniform Gu idance. 
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Financial Statements 

Type of auditor's report issued : 

NEPTUNE CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
Schedule of Findin~s and Questioned Costs 

For the Fiscal Yea r Ended June 30, 2016 

Section I - Summary of Auditor's Report 

Interna l control ove r financ ia l reporting: 

I) Material weakness(es) identi fi ed? ___ yes 

Exhibit K-6 

Unm odified 

----'-x'--_ no 

2) We re s igni fi ca nt defi c iencies identified that are 
not cons idered to be material weaknesses? ___ yes ----'-x~_ none reported 

Noncompliance mate ria l to bas ic financ ia l statements noted? 

Sta te Awards 

Dollar th resho ld used to dist in guish be tween type A and B program s: 

Auditee q ualified as low-r is k aud itee? 

Ty pe o f auditor's repo rt issued on compliance for major programs: 

Interna l Contro l over maj or program s: 

I) Mate ria I weakness( es) identifi ed? 

2) Were s ignifica nt deficienc ies ident ified that are 
not cons ide red to be mater ial weaknesses? 

A ny audi t fi ndin gs disc losed that are required to be repo1ted in 
acco rdance with 2 C FR 200 Section .5 I 6(a) of the Un iform 
Guidance or New Jersey 0MB Circu lar Letter 15.08 as applicable? 

Identificat ion of majo r programs : 

___ yes 

_ X __ yes 

_ ___ yes 

____ yes 

____ yes 

GMIS Nu mbcr{s) Name of State Pro2"ram 

State Aid Public C luster 
16-495 -034-5 J 70-078 Eq ualization A id 

----'-X"--_ no 

$750,000.00 

___ no 

Unmodified 

-~X'----no 

----=-X=---- none reported 

-~X'----no 

I 6-495-034-5095-089 
I 6-495-034- 5 120-084 

Spec ia l Education Categorica l Aid 
Securi tv A id 

I 6-495-034-5 120-096 
I 6-495-034- 5 120-09 7 
I 6-495-034-5 120-098 

Under Adequacy Aid 
Per Pupil Growth 
PARCC Readiness 

Section II - Financial Statement Findings 

NON E 

Section III - State Financial Assistance Findings and Questioned Costs 

NONE 
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NEPTUNE CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
Summarv Schedule of Prior Year Audit Findings 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2016 

STATUS OF PRIOR YEAR FINDINGS 

Exh ibit K- 7 

There were no prior year findings s in ce all areas of State fin ancial ass istance fo r the prior year were fou nd to be in 
compliance. 
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